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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Our Business

Overview and Strategy

Helios Technologies, Inc. (“Helios,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”), and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is a global industrial technology leader that
develops and manufactures solutions for both the hydraulics and electronics markets. We were originally founded in 1970 as Sun Hydraulics Corporation, which
designed and manufactured cartridge valves for hydraulics systems. We changed the Company’s legal name on June 13, 2019, from Sun Hydraulics Corporation
to Helios Technologies, Inc.  

Today we operate under two business segments: Hydraulics and Electronics. These businesses design and manufacture hydraulic cartridge valves, hydraulic
quick release couplings and customized electronic controls systems and displays for a variety of end markets, as well as design complete hydraulic systems.  

A little over five years ago, we set out a 10-year vision to achieve $1 billion in sales through a combination of organic growth and acquisitions and to deliver
operating margins in excess of 20%.

In addition to our expectation of compounded annual organic growth in the high single digits to low double digits, we have an active pipeline and a history of
acquiring companies with niche technologies as well as strong profitability. We are augmenting our strategy with additional value streams that will help us to
execute on our goals and potentially accelerate the achievement of our strategic vision. We believe the value streams will deliver growth, diversification and
market leading financial performance as we develop into a more sophisticated, globally oriented, customer centric and learning organization. These are:
 1. Protect the business through customer centricity and drive cash generation through the launch of new products and leveraging existing products;
 2. Think and act globally to better leverage our assets, accelerate innovation and diversify end markets by driving intra- and inter-company initiatives

and by building in the region for the region;
 3. Create greater opportunities for growth while reducing risk and cyclicality by diversifying our markets and sources of revenue by swarming

commercial opportunities that leverage our products and technologies’ value in new markets such as defense and commercial food service; and
 4. Develop our talent, our most critical resource, through a culture of customer-centricity through the embracement of diversity, engagement of the

team, focus on shared, deeply rooted values and promotion of a learning organization.  

Our strategy is underpinned by the execution of acquisitions which we expect to include bolt-on flywheel type acquisitions (up to $100 million in enterprise
value) and the evaluation of more transformative type acquisitions ($100 million to $1 billion in enterprise value). The objective of our acquisition strategy is to
enhance Helios by:
 • Growing our current product portfolio or adding new technologies and capabilities that complement our current offerings;
 • Expanding geographic presence; and
 • Bringing new customers or markets.

To support the execution of our strategy, our financial strategy is oriented on delivering industry leading margins, a strong balance sheet and sufficient financial
flexibility to support organic and acquisitive growth.

We align our internal key performance indicators with our strategy to ensure our short-term actions will deliver long-term expectations.
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A primary focus of our strategic thinking is the identification of megatrends that will impact the future capital equipment and industrial goods markets. We have
identified three megatrends: globalization, growing sophistication of safe machinery and equipment and increased computing power, as further described below:

Globalization. We believe global population growth and urbanization, driven predominantly by Asian mega-cities, will generate ongoing demand for
infrastructure projects, resources and food production, all of which require equipment and machinery from our key end markets.  

Sophistication of safe machinery and equipment.  Machine users increasingly demand safety, productivity, efficiency, and automated control.
Advancements in the design of these machines require continuous evolution of critical components such as hydraulic and electronic functionality and
control.  

Increased computing power. In the current electronic and digital age, electronics are increasingly used to activate processes which were once activated
only manually or mechanically. Information is increasingly being converted into a form that allows it to be processed, stored and transmitted digitally,
resulting in both time and energy savings.  

Our culture of innovation is at the core of our business. We have approximately 200 engineers in support of product innovation, as well as technical support and
customer service. We believe our product innovation will aid organic growth and fill the expected demand resulting from the identified megatrends. All growth
initiatives are intended to preserve Helios’s history of superior profitability and financial strength.

Acquisitions

We initiated our strategy to diversify and grow in 2016 with an acquisition in the electronics industry which served a variety of end markets.  Since then, our
acquisitions have further diversified our product offerings and the markets we serve as well as expanded our geographic presence.
 • On December 5, 2016 we acquired Enovation Controls, LLC (“Enovation”). With this acquisition, we expanded our electronic and digital

capabilities and further diversified our business, gaining access to the new, highly specialized engine driven equipment, marine and recreation
vehicle markets and customers seeking complete machine control.

 • On April 5, 2018, we acquired Faster S.r.l. (“Faster”) and expanded our hydraulics product offering with quick release hydraulic coupling solutions.
The Faster acquisition further strengthened our position within the agriculture, construction equipment and general industrial markets. Faster’s
primary manufacturing operations are co-located with its headquarters near Milan, Italy. Additional manufacturing occurs in the U.S. and India and
the company has sales offices in China, Brazil and Germany.  

 • On August 1, 2018, Helios acquired Custom Fluidpower Pty Ltd (“Custom Fluidpower”). Custom Fluidpower is a leading Australian fluid power
distributor and custom design solutions and service provider, serving a broad array of industrial end markets, including mining, material handling,
agriculture, construction, energy/oil & gas and others. Custom Fluidpower has eight locations throughout Australia where engineering solutions are
provided, including four that operate as value-add distributors and four that conduct repair work for hydraulics systems. The Custom Fluidpower
acquisition further diversified our hydraulics product and service portfolio, broadened our global footprint and provided us with access to the
growing Asia Pacific (“APAC”) market.
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 • On November 6, 2020, we acquired BWG Holding I Corp. (known as “Balboa Water Group” or “Balboa”) . Balboa is an innovative market leader of
electronic controls for the health and wellness industry with proprietary and patented technology that enables end-to-end electronic control systems
for therapy baths and spas. Headquartered in Costa Mesa, California, Balboa’s manufacturing operations are located in Mexico, with additional sales
and warehouse operations in Denmark. The Balboa acquisition expanded Helios’s electronic control technology with complementary AC
(alternating current) capabilities and enabled further diversification of end markets.

 • Subsequent to the end of 2020, we acquired all of the assets of BJN Technologies, LLC, an innovative engineering solutions provider that was
founded in 2014. With the acquisition, we formed the Helios Center of Engineering Excellence (“Engineering Center” or “Helios Engineering”) to
centralize our technology advancements and new product development and better leverage existing talents across the electronics segment initially,
and then throughout all of Helios.

Business Segments

Our Hydraulics segment includes products sold under the Sun Hydraulics, Faster and Custom Fluidpower brands. The Electronics segment includes products
sold under the Enovation Controls, Murphy and Balboa Water Group brands. Financial information about our business segments is presented in Note 16 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.  

Hydraulics

There are three key technologies within our Hydraulics segment:  cartridge valve technology (“CVT”), quick-release hydraulic couplings solutions (“QRC”) and
hydraulic system design (“Systems”). Our CVT products provide functions important to a hydraulic system: to control rates and direction of fluid flow and to
regulate and control pressures. We pioneered a fundamentally different design platform employing a floating construction that results in a self-alignment
characteristic. This design provides better performance and reliability advantages compared with most competitors’ product offerings. Our cartridge valves are
offered in five size ranges and include both electrically actuated and hydro-mechanical products. They are designed to be able to operate reliably at higher
pressures, making them equally suitable for both industrial and mobile applications.  

Hydraulic systems are increasingly taking signals from on-board electronic control systems, making it necessary for hydraulic products to be capable of digital
communication. In response to this we have aggressively expanded our CVT offering of electrically actuated cartridge valves. In 2017, we introduced FLeX™, a
new electro-hydraulic product line offering high-performance electro-hydraulic products. Since 2018, we have continued to introduce new products under the
FLeX™ Series, further expanding our electro-hydraulic product offering for both the mobile and industrial hydraulics markets.

QRC products allow users to connect and disconnect quickly from any hydraulic circuit without leakage and ensure high-performance under high temperature
and pressure using one or multiple couplers. Quick connection of multiple hydraulic lines can be accomplished through the use of a MultiFaster or casting
solution. Simultaneous connection of several lines is an important feature in many applications and allows for dramatic reduction of connection time, even when
the system is under pressure. We design, engineer and distribute hydraulic coupling solutions primarily in the agriculture, construction equipment and industrial
markets.  

Systems provides engineered solutions for machine users, manufacturers or designers to fulfill complete system design requirements including electro-hydraulic,
remote control, electronic control and programmable logic controller systems, as well as automation of existing equipment. The systems we manufacture:
 • are highly efficient;
 • increase and optimize productivity;
 • introduce safer operating procedures;
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 • are smaller in size than competitive products;
 • allow for ease of maintenance; and
 • reduce energy costs.

Electronics

We are an international leader in custom-tailored solutions for many industrial and commercial applications, including engines, engine-driven equipment and
specialty vehicles with a broad range of rugged and reliable instruments such as displays, controls and instrumentation products through our Enovation Controls,
Zero Off, Murphy and HCT brands. With the Balboa brand, we are also an industry leader in the health and wellness market providing comprehensive, electronic
control systems with proprietary and patented technology for therapy bath and spas from a single source.

As an innovative manufacturer of electronic controls and displays, we serve a variety of markets including off-highway, recreational and commercial marine,
power sports and specialty vehicles, agriculture and water pumping, power generation, engine-driven industrial equipment and health and wellness. We partner
directly with OEMs and support a worldwide network of authorized distributors and systems integrators. We make significant investments to garner an intense
understanding of unique applications to solve complex system challenges.

Our focus is on creating customized systems that solve complex problems for niche mid-market volume customers.  This allows us to target customers or
industries that see value in this level of integration, and as a result, our customer list contains a wide variety of OEM applications. Product categories include
traditional mechanical and electronic gauge instrumentation, plug and go CAN-based instruments, robust environmentally sealed controllers, hydraulic
controllers, pumps and water flow systems, engineered panels, process monitoring instrumentation, printed circuit board assembly and wiring harness design.
Our technologies can be used in both mobile, or DC power applications, as well as fixed, or AC power applications.  

We offer our customers the ability to customize software on their products from the graphics for our PowerView®™ line of LCD displays. Our displays offer
easy-to-read, bonded LCD graphical views with the industry's best readability even in direct sunlight or harsh weather conditions. Our controllers are built with
the ability to withstand a wide ambient temperature range. User friendly software configuration tools allow engineers and non-engineers alike to create
customized systems that solve complex problems on their equipment making the user experience more seamless.  

Our panel solutions offer customized design and simple, turnkey solutions and our Industrial Panel Division offers engineers dedicated to applications, wire
harnesses, panels and software development. Engineers focus entirely on custom and standard solutions built to desired specifications. Our services for design
and development include on-site installation and testing with reviews to ensure the solution works with the application out of the box.  

Globally, electronics products are sold primarily direct to OEM customers, with about 25% sold through independent, authorized channel partners in 2020. We
continue to implement a strategic initiative to further diversify our channels to market, our geographic reach and end markets served. In addition to acquisitions
such as Balboa, this effort includes the development of distribution partners globally. These efforts assist in our ability to diversify our global customer base,
allowing us to grow more quickly, diversify the end-markets we serve, and expand our customer base.

Engineering

Subsequent to the end of 2020, we established the Helios Center of Engineering Excellence, LLC to serve both our segments. Helios Engineering will play an
important role in all aspects of our business including design, manufacturing, sales, marketing and technical support. Importantly, Helios Engineering will
advance ongoing joint product development efforts to address the megatrend of the electrification of machines.
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Engineering teams work cross-functionally between the segments where  engineers in the Electronics segment bring expertise to enable  electrification of products
and systems within the Hydraulics segment. While the core value of our products have been critical to our companies’ historical success and will remain
important in the future, we see significant opportunities in bringing together the technology of hydraulics and electronics to create new products to better serve
future market trends.  

Manufacturing

Hydraulics

We utilize process-intensive manufacturing operations that make extensive use of automated handling and assembly technology, where possible, to perform
repetitive tasks, thus promoting manufacturing efficiencies and workplace safety. We employ lean techniques to continually improve our productivity and
efficiency. Our hydraulics business is capital intensive which affords us the ability to choose whether we produce in-house and/or out-source component parts
and finishing processes. We have manufacturing hubs in the U.S., Europe, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”) and APAC providing “in the region, for the
region” support to our customers. In 2019, we added manufacturing capacity and capability in China, further extending our global footprint as part of that
element of our strategy.

We hold significant raw materials, work in process and finished goods in all of the businesses within the Hydraulics segment. The raw materials used, primarily
aluminum and steel, are commercially available from multiple sources.  Finished goods consist of customer orders that are completed but have not been
shipped.  

We have negotiated certain long-term agreements (“LTA”) with our key suppliers. Terms and conditions of these agreements include pricing, annual quantity
estimates, quality standards, safety stock quantities and lead time expectations. The LTAs are intended to provide the Company and the supplier with a
framework for effective long-term planning and utilization of assets.

Electronics

We offer a wide range of advanced manufacturing and engineering capabilities, including mechanical and electrical hardware design, software design, product
testing, harness engineering and more. State-of-the-art manufacturing and test capabilities include LCD bonding, surface mount technology (“SMT”) with 3D
solder paste inspection, 3D automated optical inspection, x-ray inspection and highly accelerated life test and highly accelerated stress screen (“HALT” and
“HASS”) chambers for accelerated product lifecycle testing. Multipoint functional testing is conducted to ensure quality control of our products before they are
delivered to our customers. Products are serialized, and test data is captured against serial numbers and stored in a manufacturing execution system (“MES”)
database.

Our global operating system is tied together via an enterprise and manufacturing resource planning system, and we deploy Lean manufacturing and Six Sigma
principles and tools to drive ongoing quality and productivity improvements. This allows us to identify and remove variation and waste in our manufacturing and
business processes while driving continuous improvements in lead times and quality.

We are a customer focused, project-based organization engaging with customers in long-term product plans and contracts, backed by vertically integrated
manufacturing capabilities. Our strategic investment in vertically integrated manufacturing processes such as wire processing, sheet metal fabrication, LCD
bonding, and surface mount technology enable speed to market in developing highly engineered electronics engine and machine control solutions for OEMs.  

Our globally aligned raw materials and finished goods inventory strategies allow us to maintain high service levels for customers. Electronics raw materials long
lead times are carefully planned and managed to ensure we meet demand.
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Sales and Marketing

In 2020, no single customer made up more than 6% of consolidated net sales across the company.  

Hydraulics

In 2020, 78% of Helios’s sales were derived from the Hydraulics segment. Our 2020 Hydraulics segment sales were distributed fairly evenly among our three
major geographic regions with 32% to the Americas, 32% to EMEA and 36% to APAC.

We market and sell hydraulic products through value-add distributors and directly to OEMs. Our global channel partner network includes representation in many
industrialized markets, and approximately 60% of segment sales are attributed to our channel partners who generally combine our products with other hydraulic
components to design a complete hydraulic system. Sales direct to OEMs for integration in their machines make up the remaining 40%. We rely heavily on our
distribution network in the U.S. with 72% of segment sales in this region going through channel partners. In EMEA and APAC, sales are split more evenly
between OEMs and distributors. Technical support is provided by local experts based at each of our global operations.

We provide end users with technical information through the websites of our operating companies and catalogs in multiple languages, including all information
necessary to specify and obtain our products. We believe this approach helps stimulate demand for our products.  

Electronics

Electronic products are sold globally both to OEM customers and through distributors. OEM sales constituted 75% of total Electronics segment sales in 2020.
Building strong partnerships with OEMs is a priority. We rely on direct customer contacts to stimulate demand for our products. We work closely with our OEM
customers to design and deliver innovative reliable products for specific applications. Our hardware and software products are designed and modified with the
customer utilizing our extensive application knowledge to create unique system level products that cannot be easily replaced by simply switching out
components. Twenty-four-hour customer service support and an in-house technical service department is available before, during and after the initial sale to
create sustainable partnerships with our customers.  

Our OEM sales team collaborates with large OEMs, whereas the Distributor sales team works with a large number of distributors of varying sizes. Over the last
few years, we reconstituted our sales teams to create a heavier focus on distributor sales. Overall, approximately 25% of 2020 segment sales were derived from
independent, authorized distributor channel partners.

Geographically, our 2020 Electronics segment sales represented 81% to the Americas, 9% to EMEA and 10% to APAC. There is a well-defined initiative to
grow sales in EMEA and APAC as part of our growth strategy. Additionally, synergies identified at the time of acquisition utilize customer relationships from
the Hydraulics segment to create pull through of electronic products, and joint product development has created additional sales opportunities for both
segments.  
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Competition

Hydraulics

Competitors in the hydraulics market are broken down into three categories: full-line hydraulics system producers, component-only producers of CVT or QRC
products, and low-cost producers. Most competitors market globally.  Full-line producers, such as Parker Hannifin and Danfoss, can provide complete hydraulic
systems to their customers, including components functionally like those manufactured in our Hydraulics segment. Similar to Helios, component-only producers
are entities that offer only CVT or QRC products, while additional parts of the hydraulics system are obtained from other manufacturers. These include
HydraForce, Inc. and Delta Power Company.  Low-cost producers, such as Winner and Valvole Italia, are competitors who have emerged in low-cost production
areas such as APAC and Europe. These competitors will typically copy our products and like products designed by competitors. Low-cost producers generally
have a limited product range compared with full line or cartridge valve and quick release coupling only producers, which restricts their ability to be competitive.

We believe that we compete based upon the quality, reliability, price, value, speed of delivery and technological characteristics of our products and services.

Electronics

Competition within the electronics market is very broad with competitors ranging from large multinational companies with full electronics offerings, such as
Continental and Garmin, to small niche companies that specialize in one product type. Enovation Controls is a niche player in the displays, controllers, gauges
and instrumentation panel markets. Balboa is a niche player providing single source control and water flow systems in the health and wellness industry.

The market for products designed and manufactured by Enovation Controls is relatively fragmented with the top four to six companies comprising the majority of
the market, mostly servicing the automotive space. Enovation Controls differentiates itself through product quality, customization ability and service with a focus
on mid-market niche markets that are not well served by the large competitors. Our engagement and speed to market set us apart from larger competitors.

Balboa Water Group is the largest supplier of integrated end-to-end solutions for the therapy and wellness spa and bath market and is the only supplier capable of
providing the full spectrum of components, from controls and displays to pumps and jets. By providing integrated architecture of hardware and software that is
customized to match specific OEM products, Balboa creates a high cost to switch suppliers.

Our overall position in our key markets is defensible due to high barriers to switching suppliers, such as up-front engineering and programming costs, and
positive perceptions among core customers on key selection criteria, including quality and service.

Human Capital

We believe our employees are fundamental to our success. We are focused on continuing to attract and retain strong talent and furthering the development of our
workforce through programs that not only enhance technical abilities but also strengthen leadership, communication and collaboration skills that contribute to our
high performing, team-oriented culture. Helios is committed to attracting and developing a diverse workforce. In our core values, we believe that we should treat
others as they want to be treated, fostering an inclusive and welcoming environment for our colleagues and their ideas.

At the end of our 2020 fiscal year we employed over 2,000 colleagues worldwide. Approximately 54% of our employees are located in the Americas region,
27% in the EMEA region and 19% in APAC. In addition, we have a committed service agreement with a third party that supports nearly 1,200 jobs in Mexico
and serves as an integral part of our supply chain. We also hire consultants, independent contractors and temporary workers as needed to augment our workforce.
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Employees are guided by our core values and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. The Company and its employees believe that respecting others means
recognizing the dignity of every person and embracing diversity around the globe. Helios is committed to maintaining a workplace free from discrimination and
harassment and encourages diversity in its hiring and employment practices. Our leadership and employees strive to “do the right thing by living with integrity,”
which includes caring for communities around the world and the people they employ.

We continue to promote diversity throughout our organization. Notably, sixty percent (60%) of our executive officers are female and our executive team
represents three different national origins.

As part of our talent development initiatives, and to support our diversity and inclusion efforts, we partner with a third-party consulting firm with whom we have
developed and launched multiple programs including the Helios Leadership Development Program (“HLDP”), with employees based in six different countries.
The in-depth year-long program reinforces the importance of diversity & inclusion, as well as many elements of business acumen. Also core to the program was
the establishment of a global mentoring program to help guide these future leaders of our Company.

Our employees also participate in a 3C Triad Coaching Program, a three-month online coaching program which focuses on the core elements of Coaching,
Communication & Collaboration. The Triad Program goals are to build leadership capabilities while developing skills to support the growth and development of
peers, and involves participants from nine countries across all of our businesses.

The Company is committed to the safety of its employees. Each company within our group maintains environmental, health and safety policies that seek to
promote the operation of our business in a manner that is protective of the health and safety of the public and our employees. Several of our businesses have
onsite medical clinics for employees and their families. Our companies offer several health and welfare programs to employees to promote fitness and wellness
and preventative healthcare. In addition, our employees are offered a confidential employee assistance program that provides professional counseling to
employees and their family members.

We have approximately 440 employees in Italy who are represented by a union. We have constructive and productive dialog on a regular basis with union
leaders. To the best of our knowledge, there is no labor dispute, strike, controversy, slowdown, work stoppage or lockout pending or threatened against or
affecting the Company, nor is there any basis for any of the foregoing.  

Patents and Trademarks

In addition to trade secrets, unpatented know-how, and other intellectual property rights, we own approximately 270 active patents and trademarks relating to
certain of our products and businesses. We believe that the growth of our business is dependent upon the quality and functional performance of our products and
our relationship with the marketplace, rather than on any single patent, trademark, copyright or other item of intellectual property or group of patents, trademarks
or copyrights. However, our patents are important in the defense of our intellectual property from competitors who exploit product development that is not
otherwise legally protected by its creator.

Governmental Regulations

We are subject to a variety of federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including in foreign jurisdictions, relating to our business practices, labor and
employment, construction, land use, and taxation, among others. These laws and regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more
stringent over time. Compliance with government regulations, including environmental regulations, has not had, and based on current information and the
applicable laws and regulations currently in effect, is not expected to have a material effect on our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.
However, laws and regulations may be changed, accelerated or adopted that impose significant operational restrictions and compliance requirements upon our
company and which could negatively impact our operating results. See Item 1A - Risk Factors.

10
 



Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Laws and Regulations

We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) and anti-corruption laws, and similar laws in foreign countries, such as the UK Anti-Bribery
Act. Any violation of these laws by us or our agents or distributors could create substantial liability for us, subject our officers and directors to personal liability,
and cause a loss of reputation in the market. Increased business in higher risk countries could subject us and our officers and directors to increased scrutiny and
increased liability. In addition, becoming familiar with and implementing the infrastructure necessary to comply with laws, rules and regulations applicable to
new business activities and mitigating and protecting against corruption risks could be quite costly.

Export Controls and Trade Policies

We are subject to numerous domestic and foreign regulations relating to our operations worldwide. In particular, we are subject to trade and import and export
regulations in multiple jurisdictions, including sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Asset Controls of the U.S. Treasury Department (OFAC). Our
businesses may also be impacted by additional domestic or foreign trade regulations ensuring fair trade practices, including trade restrictions, tariffs and
sanctions.

Environmental Regulations

Our operations and properties are subject to laws and regulations relating to environmental protection, including those governing air emissions, water discharges,
waste management and workplace safety. We use, generate and dispose of hazardous substances and waste in our operations and could be subject to material
liabilities relating to the investigation and clean-up of contaminated properties and related claims. We are required to conform our operations and properties to
these laws and adapt to regulatory requirements in all countries as these requirements change. In connection with our acquisitions, we may assume significant
environmental liabilities, some of which we may not be aware of, or may not be quantifiable, at the time of acquisition. In addition, new laws and regulations, the
discovery of previously unknown contamination or the imposition of new requirements could increase our costs or subject us to new or increased liabilities.

Occupational Health and Safety Regulations

The Company's operations are subject to extensive and stringent governmental regulations including regulations related to the Occupational Safety and Health
Act (OSHA) and similar safety and health regulations promulgated in other countries. The Company's employees in its manufacturing facilities operate
complicated machinery that may cause substantial injury or death upon malfunction or improper operation. The Company's manufacturing locations are subject
to the workplace safety rules and regulations of OSHA and local safety and health laws. The Company believes that it is in compliance with the requirements of
these laws. However, in the event that the Company is unable to comply with OSHA or other environmental requirements, the Company could be subject to
substantial sanctions, including restrictions on its business operations, monetary liability and criminal sanctions, any of which could have a material adverse
effect upon the Company's business.

Sustainability

Corporate responsibility and sustainability are reflected in the Company’s business strategy. The board of directors recently reviewed the Company’s historical
commitment to principles of corporate and social responsibility. The Company is committed to reducing emissions, recycling, and minimizing its environmental
footprint and has implemented several strategies to achieve these goals. The Company is also fully committed to the safety of its employees and the safety of
those who use its products. Additionally, the Company actively seeks to support diversity initiatives in its hiring and employment practices. The Board and its
committees will continue to assist the Company in its oversight of corporate social responsibilities, significant public policy issues, health and safety, and
climate-change related trends.
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Available Information

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as well as our proxy
statements and other materials which are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) are made available, free of charge, on or
through the Helios website under the heading “Investors” and “SEC Filings” as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

The Company’s executive offices are located at 1500 West University Parkway, Sarasota, Florida 34243, and our telephone number is (941) 362-1200. Our
websites include www.heliostechnologies.com, www.sunhydraulics.com, www.enovationcontrols.com, www.fastercouplings.com, www.custom.com.au and
www.balboawatergroup.com.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

FACTORS INFLUENCING FUTURE RESULTS - FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  This Annual Report contains “forward-looking statements”
(within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995) that are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts, projections, our beliefs,
and assumptions made by us, including (i) our strategies regarding growth, including our intention to develop new products and undertake acquisitions; (ii) our
financing plans; (iii) trends affecting our financial condition or results of operations; (iv) our ability to continue to control costs and to meet our liquidity and
other financing needs; (v) the declaration and payment of dividends; and (vi) our ability to respond to changes in customer demand domestically and
internationally, including as a result of standardization.  In addition, we may make other written or oral statements, which constitute forward-looking statements,
from time to time.  Words such as “may,” “expects,” “projects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” variations of such words, and
similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements.  Similarly, statements that describe our future plans, objectives or goals also are
forward-looking statements.  These statements are not guaranteeing future performance and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those
discussed below and elsewhere in this report.  Our actual results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements,
and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements.  All forward-looking statements are made as of the date hereof, and we undertake no obligation to
update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:
(i) conditions in the capital markets, including the interest rate environment and the availability of capital; (ii) changes in the competitive marketplace that could
affect our revenue and/or cost bases, such as increased competition, lack of qualified engineering, marketing, management or other personnel, and increased
labor and raw materials costs; (iii) risks related to heath epidemics, pandemics and similar outbreaks, including, without limitation, the current COVID-19
pandemic, which may have material adverse effects on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows; (iv) new product introductions,
product sales mix and the geographic mix of sales nationally and internationally; and (v) the following risk factors:

Risks Relating to Our Business: Global Regulatory and Economic Conditions

General global economic trends and industry trends may affect our sales. The capital goods industry in general, and our businesses, are subject to economic
cycles, which directly affect customer orders, lead times and sales volume. Economic downturns generally have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations, as they did in 2009. Cyclical economic expansions such as those of 2017 and 2018, provide a context where demand for capital goods is
stimulated, creating higher incoming order rates for the products we produce. Higher demand can lead to part shortages which drive costs up.  If demand gets too
strong, lead times can be extended which may cause some customers to cancel orders.  In the Electronics segment, our business is dependent on the general
economy and widespread adoption of advanced digital control solutions that integrate technologies such as high-resolution displays, configurable software GPS
navigation, vehicle management systems, engine safety diagnostics and engine energy efficiency. If one or more of these expected industry trends fails to occur,
or occurs at a slower rate than expected, our sales growth will be negatively impacted, and our business will be adversely affected. In the future, continued
weakening or improvement in the economy will directly affect orders and influence results of operations.
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Our business could be harmed by adverse global and regional economic and political conditions. In June 2016, voters in the UK approved the UK’s exit
(“Brexit”) from the European Union (“EU”) and officially exited on January 31, 2020 . A transition period ended on December 31, 2020, during which the UK
and the EU negotiated the terms of the UK’s relationship with the EU going forward. Despite the implementation of the UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement
beginning on January 1, 2021, it is still unclear how Brexit will ultimately impact relationships within the UK and between the UK and other countries on many
aspects of fiscal policy, cross-border trade and international relations. The effects of and the perceptions as to the impact from the UK’s withdrawal from the EU
has affected and may continue to adversely affect business activity and economic and market conditions in the UK, EU and globally, and could contribute to
instability in global financial and foreign exchange markets, including volatility in the value of the pound sterling and the euro. In addition, Brexit could lead to
additional political, legal, and economic instability in the EU. Any of these effects of Brexit, and others we cannot anticipate, could adversely affect our business
in the UK, as well as our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. It is also unclear what long-term economic, financial, trade, and legal
implications the withdrawal of the UK from the EU will have and how such withdrawal will affect our customers and our operations in the UK and EU. If the UK
were to significantly alter its regulations affecting the manufacturing industry, we could face significant new costs. Any of the effects of Brexit could adversely
affect our business, business opportunities, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Further, uncertainty still remains regarding the potential for
the future imposition of tariffs on imports across EU borders. In addition, Brexit could lead to legal uncertainty and potentially divergent national laws and
regulations as the UK determines which EU laws to replace or replicate.  Any of these effects could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Our operations and transactions also depend upon favorable trade relations between the U.S. and those foreign countries in which our customers and suppliers
have operations. A protectionist trade environment in either the U.S. or those foreign countries in which we do business or sell products, such as a change in the
current tariff structures, export compliance laws, government subsidies, or other trade policies, may adversely affect our ability to economically source materials,
sell our products, or do business in foreign markets. Trade restrictions, including withdrawal from or modification of existing trade agreements, negotiation of
new trade agreements, including a possible new trade agreement with the UK, and imposition of new (and retaliatory) tariffs against certain countries or covering
certain products, including developments in U.S.-China trade relations, could limit our ability to capitalize on current and future growth opportunities in
international markets and impair our ability to expand the business. These trade restrictions, and changes in, or uncertainty surrounding, global trade policies may
affect our competitive position. Our overall success as a global business depends, in part, upon our ability to succeed in differing economic, social and political
conditions. We may not succeed in developing and implementing policies and strategies to counter the foregoing factors effectively in each location where we do
business and the foregoing factors may cause a reduction in our sales, profitability, or cash flows, or cause an increase in our liabilities.
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Failure to comply with laws, regulations and policies, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and UK Bribery Act or other applicable anti-
corruption legislation, could result in fines, criminal penalties and an adverse effect on our business. We are subject to regulation under a wide variety of
U.S. federal and state and non-U.S. laws, regulations and policies, including anti-corruption laws, due to our global operations. In particular, the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), the UK Bribery Act of 2010 and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies, their agents,
consultants and other business partners from making improper payments to government officials or other persons (i.e., commercial bribery) for the purpose of
obtaining or retaining business or other improper advantage.  The laws also impose recordkeeping and internal control provisions on companies such as ours. We
operate and/or conduct business, and any acquisition target may operate and/or conduct business, in some parts of the world, such as China, India and Russia, that
are recognized as having governmental and commercial corruption and in such countries, strict compliance with anti-bribery laws may conflict with local
customs and practices.  We cannot provide assurance that our or any acquisition target’s internal control policies and procedures have protected us, or will
protect us, from unlawful conduct of our employees, agents, consultants and other business partners. In the event that we believe or have reason to believe that
violations of anti-corruption laws may have occurred, we may be required to investigate and/or have outside counsel investigate the relevant facts and
circumstances, which can be expensive and require significant time and attention from senior management. Violation may result in substantial civil and/or
criminal fines, disgorgement of profits, sanctions and penalties, debarment from future work with governments, curtailment of operations in certain jurisdictions
and imprisonment of the individuals involved.  As a result, any such violations may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial
condition. In addition, actual or alleged violations could damage our reputation and ability to do business. Any of these impacts could have a material, adverse
effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our business is subject to a variety of governmental regulations that may restrict our business and may result in costs and penalties.  We are subject to a
variety of federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to foreign business practices, labor and employment, construction, land use, and taxation, among
others. These laws and regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time. Failure to comply with these laws and
regulations may result in a variety of administrative, civil and criminal enforcement measures, including assessment of monetary penalties and the imposition of
corrective requirements. From time to time, as part of the regular overall evaluation of our operations, including newly acquired operations, we may be subject to
compliance audits by regulatory authorities. In addition, any failure to comply with regulations related to the government procurement process at the federal,
state or local level, or restrictions on political activities and lobbying may result in administrative or financial penalties including being barred from providing
services to governmental entities, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our operations expose us to risks of non-compliance with numerous countries’ import and export laws and regulations. Due to our significant foreign
sales, we are subject to trade and import and export regulations in multiple jurisdictions, including the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control’s regulations. As a result, compliance with multiple trade sanctions and embargoes and import and export laws and regulations pose a constant challenge
and risk to us. Furthermore, the laws and regulations concerning import activity, export recordkeeping and reporting, export control and economic sanctions are
complex and constantly changing. Any failure to comply with applicable legal and regulatory trading obligations could result in criminal and civil penalties and
sanctions, such as fines, imprisonment, debarment from governmental contracts, seizure of shipments, loss of import and export privileges, reputational damage
and a reduction in the value of our common stock.
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Risks Relating to Our Business: Environmental, Health & Safety

We face various risks related to health epidemics, pandemics and similar outbreaks, which may have material adverse effects on our business, financial
position, results of operations and/or cash flows. We face various risks related to health epidemics, pandemics and similar outbreaks, including the global
outbreak of COVID-19. The continued spread of COVID-19 has led to disruption and volatility in the global capital markets, which increases the cost of capital
and adversely impacts access to capital. If significant portions of our workforce are unable to work effectively, including because of illness, quarantines,
government actions, facility closures or other restrictions in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, our operations will likely be impacted. We may be unable
to perform fully on our contracts and our costs may increase as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak. These cost increases may not be fully recoverable or
adequately covered by insurance.

It is possible that the continued spread of COVID-19 could also cause further disruption in our supply chain; cause delay, or limit the ability of customers to
perform, including in making timely payments to us; impact investment performance; and cause other unpredictable events.

We continue to work with our stakeholders (including customers, employees, suppliers and local communities) to responsibly address this global pandemic. We
continue to monitor the situation to assess further possible implications to our business, supply chain and customers, and to take actions in an effort to mitigate
adverse consequences.

As a result of current economic conditions and expected future impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic, the carrying value of goodwill with respect to certain of
our assets was impaired, resulting in impairment charges that negatively impacted our results of operations. We may be required to record additional impairment
charges in the future if the COVID-19 pandemic continues. We cannot predict the amount and timing of any such additional charges, which could adversely
impact our results of operations.

We cannot at this time predict the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, but it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations and/or cash flows.

Our operations are subject to environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, and we may face significant costs or liabilities associated with
environmental, health and safety matters.  We are subject to a variety of federal, state, local and foreign environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations
concerning, among other things: the discharge of pollutants into the soil, air and water; the generation, storage, handling, use, release, disposal and transportation
of hazardous materials and wastes; environmental cleanup; and the health and safety of our employees. Environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations
continue to evolve, and we may become subject to increasingly stringent environmental standards in the future, particularly related to air quality and water
quality, which could require us to make changes to our operations or incur significant costs relating to compliance. We are also required to obtain and maintain
environmental, health and safety permits and approvals for our facilities and operations. In addition, the potential impacts of climate change on our operations are
highly uncertain. Although the financial impact of these potential changes is not reasonably estimable at this time, our operations in certain locations and those of
our customers and suppliers could potentially be adversely affected, which could adversely affect our sales, profitability and cash flows. Our failure to comply
with such laws, regulations, permits and approvals could subject us to increased employee healthcare and workers’ compensation costs, liabilities, fines and other
penalties or compliance costs, and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks Relating to Our Business: Growth Strategy

We are subject to various risks relating to our growth strategy . In pursuing our growth strategy, we intend to expand our presence in existing markets, enter
new markets and pursue acquisitions and joint ventures to complement our business. Many of the expenses arising from expansion efforts may have a negative
effect on operating results until such time, if at all, that these expenses are offset by increased revenues. We cannot assure that we will be able to improve our
market share or profitability, recover our expenditures or successfully implement our growth strategy.

The expansion strategy also may require substantial capital investment for the construction of new facilities and their effective operation. We can give no
assurance that additional financing will be available on terms favorable to us, or at all.

We may fail to successfully acquire or integrate companies that provide complementary products or technologies.  A key component of our growth
strategy and financial goals depends upon our ability to successfully identify and integrate acquisition targets that complement our existing products and services.
Such a strategy involves the potential risks inherent in assessing the value, strengths, weaknesses, contingent or other liabilities, and potential profitability of
acquisition candidates, as well as integrating the operations of acquired companies. In addition, any acquisitions of businesses with foreign operations or sales
may increase our exposure to risks inherent in doing business outside the U.S. From time to time, we may have acquisition discussions with potential target
companies both domestically and internationally. Any acquisition may or may not occur and, if an acquisition does occur, it may not be successful in enhancing
our business for one or more of the following reasons:
 • Any business acquired may not be integrated successfully and may not prove profitable;
 • The price we pay for any business acquired may overstate the value of that business or otherwise be too high;
 • Liabilities we take on through the acquisition may prove to be higher than we expected;
 • Impairment of relationships with employees and customers of the business acquired, as a result of the change in ownership;
 • We may fail to achieve acquisition synergies; or
 • The focus on the integration of operations of acquired entities may divert management’s attention from the day-to-day operation of our

businesses.

Inherent in any future acquisition is the risk of transitioning company cultures and facilities. The failure to efficiently and effectively achieve such transitions
could increase our costs and decrease our profitability.

We also may incur significant costs such as transaction fees, professional service fees and other costs related to future acquisitions, as well as integration costs
following the completion of any such acquisitions. Although we expect that the realization of efficiencies related to the integration of any acquired businesses
will offset the incremental transaction and acquisition-related costs over time, this net financial benefit may not be achieved in the near term, or at all.
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We are subject to intense competition. Our products in both the Hydraulics and Electronics segments currently, and will continue to, face significant
competition, both from other companies and from incumbent technologies. In the case of our Hydraulics segment, some of our competitors are full-line hydraulic
system producers and others are niche suppliers like us. In the case of our Electronics segment, our competitors include companies that have substantially longer
operating histories, larger customer bases, name recognition, and financial and marketing resources than we do. Our competitors also include companies that
have emerged in low cost production areas such as Asia and Eastern Europe with look-alike products. We believe that we compete with our competitors based
upon quality, reliability, price, value, speed of delivery and technological characteristics. However, we cannot provide assurance that we will continue to be able
to compete effectively with these companies.

Currently, certain of our customers purchase parts or products from us to meet a specific need in a system that cannot be filled by a component that they make
themselves. However, given their superior technological capabilities and financial resources, our competitors could be engaged in the internal development of
products and technologies that are similar to, or may compete with, certain of our products and technologies.

The future prospects for our products are dependent upon our customers ’ acceptance of our products as an alternative to their internally developed products.
Future sales prospects also are dependent upon acceptance of third-party sourcing for products as an alternative to in-house development. In the future, customers
may continue to use internally developed components. They also may decide to develop or acquire products that are similar to, or that may be substituted for, our
products.

We also sell products into competitive markets. Within our primary markets, we compete with a range of companies that offer certain individual components of
our full system solutions. Particularly within our Electronics segment, the components of our overall systems most commonly include displays, panels, sensors,
valves, and other end-devices. If our customers fail to accept our full system products or seek to internally develop alternatives to our full system products using
component parts sourced from our competitors, or if we are otherwise unable to develop or maintain strong relationships with our customers, our business,
financial condition and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected.

Competitive actions, such as price reductions, consolidation in the industry, improved delivery and other actions, could adversely affect our revenue and
earnings. We could experience a material adverse effect to the extent that our competitors are successful in reducing our customers’ purchases of products and
services from us. Competition could also cause us to lower our prices, which could reduce our margins and profitability.
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Risks Relating to Our Business: Operations

If we are unable to continue our technological innovation and successful introduction of new commercial products in an efficient, cost-effective manner,
our business will be adversely affected. Our business involves a significant level of product development activities, generally in connection with our
customers’ development activities. Industry standards, customer expectations or other products may emerge that could render one or more of our products or
services less desirable or obsolete. Maintaining our market position requires continued investment in research and development, particularly in the Electronics
segment, which experiences ongoing technological change and product improvement. Our future growth will depend on our ability to gauge the direction of the
commercial and technological progress in our markets, as well as our ability to acquire new product technologies or to fund and successfully develop,
manufacture and market products in this constantly changing environment. During an economic downturn or a subsequent recovery, we may need to maintain our
investment in research and development, which may limit our ability to reduce these expenses in proportion to a sales shortfall. In addition, increased
investments in research and development may divert resources from other potential investments in our business, such as acquisitions or investments in our
facilities, processes and operations. If these activities are not as successful as currently anticipated, are not completed on a timely basis, or are more costly than
currently anticipated, or if we are not able to produce newly developed products at a cost that meets the anticipated product cost structure, then our future sales,
margins and/or earnings could be lower than expected, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows. Further, if we fail to keep pace with evolving technological innovations in the markets we serve, our business will be adversely affected.

We are subject to fluctuations in the prices of parts and raw materials, and dependent on our suppliers of these parts. We are dependent upon suppliers
for parts and raw materials used in the manufacture of components that we sell to our customers, and some of our raw material costs are subject to commodity
market price fluctuations. We may experience an increase in costs for parts or raw materials that we source from our suppliers, or we may experience a shortage
of parts or raw materials for various reasons, such as the loss of a significant supplier, high overall demand creating shortages in parts and supplies we use,
financial distress, work stoppages, natural disasters, fluctuations in commodity prices or production difficulties that may affect one or more of our suppliers. In
particular, current or future global economic uncertainty may affect our key suppliers in terms of their operating cash flow and access to financing. This may, in
turn, affect their ability to perform their obligations to us. In addition, quality and sourcing issues that our suppliers may experience can also adversely affect the
quality and effectiveness of our products and services and may result in liability or reputational harm to us. Our customers rely on us to provide on-time delivery
and have certain rights if our delivery standards are not maintained. A significant increase in our supply costs, including for raw materials that are subject to
commodity price fluctuations, or a protracted interruption of supplies for any reason, could result in the delay of one or more of our customer contracts, or could
damage our reputation and relationships with our customers. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Unforeseen or recurring operational problems at any of our facilities, or other catastrophic loss of one of our key manufacturing facilities, may cause
significant lost production and adversely affect our results of operations.  Our manufacturing process could be affected by operational problems that could
impair our production capability. Many of our manufacturing facilities contain high cost and sophisticated machines that are used in our manufacturing
processes. Disruptions or shutdowns at any of our facilities could be caused by: 
 • maintenance outages to conduct maintenance activities that cannot be performed safely during operations;
 • prolonged power failures or reductions;
 • breakdown, failure or substandard performance of any of our machines or other equipment;
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 • noncompliance with, and liabilities related to, environmental requirements or permits;
 • disruptions in the transportation infrastructure, including railroad tracks, bridges, tunnels or roads;
 • fires, floods, earthquakes, tornadoes, hurricanes, microbursts or other catastrophic disasters, national emergencies, political unrest, war or

terrorist activities; or
 • other operational problems.

If some of our facilities are shut down, they may experience prolonged startup periods, regardless of the reason for the shutdown. Those startup periods could
range from several days to several weeks or longer, depending on the reason for the shutdown and other factors. Any prolonged disruption in operations at any of
our facilities could cause a significant loss of production and adversely affect our results of operations and negatively impact our customers and dealers.

We currently have operations located in geographies susceptible to severe weather events, such as hurricanes, floods, earthquakes and tornadoes. A  catastrophic
event, whether resulting from severe weather or otherwise, could result in the loss of the use of all or a portion of one of our manufacturing facilities. Although
we carry property and business interruption insurance, our coverage may not be adequate to compensate us for all losses that may occur. Any of these events
individually or in the aggregate could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. 

A disruption in our supply chain or other factors impacting the distribution of our products could adversely affect our business . A disruption within our
logistics or supply chain network at any of the freight companies that deliver components for our manufacturing operations or ship our fully-assembled products
to our customers could adversely affect our business and result in lost sales or harm to our reputation. Our supply chain is dependent on third-party ocean-going
container ships, rail, barge and trucking systems and, therefore, disruption in these logistics services because of weather-related problems, strikes, bankruptcies
or other events could adversely affect our financial performance and financial condition, negatively impacting sales, profitability and cash flows.  Additionally,
we rely on supplied labor through a third-party provider to support key operations in Mexico.  A disruption in the ability of this provider to deliver qualified
personnel and to operate our facility in Mexico could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Risks Relating to Our Business: Financial

We may need additional capital in the future, and it may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. We may require additional capital in the future to:
 • fund our operations;
 • finance investments in equipment and infrastructure needed to maintain and expand our manufacturing and distribution capabilities;
 • enhance and expand the range of products we offer; and
 • respond to potential strategic opportunities, such as investments, acquisitions, and international expansion.

We can give no assurance that additional financing will be available on terms favorable to us, or at all. The terms of available financing may place limits on our
financial and operating flexibility. If adequate funds are not available on acceptable terms, we may be forced to reduce our operations or to delay, limit or
abandon expansion opportunities. Moreover, even if we are able to continue our operations, the failure to obtain additional financing could reduce our
competitiveness. Our senior credit facility limits our ability to incur additional debt and therefore we likely would have to issue additional equity to raise
additional capital. If we issue additional equity, a shareholder’s interest in us will be diluted.
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Our existing indebtedness could adversely affect our business and growth prospects. As of January 2, 2021, we had total indebtedness of approximately
$462 million. Our indebtedness, or any additional indebtedness we may incur, could require us to divert funds identified for other purposes for debt service and
impair our liquidity position. If we cannot generate sufficient cash flow from operations to service our debt, we may need to refinance our debt, dispose of assets
or issue equity to obtain necessary funds. We do not know whether we would be able to take any of these actions on a timely basis, on terms satisfactory to us or
at all.

Our indebtedness, the cash flow needed to satisfy our debt and the covenants contained in our senior credit facility have important consequences, including:
 • limiting funds otherwise available for financing our capital expenditures by requiring us to dedicate a portion of our cash flows from operations

to the repayment of debt and the interest on this debt;
 • limiting our ability to incur additional indebtedness;
 • limiting our ability to capitalize on significant business opportunities;
 • placing us at a competitive disadvantage to those of our competitors that are less indebted than we are;
 • making us more vulnerable to rising interest rates; and
 • making us more vulnerable in the event of a downturn in our business.

More specifically, under the terms of our senior credit facility, we have agreed to certain financial covenants. In addition, our senior credit facility places
limitations on our ability to acquire other companies. Any failure by us to comply with the financial or other covenants set forth in our senior credit facility in the
future, if not cured or waived, could result in our senior lender accelerating the maturity of our indebtedness or preventing us from accessing availability under
our senior credit facility. If the maturity of our indebtedness is accelerated, we may not have sufficient cash resources to satisfy our debt obligations and we may
not be able to continue our operations as planned.

If our long-lived assets, goodwill or other intangible assets become impaired, we may be required to record significant non-cash charges to our earnings.
We recognize impairments of goodwill when the fair value of any of our reporting units becomes less than its carrying value. Our estimates of fair value are
based on assumptions about future cash flows of each reporting unit, discount rates applied to these cash flows and current market estimates of value. Based on
the uncertainty of future revenue growth rates and other assumptions used to estimate our reporting units’ fair value, future reductions in our expected cash flows
could cause material non-cash impairment charges, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. We also have
certain long-lived assets and other intangible assets which could be at risk of impairment or may require reserves based upon anticipated future benefits to be
derived from such assets. Any change in the valuation of such assets could have a material effect on our profitability.

Fluctuations in exchange rates may affect our operating results and impact our financial condition. Fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar may
increase or decrease our sales or earnings. Because our consolidated financial results are reported in U.S. dollars, when we generate sales or earnings in other
currencies, or we pay expenses in other currencies, the translation of those results into U.S. dollars can result in a significant increase or decrease in the reported
amount of those sales or earnings. If the U.S. dollar strengthens relative to the value of the local currency, we may be less competitive. In addition, our debt
service requirements are predominantly in U.S. dollars and a portion of our cash flow is generated in British pounds, euros and other foreign currencies.
Significant changes in the value of the foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar could impair our cash flow, results of operations and financial condition.
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In addition, fluctuations in currencies relative to the U.S. dollar may make it more difficult to perform period-to-period comparisons of our reported results of
operations. For purposes of accounting, the assets and liabilities of our foreign operations, where the local currency is the functional currency, are translated
using period-end exchange rates, and the revenues and expenses of our foreign operations are translated using average exchange rates during each period.

In addition to currency translation risks, we incur currency transaction risk whenever we enter into either a purchase or a sales transaction using a currency other
than U.S. dollars. Given the volatility of exchange rates, we may not be able to effectively manage our currency or translation risks. Volatility in currency
exchange rates may decrease our sales and profitability and impair our financial condition. We periodically evaluate our need to hedge our exposures to foreign
currencies and enter into forward foreign exchange contracts as we deem necessary.

Changes in tax rates, laws or regulations and the resolution of tax disputes could adversely impact our financial results. As a global company, we are
subject to taxation in the U.S. and numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required to determine our consolidated income tax provision and
related liabilities. The Company’s effective tax rate, cash flows and operating results could be affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with
different statutory tax rates, as well as by changes in the local tax laws and regulations, or the interpretations thereof. On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act (“TCJA”) was signed into law. The TCJA made comprehensive changes to U.S. federal income tax laws, including lowering the statutory rate and
moving from a global to a modified territorial tax regime. As the U.S. Department of Treasury and the IRS continue to issue regulations interpreting the
implications of the TCJA, we continue to examine the impact that this tax reform legislation may have on our business. In addition, the Company’s tax returns
are subject to regular review and audit by U.S. and non-U.S. tax authorities. While we believe our tax provisions are appropriate, the final outcome of tax audits
or disputes could result in adjustments to the Company’s tax liabilities, which could adversely affect our financial results.

Risks Relating to Our Business: Intellectual Property

The inability to protect our intellectual property could reduce or eliminate any competitive advantage and reduce our sales and profitability, and the
cost of protecting our intellectual property may be significant.  We have obtained and applied for some U.S. and foreign trademark and patent registrations
and will continue to evaluate the registration of additional trademarks and patents, as appropriate. We cannot guarantee that any of our pending patent and
trademark applications will be approved. Moreover, even if the applications are approved, third parties may seek to oppose or otherwise challenge them. An
inability to obtain registrations in the U.S. or elsewhere could limit our ability to protect our trademarks and technologies and could impede our business. Further,
the protection of our intellectual property rights may require expensive investment in protracted litigation and substantial management time, and there is no
assurance we ultimately would prevail or that a successful outcome would lead to an economic benefit that is greater than the investment in the litigation. In the
Electronics segment, the patents in our portfolio are scheduled to expire at various dates through 2038. In the Hydraulics segment, the patents in our portfolio are
schedule to expire at various dates through 2040.  

We may also face difficulties protecting our intellectual property rights in foreign countries. The laws of foreign countries in which our products are sold or
manufactured may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the U.S. For example, we are increasing our technical capabilities
and sales in China, where laws may not afford the same intellectual property protections.
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If we are alleged to have infringed upon the intellectual property rights owned by others, our business and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected. Competitors or other third parties may allege that we, or consultants or other third parties retained or indemnified by us, infringe on their
intellectual property rights. We also may face allegations that our employees have misappropriated intellectual property rights of their former employers or other
third parties. From time to time, we receive notices from other companies that allege we may be infringing certain of their patents or other rights. If we are
unable to resolve these matters satisfactorily, or to obtain licenses on acceptable terms, we may face litigation. Given the potential risks and uncertainties of
intellectual property-related litigation, the assertion of an infringement claim against us may cause us to spend significant amounts to defend the claim (even if
we ultimately prevail), pay significant money damages, lose significant revenues, be prohibited from using the relevant technologies or other intellectual
property rights, cease offering certain products or services, or incur significant license royalty, or technology development expenses. Even in instances where we
believe that claims and allegations of intellectual property infringement against us are without merit, defending against such claims is time consuming and
expensive and could result in the diversion of time and attention of our management and employees. In addition, although in some cases a third party may have
agreed to indemnify us for such costs, such indemnifying party may refuse or be unable to uphold its contractual obligations.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets, our business and competitive position would be harmed.  We maintain trade secrets,
confidential, and proprietary information in the course and scope of our business. In the Electronics segment particularly, we rely significantly on trade secrets
such as unpatented software algorithms, know-how, technology and other proprietary information to maintain our competitive position. We seek to protect
software algorithms through encryption mechanisms in the distribution of our binary files used in programming our engine control products. However, we cannot
guarantee that these encryption techniques can protect all or any portion of these binary files. In practice, we seek to protect our trade secrets by entering into
non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with parties who have access to them, such as our employees, corporate collaborators, outside scientific
collaborators, contract manufacturers, consultants, advisors and other third parties. The agreements obligate them to assign to us any inventions developed in the
course of their work for us. However, we cannot guarantee that we have executed these agreements with each party that may have or has had access to our trade
secrets or that the agreements we have executed will provide adequate protection. Despite these efforts, any of these parties may breach the agreements and
disclose our proprietary information, including our trade secrets, and we may not be able to obtain adequate remedies for such breaches. As a result, we may be
forced to bring claims against third parties, or defend claims that they bring against us, to determine ownership of what we regard as our intellectual property.
Monitoring unauthorized disclosure is difficult and we do not know whether the procedures we have followed to prevent such disclosure are, or will be,
adequate. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult, expensive and time-consuming, and the outcome is
unpredictable. In addition, some courts inside and outside the U.S. may be less willing or unwilling to protect trade secrets. If any of our trade secrets were to be
disclosed to, or independently developed by, a competitor, our competitive position would be harmed, which could have an adverse effect on our business and
financial condition.

Our use of open source software may expose us to additional risks. We use open source software in our business, including in some of our products. While
we try to monitor all use of open source software in our business to ensure that no open source software is used in such a way as to require us to disclose the
source code to critical or fundamental elements of our software or technology, we cannot be certain that such use may not have inadvertently occurred in
deploying our solutions. Furthermore, the terms of many open source licenses have not been interpreted by U.S. courts. As a result, there is a risk that these
licenses could be construed in a way that could impose unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our products. The risks associated
with usage of open source software cannot be eliminated and could potentially have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.
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Risks Relating to Our Business: Other

We are subject to risks relating to international sales.  International sales represent a significant proportion of our consolidated sales.  Approximately 62%
and 59% of our net sales were outside of the U.S. during 2020 and 2019, respectively. We will continue to expand the scope of operations outside the U.S., both
through direct investment and distribution, and expect that international sales will continue to account for a substantial portion of net sales in future periods.

Our future results could be harmed by a variety of factors, including:
 • changes in the political and economic conditions in the countries in which we operate, including civil uprisings and terrorist acts;
 • unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;
 • the imposition of duties and tariffs and other trade barriers;
 • import and export controls;
 • potentially negative consequences from changes in U.S. and international tax laws;
 • fluctuations in currency exchange rates and the value of the U.S. dollar;
 • exchange controls and currency restrictions;
 • expropriation of property without fair compensation;
 • governmental actions that result in the deprivation of contract or proprietary rights;
 • the acceptance of business practices that are not consistent with or are antithetical to prevailing business practices we are accustomed to in the

U.S., including bribery and corruption;
 • difficulty in staffing and managing geographically widespread operations;
 • the unionization of, or increased union activity, such as strikes or work stoppages, with respect to, our workforce outside the U.S.;
 • differing labor regulations;
 • global and/or regional pandemics;
 • requirements relating to withholding taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiaries;
 • different regulatory regimes controlling the protection of our intellectual property;
 • difficulty in enforcement of contractual obligations under non-U.S. law;
 • refusal or inability of foreign banks to make payment on letters of credit in connection with foreign sales, and our inability to collect from our

foreign customers in such circumstances;
 • restrictions on our ability to own or operate subsidiaries, repatriate dividends or earnings from our foreign subsidiaries, or to make investments or

acquire new businesses in these jurisdictions; and
 • the burden of complying with multiple and potentially conflicting laws.

24
 



 

Our international operations and sales also expose us to different local political, regulatory and business risks and challenges. For example, we are faced with
potential difficulties in staffing and managing local operations and we have to design local solutions to manage credit and legal risks of local customers and
channel partners, which may not be effective. In addition, because some of our international sales are to suppliers that perform work for foreign governments, we
are subject to the political and legal risks associated with foreign government projects. For example, certain foreign governments may require suppliers for a
project to obtain products solely from local manufacturers or may prohibit the use of products manufactured in certain countries.

International growth and expansion into markets such as Europe, Asia and Latin America may cause us difficulty due to greater regulatory barriers than in the
U.S., the necessity of adapting to new regulatory systems, problems related to entering new markets with different economic, social and political systems and
conditions, and significant competition from the primary participants in these markets, some of which may have substantially greater resources and political
influence than we do. For example, unstable political conditions or civil unrest could negatively impact our order levels and sales in a region or our ability to
collect receivables from customers or operate or execute projects in a region.

We are dependent upon key individuals and skilled personnel. Our success depends, to some extent, upon a number of key individuals. The loss of the
services of one or more of these individuals could have a material adverse effect on our business. Future operating results depend to a significant degree upon the
continued contribution of key management, technical personnel and the skilled labor force. As the Company continues to expand internationally, additional
management and other key personnel will be needed. Competition for management and engineering personnel is intense, and other employers may have greater
financial and other resources to attract and retain these employees. We conduct a substantial part of our operations in Sarasota, Florida; Tulsa, Oklahoma; Rivolta
D’adda, Italy; various locations across Australia; Costa Mesa, California and Baja, Mexico. Our continued success is dependent on our ability to attract and
retain a skilled labor force at these locations. There are no assurances that we will continue to be successful in attracting and retaining the personnel required to
develop, manufacture and market our products and expand our operations.

Increased IT security threats and more sophisticated and targeted computer crime could pose a risk to our systems, networks, products, solutions and
services. We are dependent on various information technologies throughout our Company to administer, store and support multiple business activities. Increased
global IT security threats and more sophisticated and targeted computer crime pose a risk to the security of our systems and networks and the confidentiality,
availability and integrity of our data. While we attempt to mitigate these risks by employing a number of measures, including employee training, comprehensive
monitoring of our networks and systems, and maintenance of backup and protective systems, our systems, networks, products, solutions and services remain
potentially vulnerable to advanced persistent threats. Depending on their nature and scope, such threats could potentially lead to the compromising of confidential
information, improper use of our systems and networks, manipulation and destruction of data, defective products, production downtimes, and operational
disruptions, which in turn could adversely affect our reputation, competitiveness, and results of operations.

Due to the nature of our business and products, we may be liable for damages based on product liability and other tort and warranty claims. We face
an inherent risk of exposure to claims in the event that the failure, use or misuse of our products results, or is alleged to result, in death, bodily injury, property
damage, or economic loss. In the past, we have been subject to product liability claims relating to our products, and we may be subject to additional product
liability claims in the future for both past and current products.
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Although we currently maintain product liability coverage, which we believe to be adequate for the continued operation of our business, such insurance may
become difficult or impossible to obtain in the future on terms acceptable to us. Moreover, our insurance coverage includes customary exclusions and conditions,
may not cover certain specialized applications and generally does not cover warranty or recall claims. A successful product liability claim or series of claims
against us, including one or more consumer claims purporting to constitute class actions or claims resulting from extraordinary loss events, in excess of or outside
our insurance coverage, or a significant warranty claim or series of claims against us, could materially decrease our liquidity, impair our financial condition and
adversely affect our results of operations. Furthermore, regardless of the outcome, product liability claims can be expensive to defend, divert the attention of
management and other personnel for significant periods of time and cause reputational damage.

We are subject to a variety of claims, investigations and litigation that could adversely affect our results of operations and harm our reputation.  In the
normal course of our business, we are subject to claims and lawsuits, including from time to time claims for damages related to product liability and warranties,
investigations by governmental agencies, litigation alleging the infringement of intellectual property rights and litigation related to employee matters and
commercial disputes. Defending these lawsuits and becoming involved in these investigations may divert our management’s attention, and may cause us to incur
significant expenses, even if there is no evidence that our systems or components were the cause of the claim. In addition, we may be required to pay damage
awards, penalties or settlements, or become subject to injunctions or other equitable remedies, that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. Moreover, any insurance or indemnification rights that we have may be insufficient or unavailable to protect us
against potential loss exposures.

We are subject to risks related to sustainability, corporate social responsibility and reputation.  Many factors influence our reputation and the value of our
brands including the perception held by our customers, business partners, investors, other key stakeholders and the communities in which we do business. Our
business faces increasing scrutiny related to environmental, social and governance activities and disclosures and risk of damage to our reputation and the value of
our brands if we fail to act responsibly in a number of areas, such as environmental stewardship, supply chain management, climate change, diversity and
inclusion, workplace conduct, human rights, philanthropy and support for local communities. Any harm to our reputation could impact employee engagement
and retention and the willingness of customers and our partners to do business with us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and cash flows. In addition, how governments act to mitigate climate and related environmental risks, as well as associated changes in the behavior
and preferences of businesses and consumers, could have an adverse effect on our business and financial results. Changes in climate and related environmental
risks, perceptions of them, and governmental responses to them, may also occur more rapidly than we are able to adapt without disrupting our business and
impairing our financial results.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

Future sales of our common stock in the public market or the issuance of securities senior to our common stock could adversely affect the trading price
of our common stock and our ability to raise funds in new stock offerings. Sales by us or our shareholders of a substantial number of shares of our common
stock in the public markets, or the perception that these sales might occur, could cause the market price of our common stock to decline or could impair our
ability to raise capital through a future sale of, or pay for acquisitions using, our equity securities.

We may issue common stock or equity securities senior to our common stock in the future for a number of reasons, including to finance our operations and
business strategy, as consideration in acquisitions or for other reasons. We cannot predict the effect, if any, that future sales or issuances of shares of our common
stock or other equity securities, or the availability of shares of our common stock or any other equity securities for future sale or issuance, will have on the
trading price of our common stock.
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Additional issuances of equity securities would dilute the ownership of existing shareholders and could reduce our earnings per share.  We may issue equity
securities in the future in connection with capital raising activities, acquisitions, strategic transactions or for other purposes. To the extent we issue additional
equity securities, the ownership of our existing shareholders would be diluted and our earnings per share could be reduced.

We may not pay dividends on our common stock. Holders of our common stock are only entitled to receive such dividends as our board of directors may
declare out of funds legally available for such payments and as permitted by our debt agreements. Although historically we have paid a continuous quarterly
dividend and a periodic special dividend, we are not required to declare cash dividends on our common stock, and the payment of future quarterly and special
dividends is subject to the discretion of our board of directors. In determining the amount of any future quarterly or special dividends, our board of directors will
consider economic and market conditions, our financial condition and operating results. Any change in our historical dividend practice could adversely affect the
market price of our common stock. If our board of directors decides not to pay dividends in the future, then a return on investment in our common stock will only
occur if our stock price appreciates. 

27
 



 

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES

Corporate Office

We lease office space in Sarasota, FL that is used as our corporate headquarters.

Segments

The table below presents information on the primary operating facilities in our Hydraulics and Electronics segments. These locations are generally used for
manufacturing and distribution activities as well as sales, engineering and administrative functions.

Hydraulics Segment  
 Square Footage (in thousands)  

Region Owned   Leased   Total  
U.S.  1,083    62    1,145  
Europe  91    763    854  
Asia/Pacific  59    184    243  
Total  1,233    1,009    2,242  
            

Electronics Segment  
 Square Footage (in thousands)  

Region Owned   Leased   Total  
U.S.  179    310    489  
Europe  18    7    25  
Asia/Pacific  —    7    7  
Total  197    324    521

In addition to our primary operating facilities, we also lease office space that is used for sales, engineering and administrative activities in Argentina, Australia,
Brazil, China, Germany, India and Vietnam.

We believe that our properties have been adequately maintained, are generally in good condition, and are suitable and adequate for our business as presently
conducted. The extent of utilization of our properties varies from time to time and among our facilities.

ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are involved in routine litigation incidental to the conduct of our business.  We do not believe that any pending litigation will have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our Common Stock has been trading publicly under the symbol HLIO on the Nasdaq Global Select Market since June 17, 2019 and previously under the symbol
SNHY since our initial public offering on January 9, 1997.

Holders

There were 185 shareholders of record of Common Stock on February 19, 2021. The number of record holders was determined from the records of our transfer
agent and does not include beneficial owners of Common Stock whose shares are held in the names of securities brokers, dealers, and registered clearing
agencies.  

Dividends

We have historically paid regular quarterly dividends of $0.09 per share. Our board of directors currently intends to continue to pay a quarterly dividend of $0.09
per share during 2021. However, the declaration and payment of future dividends is subject to the sole discretion of the board of directors, and any determination
as to the payment of future dividends will depend upon our profitability, financial condition, capital needs, acquisition opportunities, future prospects and other
factors deemed pertinent by the board of directors.

Equity Compensation Plans

Information called for by Item 5 is provided in Note 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report (Item 8 of this
report).

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not repurchase any of our stock during the years ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019.
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Five-Year Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares cumulative total return among Helios, the Russell 2000 Index and the Dow Jones US Diversified Industries Index, from January
2, 2016, to January 2, 2021, assuming $100 invested in each on January 2, 2016. Total return assumes reinvestment of any dividends for all companies
considered within the comparison.  The stock price performance shown in the graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.

 1/2/2016   12/31/2016   12/30/2017   12/29/2018   12/28/2019   1/2/2021  
Helios Technologies  100.00    27.50    62.95    (48.09 )   37.62    18.24  
Russell 2000 Index  100.00    21.31    14.65    (11.72 )   26.50    19.99  
Dow Jones US Diversified Industries Index  100.00    10.96    (6.59 )   (25.70 )   28.20    12.22
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ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following summary should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes contained herein.  See
"Item 7.  Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Item 1.  Business."

We report on a fiscal year that ends on the Saturday closest to December 31st. Each quarter generally consists of thirteen weeks, with a fourteen-week quarter
occurring periodically. The 2020 fiscal year contained 53 weeks, with a fourteen-week fourth quarter, and ended January 2, 2021. Fiscal years 2016 through
2019 contained 52 weeks.  

  Year ended  
  Jan 2, 2021   Dec 28, 2019   Dec 29, 2018   Dec 30, 2017   Dec 31, 2016  
  (in thousands except per share data)  

Statement of Operations:                     
Net sales  $ 523,040   $ 554,665   $ 508,045   $ 342,839   $ 196,934  
Gross profit   196,228    212,282    192,683    136,525    71,349  
Operating income   35,412    90,115    75,554    61,491    34,459  
Income before income taxes   24,047    75,307    56,395    47,544    34,901  
Net income   14,218    60,268    46,730    31,558    23,304  
Basic and diluted net income per common share   0.44    1.88    1.49    1.17    0.87  
Dividends declared per share   0.36    0.36    0.36    0.38    0.40  

Other Financial Data:                     
Depreciation and amortization  $ 39,695   $ 35,215   $ 39,714   $ 19,190   $ 11,318  
Capital expenditures   14,580    25,025    28,380    22,205    6,187  

Balance Sheet Data:                     
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 25,216   $ 22,123   $ 23,477   $ 63,882   $ 74,221  
Working capital   126,007    116,136    103,866    100,913    110,192  
Total assets   1,296,979    1,021,751    1,042,165    459,766    444,777  
Total debt   462,385    300,393    352,685    116,000    140,000  
Shareholders’ equity   607,790    577,636    530,768    272,673    236,397

 
Our acquisition activity impacts the comparability of the selected financial information presented above. We completed the following acquisitions during the
periods presented above: Enovation Controls, LLC acquired on December 5, 2016, Faster S.r.l. acquired on April 5, 2018, Custom Fluidpower Pty Ltd acquired
on August 1, 2018 and Balboa Water Group acquired on November 6, 2020. The results of operations and estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are included in our financial statements for all periods subsequent to the acquisition dates. Additional details of our acquisitions are provided in Note 3
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report (Item 8 of this report).

Comparability of the selected financial data is further impacted by a goodwill impairment charge totaling $31.9 million, recognized in the 2020 fiscal year as a
result of the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy. Additional details are provided in Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report (Item 8 of this report).
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The operating results of the Hydraulics and Electronics segments included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations are presented on a basis consistent with our internal management reporting. Segment information included in Note 16 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report is also presented on this basis. All differences between our internal management reporting
basis and accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“U.S. GAAP”), specifically the allocation of certain corporate and acquisition-related costs, are
included in Corporate and Other.

Overview

We are an industrial technology leader that develops and manufactures solutions for both the hydraulics and electronics markets, each of which serves as a
reportable segment. We were originally founded in 1970 as Sun Hydraulics Corporation, which designed and manufactured cartridge valves for hydraulics
systems. We changed the Company’s legal name on June 13, 2019, from Sun Hydraulics Corporation to Helios Technologies, Inc.

On June 17, 2019, shares of Helios began trading on the Nasdaq under the new ticker symbol “HLIO”.

Strategic Vision

Our strategic goals are to achieve $1 billion in sales through a combination of organic growth and acquisitions, while remaining a technology leader and
delivering superior profitability, with operating margins in excess of 20%. We are augmenting our strategy with value streams that will help us to execute our
goals and potentially accelerate the achievement of our strategic vision.

We believe the value streams will deliver growth, diversification and market leading financial performance as we develop into a more sophisticated, globally
oriented, customer centric and learning organization. These are:
 1. Protect the business through customer centricity and drive cash generation through the launch of new products and leveraging existing products;
 2. Think and act globally to better leverage our assets, accelerate innovation and diversify end markets by driving intra- and inter-company initiatives

and by building in the region for the region;
 3. Create greater opportunities for growth while reducing risk and cyclicality by diversifying our markets and sources of revenue by swarming

commercial opportunities that leverage our products and technologies’ value in new markets such as defense and commercial food service; and
 4. Develop our talent, our most critical resource, through a culture of customer-centricity through the embracement of diversity, engagement of the

team, focus on shared, deeply rooted values and promotion of a learning organization.

Our strategy is underpinned by the execution of acquisitions, which we expect to include bolt-on flywheel type acquisitions (up to $100 million in enterprise
value) and the evaluation of more transformative acquisitions ($100 million to $1 billion in enterprise value). The objective of our acquisition strategy is to
enhance Helios by:
 • Growing our current product portfolio or adding new technologies and capabilities that complement our current offerings;
 • Expanding geographic presence; and
 • Bringing new customers or markets.

To support the execution of our strategy, our financial strategy is oriented on delivering industry leading margins, a strong balance sheet and sufficient financial
flexibility to support organic and acquisitive growth.
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We align our internal key performance indicators with our strategy to ensure our  short-term actions will deliver long-term expectations.

We employ several tactics to execute our strategies, which include capitalizing on our unique and deeply rooted values, structured human capital development
and differentiated engineering for both products and processes.

Continued product development is a key factor to organic and synergistic growth in both the Hydraulics and Electronics segments, including joint development
between the two segments.

In the Hydraulics segment, we continue to invest in our FLeX series of electro-hydraulic cartridge valves for the mobile and industrial markets in both high
and low pressure applications. We have already released over 25 new FLeX series valves and will have a significant number of additional introductions to
the FLeX family. These products allow us to compete in parts of the market where we could not before, including complete valve solutions. Investments in
sustaining engineering and simulation development are delivering performance improvements of our existing valves by reducing manufacturing costs
through improved first pass yield. In addition, the sophistication process of coupling solutions and the electrification of these products has now entered the
second phase of its development. We have identified new products to be developed and tested with selected customers with the goal of reinforcing the
technological advantage we have historically had and so that we can continue to expand in this market.

In the Electronics segment, we have launched our new line of ACE™-configurable MCx controllers. Built for market flexibility, the MCx controller series
empowers original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) and distribution partners with a machine control hardware and software system solution that can be
easily adapted to any application using our intuitive ACE configuration software or the widely used CODESYS platform. ACE software allows users to
quickly build a solution using our patented drag-and-drop coding blocks and makes it easy to rapidly incorporate Sun Hydraulics’ components and Enovation
Controls’ customizable displays into a project. MCx hardware and ACE software, combined with Sun's XMD drivers and FLeX Series directional valves,
provide customers a complete solution for a wide range of electro-hydraulic control applications. Enovation Controls has also launched a complete family of
edge-to-edge connected PowerView displays for existing recreational and off-highway customers. With new smaller, higher-resolution screen sizes to fit the
needs of customers, this new platform has brought us significant new customer wins.

Acquisitions

Our acquisition activity, driven by our strategic vision, has enabled us to diversify our product offerings and the markets we serve and expand our geographic
presence. Prior to 2016, we operated primarily in the Hydraulics market with a small presence in electronics. Since our acquisitions of Enovation Controls in
2016 and Faster and Custom Fluidpower in 2018, we have entered into several new markets, including, marine, power generation, recreational vehicles and
mining. We have also expanded our presence in the agricultural, construction equipment, general industrial and material handling end markets. Our product and
service portfolio has grown significantly to include quick release hydraulic coupling solutions, complete system design, installation and commissioning,
hydraulic system service and repairs, traditional mechanical and electronic gauge instrumentation, plug and go CAN-based instruments, robust environmentally
sealed controllers, engineered panels and application specialists, process monitoring instrumentation, proprietary hardware and software development, printed
circuit board assembly and wiring harness design and manufacturing.

In November 2020 we acquired Balboa Water Group further diversifying the markets we serve and expanding our technological capabilities in electronics.
Balboa is an innovative market leader of electronic controls for the health and wellness industry with proprietary and patented technology that enables end-to-end
electronic control systems for therapy baths and spas. Headquartered in Costa Mesa, California, Balboa’s manufacturing operations are located in Mexico, with
sales and warehouse operations in Denmark. This acquisition expanded our electronic control technology with complementary AC (alternating current)
capabilities and enabled further diversification of end markets.
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In January 2021, we acquired the assets of BJN Technologies, LLC, an innovative engineering solutions provider that was founded in 2014. With the acquisition,
we formed the Helios Center of Engineering Excellence (“Engineering Center”) to centralize our technology advancements and new product development and
better leverage existing talents across the electronics segment initially, and then throughout all of Helios.

Global Economic Conditions

Impact of COVID-19 on our business

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused, and continues to cause, significant economic disruption globally, and substantial uncertainty exists regarding the
magnitude and duration of the pandemic and its economic impact. Broad measures taken by governments, businesses and others to limit the spread of the virus
are adversely affecting the Company and its customers.

Our primary manufacturing locations are currently fully operational but were impacted throughout the year to differing degrees by various COVID-19 related
factors such as:
 • Government mandated facility closures.
 o Our Chinese locations were closed throughout February, after the national holiday, and reopened mid-March at about 50% working

capacity. We gradually resumed full production in China by the end of the first quarter.  
 o Production in our Faster operation located in Italy was shut down for four weeks starting in mid-March. During this time, the facility

was permitted to ship finished goods to essential business customers and continue administrative functions through remote working
capabilities. Production resumed in mid-April and Faster has since remained fully operational.

 o Our US locations are considered essential businesses and remained operational; however, production schedules were adjusted as
needed for deep cleaning and social distancing accommodations.

 • Reduced workforce. Employees are exercising caution and have quarantined when appropriate which has caused a small reduction in the
workforce. We also executed layoffs and furlough programs as cost containment measures.

 • Supply chain constraints. The majority of our suppliers remain open and we have experienced limited disruption to production due to supply
chain issues.

 • Delivery constraints. We experienced some delivery delays towards the end of the first quarter and early in the second quarter, primarily due to
OEM customers in the U.S. and Europe having temporarily shut down.

 • Softening incoming order rates. While we did not experience a significant number of order cancellations during the year, we have experienced
a decline in incoming orders. Some OEM customers have requested to delay order delivery dates into later quarters.

Employees continue to work from home when necessary, and we have taken significant measures to ensure the health and safety of those working at our
facilities.

As of the date of this filing, pandemic related disruptions to our business are minimal. Our outlook for the 2021 fiscal year assumes the global economy
continues to recover, however we cannot at this time predict any future impacts. Refer to Item 1A Risk Factors of this Annual Report for additional COVID-19
related discussion.   
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Brexit

In January 2020, the UK exited the EU. During the transition period, which ended on December 31, 2020, existing arrangements between the UK and the EU
remained in place while the UK and the EU negotiated a free trade agreement that was entered into on December 24, 2020 and went into effect on January 1,
2021. The Company continues to monitor the situation and plan for potential impact. We have considered the following factors that mitigate the potential impact
of Brexit on the import and export of goods to and from the UK:
 • Helios locations outside of the UK do not source raw materials or parts from UK suppliers;
 • Parts and raw materials sourced by our UK locations from EU suppliers can also be sourced from local UK suppliers;
 • EU customers served by our UK entities can be serviced by any of our global subsidiaries;
 • Customers who relocate outside of the UK can be serviced by any of our global subsidiaries; and
 • The level and type of business conducted at our UK entities limits our exposure to new regulatory risk resulting from Brexit.

The ultimate impact of Brexit on the Company’s financial results is uncertain. However, based on the above noted mitigating factors, we do not expect the
effects of Brexit to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

Industry Conditions

Market demand for our products is dependent on demand for the industrial goods in which the products are incorporated.  The capital goods industries in general,
and the Hydraulics and Electronics segments specifically, are subject to economic cycles.  We utilize industry trend reports from various sources, as well as
feedback from customers and distributors, to evaluate economic trends.  We also rely on global government statistics such as Gross Domestic Product and
Purchasing Managers Index to understand higher level economic conditions.

Hydraulics

According to the National Fluid Power Association (the fluid power industry’s trade association in the U.S.), the U.S. index of shipments of hydraulic products
decreased 17% in 2020, after decreasing 7% in 2019 and increasing 13% in 2018. In Europe, the CEMA Business Barometer reports that in February 2021, the
business climate index for the European agricultural machinery industry has risen to a clear boom level after having reached the positive range in October for the
first times since mid-2019. The CECE (Committee for European Construction Equipment) business climate index continued its recovery in November as future
business expectations reached pre-pandemic levels and the climate index hit the neutral line for the first time since March 2020.

Electronics

The Federal Reserve’s Industrial Production Index, which measures the real output of all relevant establishments located in the U.S., reports sales of
semiconductors and other electronics components improved during the fourth quarter of 2020, exceeding fourth quarter 2019 levels. The Institute of Printed
Circuits Association reported that total North American printed circuit board shipments in December 2020 increased 4.5% compared with the same month last
year; compared with November 2020, December shipments grew 9.8%. In our Electronics segment, we experienced declining sales in excess of the overall
market, due to softer demand in recreational and oil and gas end markets as well as a strategic change we made to our customer base during 2019. In addition,
several of our large OEM customers had requested to adjust the timing of order request dates into later quarters. For additional information, refer to the
discussion of 2020 results of our Electronics segment below.
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2020 Results and Comparison of Years Ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019

The following table sets forth our consolidated results of operations:
(in millions except net income per share)  For the year ended          
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   $ Change   % Change  
Net sales  $ 523.0   $ 554.7   $ (31.7 )   (5.7 )%
Gross profit  $ 196.2   $ 212.3   $ (16.1 )   (7.6 )%

Gross profit %   37.5 %  38.3 %        
Operating income  $ 35.4   $ 90.1   $ (54.7 )   (60.7 )%

Operating income %   6.8 %  16.2 %        
Net income  $ 14.2   $ 60.3   $ (46.1 )   (76.5 )%
Basic and diluted net income per common share  $ 0.44   $ 1.88   $ (1.44 )   (76.6 )%

Consolidated net sales for the 2020 year totaled $523.0 million, down 5.7% compared with 2019. The Company’s acquisition of Balboa on November 6, 2020
added $26.1 million in sales for the year. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates favorably impacted sales by $2.0 million for the year. A large portion of the
decline in sales compared with 2019 is attributed to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, customers and end markets. During the month of
April, we experienced a considerable impact on sales due to facility closures, customer shut-downs and regulatory restrictions imposed on shipments. Our
production capabilities recovered throughout the second quarter, with the third quarter returning to more typical levels while order intake remained soft
throughout the year. Towards the end of the year, we began to experience some recovery, with fourth quarter sales of our legacy businesses exceeding second and
third quarter levels driven primarily by demand in the European agriculture market and the U.S. recreational marine market.

From a geographic perspective, excluding the acquisition and foreign currency impacts, our sales to the Americas and EMEA regions were impacted
significantly during the year, declining 20.4% and 9.1% over 2019, respectively. Increased demand and our recent expansion efforts in the APAC region drove
sales growth of 4.6% over 2019.

Gross profit margin declined 0.8 percentage points during 2020 from 38.3% to 37.5%. The impact of amortization of acquisition-related inventory step up costs
resulting from the Balboa acquisition of $1.9 million accounted for 0.4 percentage points of the decline.

Throughout the year, we implemented multiple cost saving measures to mitigate the effects of the downturn, including decreased use of consultants and
contractors, adjustments to our fixed cost labor base by implementing salary reductions, furloughs and layoffs, and reduced travel and other discretionary
spending. Our cost saving measures have been partially offset as we have incurred costs related to the purchase of safety equipment, personal protective
equipment and higher cleaning costs to ensure our employees’ safety during the pandemic.

During the first quarter of 2020, current and expected economic impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic led to an impairment charge of $31.9 million of goodwill
at our Faster reporting unit. Current year profitability was further impacted by non-recurring costs of $2.6 million related to the transition of two of our officers,
including our former Chief Executive Officer and $6.6 million of transaction costs for our acquisition of Balboa. Amortization on Balboa intangible assets
totaled $4.0 million during 2020. As a result of these impacts, operating margin for the year declined to 6.8%.
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Segment Results

Hydraulics

The following table sets forth the results of operations for the Hydraulics segment (in millions):
  For the year ended          

  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   $ Change   % Change  
Net sales  $ 407.2   $ 442.8   $ (35.6 )   (8.0 )%
Gross profit  $ 150.3   $ 161.4   $ (11.1 )   (6.9 )%

Gross profit %   36.9 %   36.4 %         
Operating income  $ 82.0   $ 86.0   $ (4.0 )   (4.7 )%

Operating income %   20.1 %   19.4 %        

Net sales for the Hydraulics segment totaled $407.2 million in 2020, representing a contraction of $35.6 million, 8.0%, over the prior year. Changes in foreign
currency exchange rates favorably impacted sales for the year by $2.0 million. Disruptions caused by the pandemic, including our facility closures and regulatory
restrictions on shipments experienced during the first and second quarters, as well as ongoing reduced end market demand and related impacts to our customers,
led to the diminished sales during the year.

The following table presents net sales based on the geographic region of the sale for the Hydraulics segment (in millions):
  For the year ended          
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   $ Change   % Change  
Americas  $ 130.5   $ 162.3   $ (31.8 )   (19.6 )%
EMEA   131.2    141.6    (10.4 )   (7.3 )%
APAC   145.5    138.9    6.6    4.8 %

Total  $ 407.2   $ 442.8         

Shipments and demand weakened in the Americas region during 2020 with sales declining $31.8 million, 19.6%, compared with the prior year. Sales to the
EMEA region decreased 9.1% after consideration of positive impacts from foreign currency fluctuations totaling $2.5 million during 2020. Sales to the APAC
region during 2020 were up $6.6 million, 4.8%, over 2019, due to improved demand in China as well as our recent expansion efforts in the region. After
consideration of negative impacts from changes in foreign currency exchange rates of $0.6 million, sales to the APAC region improved 5.2% over 2019.

Hydraulics segment gross profit trended downward in 2020 compared with 2019, due to lower sales volume. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates had a
favorable impact on gross profit for the year of $0.3 million. Gross profit margin improved by 0.5 percentage points in 2020 compared with the prior year.
Effective cost management efforts, including adjustment of our fixed cost base by implementing furloughs and temporary salary reductions, savings from our
2019 organizational restructure at Sun Hydraulics and production efficiencies gained from our CVT manufacturing consolidation project, which was completed
in the first quarter of 2019 led to the margin gains.

Selling, engineering and administrative expenses (“SEA”) were down 3.8% to $68.3 million in 2020, compared with $71.0 million in the prior year as a result of
the aggressive cost management efforts previously noted and reductions in costs related to wages, travel and marketing, professional fees and other discretionary
costs. The segment incurred increased costs for safety equipment and cleaning services as well as increased corporate operating costs allocated to the segment
that were incurred to support the growth and change in the structure of Helios. Reduced leverage of our fixed cost base on lower sales led to SEA as a percent of
sales increasing 0.8 percentage points during the year.
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In the third quarter of 2019, we incurred one-time costs for an organizational restructure which resulted in $1.7 million of early retirement and severance charges.
The restructuring plan was executed at Sun Hydraulics to improve the global cost structure of the business while aligning employee talent with the strategic
operational goals of the Company. All actions from this restructuring plan have been completed. Also in the third quarter  of 2019, we incurred a one-time cost of
$2.7 million for a loss on disposal of an intangible asset from the termination of our technology licensing agreement with Sturman Industries, Inc. The
termination of the agreement is the result of a phase out of the digital logic valve (“DLV”) related products and technologies.

As a result of the impacts to gross profit and SEA costs noted above, 2020 operating income declined $4.0 million, 4.7%, compared with 2019, while 2020
operating margin improved 0.7 percentage points during the year.

Electronics

The following table sets forth the results of operations for the Electronics segment (in millions):
  For the year ended          

  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   $ Change   % Change  
Net sales  $ 115.8   $ 111.9   $ 3.9    3.5 %
Gross profit  $ 47.8   $ 50.9   $ (3.1 )   (6.1 )%

Gross profit %   41.3 %  45.5 %        
Operating income  $ 19.4   $ 22.0   $ (2.6 )   (11.8 )%

Operating income %   16.8 %  19.7 %       

Net sales for the Electronics segment totaled $115.8 million in 2020, an increase of $3.9 million, 3.5%, over the prior year. The acquisition of Balboa added
$26.1 million to current-year sales. Demand in the health and wellness and spa and bath industries has been bolstered by the pandemic as consumers invest in
health and home improvements. We have seen the same trend in the recreational marine industry in which demand has remained strong. Decreased demand in
many of our other legacy end markets caused by the pandemic has had a significant impact on our 2020 sales, as many of our customers shut down operations
for a period of time during the second quarter and several of our large OEM customers requested to adjust the timing of order request dates into later quarters.
Demand in the oil and gas end market has been severely impacted, and we continue to experience some decline resulting from our intentional shift in our
customer base which included the release of certain contractual obligations to customers that allowed us to leverage all of our products to a broader and more
diversified customer base. Changes in exchange rates had a minimal impact on 2020 sales of the Electronics segment.

The following table presents net sales based on the geographic region of the sale for the Electronics segment (in millions):
  For the year ended          
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   $ Change   % Change  
Americas  $ 93.9   $ 96.3   $ (2.4 )   (2.5 )%
EMEA   10.8    8.4    2.4    28.6 %
APAC   11.1    7.2    3.9    54.2 %

Total  $ 115.8   $ 111.9         

Impacted by the Balboa acquisition, sales to the Americas region during 2020 declined $2.4 million, 2.5%, while sales to the EMEA and APAC regions
increased 28.6% and 54.2%, respectively.

Gross profit contracted by $3.1 million, 6.1%, in 2020, primarily due to the lower sales volume. Gross profit margin declined 4.2 percentage points to 41.3%
compared with 45.5% in 2019. Gross margin was heavily impacted by reduced leverage of our fixed cost base on lower sales throughout the year and the
addition of spa and bath product sales which have a different margin profile compared with our historical business resulting in higher cost of goods and lower
SEA costs. Cost management efforts and a $0.9 million non-recurring benefit from the release of contractual obligations to customers during the 2020 first
quarter helped to mitigate the impacts.
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SEA expenses fell $0.5 million, 1.7%, to $28.4 million in 2020 compared with $28.9 million during 2019 and SEA costs as a percentage of sales declined 1.3
percentage points to 24.5%, as cost saving measures focused on managing fixed personnel costs and eliminating non-essential spend ing. Throughout the year we
have continued to invest in the engineering and research and development (“R&D”) necessary to support new product development that will drive revenue
growth in 2021 and beyond.

As a result of the impacts to gross profit and SEA costs noted above, operating income declined $2.6 million, 11.8%, over the 2019 year while operating margin
decreased 2.9 percentage points, to 16.8%.

Corporate and Other

Certain costs are excluded from business segment results as they are not used in evaluating the results of, or in allocating resources to, our operating segments.
For the year ended January 2, 2021, these costs totaled $65.9 million for (i) goodwill impairment of $31.9 million, (ii) transition costs for two of our officers,
including our former Chief Executive Officer totaling $2.6 million, (iii) acquisition-related items such as transaction costs of $6.6 million, (iv) charges related to
inventory step-up to fair value of $1.9 million, (v) amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets of $22.1 million and (vi) $0.9 million related to other
acquisition and integration activities. For the year ended December 28, 2019, these costs totaled $17.9 million and were for amortization of acquisition-related
intangible assets.

Interest Expense, net

Net interest expense decreased $2.1 million during 2020 to $13.3 million compared with $15.4 million in 2019. The decrease is attributable to lower average
debt levels during 2020 due to our net debt repayments during the year which totaled $48.3 million, excluding the amendment of our credit facility at the end of
October which increased borrowings to fund the Balboa acquisition.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the year ended January 2, 2021, was 17.6% of pretax income before non-deductible impairment related charges compared
with 20.0% for the year ended December 28, 2019. The 2020 effective tax rate after nondeductible goodwill impairment was 40.9%. These effective rates
typically fluctuate relative to the levels of income and different tax rates in effect among the countries in which we sell our products.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) was enacted into law in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Company has evaluated the various income and payroll tax provisions and expects little or no impact to income tax expense. However, the Company is taking
advantage of the various payment deferments allowed and employee retention credits afforded by the CARES Act and other similar state and/or foreign liquidity
measures. The CARES Act allows employers to defer the deposit and payment of the employer's share of Social Security taxes. We deferred the payment of $1.5
million of payroll taxes normally due between March 27, 2020 and December 31, 2020. These payroll taxes will be paid during the third quarter of 2021 and are
included as accrued compensation and benefits in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

As of December 2018, the company had recorded $0.6 million of expense related to the one-time transition tax on mandatory deemed repatriation of foreign
earnings. The Company elected to pay the transition tax in full.

As of January 2, 2021, the Company had approximately $19.3 million of undistributed earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries for which it has not provided for
non-U.S. withholding taxes and state taxes because such earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely in international operations.
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2019 Results and Comparison of Years Ended December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018

For the discussion and analysis of our 2019 results compared with our 2018 results, refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
28, 2019, filed with the SEC on February 25, 2020. The discussion is incorporated herein by reference.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our primary source of capital has been cash generated from operations. In recent years we have used borrowings on our credit facilities to fund
acquisitions, and during 2018 we raised $240.0 million in net proceeds from our public offering of our common stock, which was also used to fund acquisition
activity during the year. During 2020, net cash provided by operating activities totaled $108.6 million and as of January 2, 2021 we had $25.2 million of cash on
hand and $144.0 million of available credit on our revolving credit facility. We also have a $300.0 million accordion feature available on our credit facility,
which is subject to certain pro forma compliance requirements and is intended to support potential future acquisitions.

Our principal uses of cash have been paying operating expenses, paying dividends to shareholders, making capital expenditures, servicing debt and making
acquisition-related payments.

We believe that the cash generated from operations and our borrowing availability under our credit facilities will be sufficient to satisfy our operating expenses
and capital expenditures for the foreseeable future. In the event that economic conditions were to severely worsen for a protracted period of time, we would have
several options available to ensure liquidity in addition to increased borrowing. Capital expenditures could be postponed since they primarily pertain to long-term
improvements in operations. Additional operating expense reductions could also be made. Finally, the dividend to shareholders could be reduced or suspended.

Cash flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods (in millions):
  For the year ended      

  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   $ Change  
Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 108.6   $ 90.5   $ 18.1  
Net cash used in investing activities   (235.9 )   (22.4 )   (213.5 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   137.7    (71.7 )   209.4  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash   (7.3 )   2.3    (9.6 )

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  $ 3.1   $ (1.3 )  $ 4.4

Cash on hand increased $3.1 million from $22.1 million at the end of 2019 to $25.2 million at the end of 2020. Cash and cash equivalents were unfavorably
impacted by changes in exchange rates during the year ended January 2, 2021 by $7.3 million and favorably impacted during the year ended December 28, 2019
by $2.3 million. Cash balances on hand are a result of our cash management strategy, which focuses on maintaining sufficient cash to fund operations while
reinvesting cash in the Company and also paying down borrowings on our credit facilities.

40
 



Operating activities

Cash from operations increased $18.1 million, 20.0%, compared with the prior year. $10.7 million of the fluctuation resulted from the 2019 payment on the
contingent consideration liability related to the Enovation Controls acquisition, which was included in operating cash flows for the 2019 period as the total
payments exceeded the acquisition date fair value of the liability. The remaining increase of $7.4 million resulted from improved cash flow from operating assets
and liabilities offset by decreased cash earnings. Changes in inventory, net of acquisitions, increased cash by $0.6 million in 2020 compared with a decrease in
cash of $1.5 million during 2019. Days of inventory on hand increased to 100 days for the 2020 year, compared with 91 during the 2019 year, impacted by the
softer than expected demand during the year and an increase in certain purchased parts inventories to mitigate the risk of potential supplier constraints. There has
been no decline in the net realizable value of our inventory as a result of recent economic conditions. Changes in accounts receivable, net of acquisitions,
increased cash by $0.7 million in 2020 compared with $5.7 million in 2019. Days sales outstanding for the 2020 year went up to 50 days, from 44 days during
2019. We have not experienced significant delays in collection of accounts receivable balances from customers as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities increased during 2020 by $213.5 million, compared with 2019. The acquisition of Balboa accounted for $217.0 million of the
fluctuation. Capital expenditures were $14.6 million during 2020; $10.4 million, 41.6%, lower than the prior year. Due to the economic conditions and
uncertainty of future cash flows during the year, capital expenditure projects were evaluated and several were postponed. We only proceeded with high priority
and critical projects during the year. Capital expenditures for 2021 are forecasted to be approximately 5% of sales, primarily for investments in machinery and
equipment to increase capacity, maintain existing machine efficiencies and improve manufacturing technologies.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities totaled $137.7 million in 2020, compared with cash used in financing activities of $71.7 million in 2019.

During the second quarter, we entered into a term facility with Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A to provide us with additional liquidity of €5.0 million. We also entered into
a term loan and a line of credit with Citibank that allows maximum borrowings of RMB 65.0 million in order to facilitate operational expansion in China.

On October 28, 2020, we amended and restated our credit agreement with PNC Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and the lenders party
thereto. The amendment increased the term loan credit facility to an aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million. The revolving credit facility’s aggregate
maximum principal borrowing amount remained unchanged at $400.0 million, and the accordion feature was increased to an aggregate principal amount of
$300.0 million. The credit facilities will be available through October 28, 2025. We plan to use the proceeds of the amended credit agreement for working
capital purposes, to finance acquisitions such as the purchase of Balboa, and for general corporate purposes.

Borrowings on our revolving credit facility and our long-term non-revolving debt with PNC Bank as of January 2, 2021 totaled $255.9 million and $200.0
million, respectively. See Note 10 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for additional information regarding our
credit facilities.

During April 2019, we paid $17.8 million to the former owners of Enovation Controls in connection with the last payment due on the contingent consideration
liability.
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We have historically declared regular quarterly dividends to shareholders of $0.09 per share. We paid dividends totaling $ 11.6 million, $11.5 million, and $11.0
million for the years ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018, respectively. The declaration and payment of future dividends is
subject to the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, and any determination as to the payment of future dividends will depend upon our profitability, financial
condition, capital needs, acquisition opportunities, future prospects and other factors deemed pertinent by the Board of Directors.

Contractual obligations

The timing of payments due under our contractual obligations as of January 2, 2021, are summarized in the table below (in thousands):
  Payments due by Period  
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS  TOTAL   2021   2022-2023   2024-2025   Thereafter  
Revolving lines of credit (1)  $ 256,224   $ 315   $ —   $ 255,909   $ —  
Long-term, non-revolving debt (2)   206,770    16,355    30,415    160,000    —  
Interest on long-term debt (3)   62,835    13,844    26,470    22,521    —  
Contingent consideration (4)   1,919    242    817    860    —  
Supplier purchase commitments (5)   43,542    39,555    3,965    22    —  
Building purchase commitment (6)   32,586    —    —    —    32,586  
Operating leases   19,798    5,487    6,789    4,602    2,920  
Financing leases   734    457    277    —    —  
Total contractual obligations  $ 624,408   $ 76,255   $ 68,733   $ 443,914   $ 35,506
 
(1) Our revolving credit facilities expire in November 2021 and October 2025. Although we may make earlier principal payments, we have reflected the

principal balances due at expiration.
(2) Amounts represent required payments on long-term non-revolving debt obligations and exclude debt issuance costs.
(3) Interest on the revolving line of credit assumes the current interest rate environment and revolver borrowings consistent with January 2, 2021 debt

levels. Interest on the non-revolving long-term debt assumes the current interest rate environment and takes into account future required payments.
(4) Represents the fair value estimate of contractual contingent payments related to our acquisition of Balboa.
(5) Amounts represent commitments entered into with key suppliers for minimum purchase quantities. Only obligations that are non-cancelable are

included in the table.
(6) The Company has entered into a lease to buy agreement for the purchase of a building. We have the option to purchase the building at any time during

the lease period and are committed to buy at the end of the 6-year lease term. The full purchase price has been presented; however, the actual purchase
price will be reduced by 60% of the payments made during the lease term.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Based on facts and circumstances inherent in developing
estimates and assumptions, we believe it is unlikely that applying other such estimates and assumptions would have caused materially different amounts to have
been reported. The following policies are considered by management to be the most critical in understanding the judgements, estimates and assumptions that are
involved in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting, which requires recognition separately from goodwill, the assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values.  Assigning fair market values to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of an
acquisition requires knowledge of current market values, and the values of assets in use, and often requires the application of judgment regarding estimates and
assumptions. While the ultimate responsibility resides with management, for certain acquisitions we retain the services of certified valuation specialists to assist
with assigning estimated values to certain acquired assets and assumed liabilities, including intangible assets and tangible long-lived assets. Acquired intangible
assets, excluding goodwill, are valued using various methodologies such as the discounted cash flow method which is based on future cash flows specific to the
type of intangible asset purchased and the relief from royalty method which is based on the present value of savings resulting from the right to manufacture or
sell products that incorporate the intangible asset without having to pay a license for its use. These methodologies incorporate various estimates and assumptions,
the most significant being estimated royalty rates, projected revenue growth rates, profit margins and forecasted cash flows based on the discount rate.

Goodwill

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired, is carried at cost. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually, in our third and fourth fiscal quarters, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate a reduction in the fair value below the
carrying value. The carrying value of assets is calculated at the reporting unit level. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the fair value of the
goodwill within the reporting unit is less than its carrying value.

The assessment of fair value for impairment purposes requires significant judgment by management. We generally use a combination of market and income
approach methodologies to estimate the fair value of our reporting units. The income approach is generally based on a discounted cash flow analysis, which
estimates the present value of the projected free cash flows to be generated by the reporting unit. Assumptions used in the analysis include estimated future
revenues and expenses, weighted average cost of capital, capital expenditures and other variables.  Assumptions made for future cash flows are developed based
on consideration of current and future economic conditions, recent sales trends, planned timing of product launches or other relevant variables. The market
approach estimates the value of reporting units by comparing to guideline public companies or guideline transactions. Various valuation multiples of companies
that are economically and operationally similar are used as data points for selecting multiples for the reporting units. Changes in assumptions or estimates could
materially affect the estimated fair value of our reporting units and the potential for impairment.

During the first quarter of 2020, the Company determined that, based on current economic conditions and potential future impacts from the COVID-19
pandemic, it was more likely than not that the fair value of the Faster reporting unit was less than its carrying value. Upon completion of the interim impairment
testing, the Company determined that the carrying value of goodwill was impaired. Upon completion of our subsequent annual goodwill impairment testing for
the year ended January 2, 2021, we determined that the remaining carrying amount of goodwill was not impaired. See Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for goodwill amounts.

Income Taxes

Our income tax policy provides for a balance sheet approach under which deferred income taxes are provided for based upon enacted tax laws and rates
applicable to the periods in which the taxes become payable. These differences result from items reported differently for financial reporting and income tax
purposes, primarily depreciation, amortization, accrued expenses and reserves.
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Our annual tax rate fluctuates based on our income, statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we
operate. Tax laws are complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and respective government taxing authorities. Significant judgment is
required in determining our tax expense and in evaluating our tax positions, including evaluating uncertainties. We review our tax positions quarterly and adjust
the balances as new information becomes available. Indefinite reinvestment is determined by management’s judgment about, and intentions concerning, our
future operations.

We recognize and measure uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740. We report a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. We file annual income tax returns in multiple taxing jurisdictions around the world. Many years may pass
before an uncertain tax position is audited by the relevant tax authorities and finally resolved. While it is often difficult to predict the outcome or the timing of
resolution of any particular uncertain tax position, we believe that our reserves for income taxes are adequate such that we reflect the benefits more likely than
not to be sustained in an examination. We adjust these reserves, as well as the related interest and penalties, where appropriate in light of changing facts and
circumstances. Settlement of any particular position could require the use of cash. We recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax
benefits in income tax expense.

See Note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for income tax amounts, including reserves.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off balance sheet financing arrangements. In particular, we do not have any material interest in variable interest entities, which include
special purpose entities and structured finance entities.

Inflation

The impact of inflation on our operating results has been moderate in recent years, reflecting generally lower rates of inflation in the economy. While inflation
has not had, and we do not expect that it will have, a material impact upon operating results, there is no assurance that our business will not be affected by
inflation in the future.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. To reduce such risks, we selectively use financial
instruments and other proactive management techniques. All hedging transactions strictly prohibit the use of financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes. A discussion of our accounting policies for derivative financial instruments is included within Notes 2 and 9, of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk results from variable debt outstanding under our term loan and revolving credit facility with PNC Bank. We pay interest on
outstanding borrowings at interest rates that fluctuate based upon changes in various base rates. As of January 2, 2021, we had $255.9 million in borrowings
outstanding under the revolving credit facility and $200.0 million in borrowings outstanding under the term loan. Based on our level of variable rate debt
outstanding during the year ended January 2, 2021, a one percentage point increase in the reference average interest rate, which generally equaled 3.55%, would
have resulted in an approximate $1.4 million increase in financing costs for the year ended January 2, 2021. As of December 28, 2019, we had $208.7 million in
borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility and $92.5 million in borrowings outstanding under the term loan. Based on our level of variable rate
debt outstanding during the year ended December 28, 2019, a one percentage point increase in the reference average interest rate, which generally equaled
4.16%, would have resulted in an approximate $1.5 million increase in financing costs for the year ended December 28, 2019.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations relate primarily to our locations in Italy, Australia, Germany, South Korea, the UK, China and India. Our
operations in these countries are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency rates primarily from payments received from customers and payments made to
suppliers denominated in foreign currencies. During the year ended January 2, 2021 we economically hedged certain foreign currency risks by entering into
forward foreign exchange contracts. These contracts were not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes. A discussion of our accounting
policies for derivative financial instruments is included within Notes 2 and 9, of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual
Report.

The strengthening of the U.S. dollar can have an unfavorable impact on our results of operations and financial position as foreign denominated operating results
are translated into U.S. dollars. The result of a 10% decrease in the 2020 average exchange rates of the currencies in which our transactions are denominated
would have resulted in a decrease in annual sales and net income of $23.0 million and $3.1 million, respectively, for the year ended January 2, 2021. The result
of a 10% decrease in the 2019 average exchange rates of the currencies in which our transactions are denominated would have resulted in a decrease in annual
sales and net income of $21.5 million and $2.3 million, respectively, for the year ended December 28, 2019. This sensitivity analysis assumes that each exchange
rate changed in the same direction relative to the U.S. dollar and excludes the potential effects that changes in foreign currency exchange rates may have on
actual sales or price levels. Similarly, a 10% decline in foreign currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar on our January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019
financial position would have resulted in a $55.3 million and $45.4 million reduction to equity (accumulated other comprehensive loss), respectively, as a result
of non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities being translated into U.S. dollars, our reporting currency.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helios Technologies, Inc.

Opinion on the financial statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Helios Technologies, Inc. (a Florida corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the periods ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019, and December 29, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the
“financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of January 2,
2021 and December 28, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the periods ended January 2, 2021, December 28,
2019, and December 29, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of January 2, 2021, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and our report dated March 2, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Basis for opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical audit matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to
be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of a critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing  separate opinions on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
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Interim Evaluation of the Recovery of Goodwill
As described further in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company performs a test for goodwill impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate it is more likely than not that a reduction in the fair value of goodwill below its carrying value has occurred. The Company has
completed several business combinations in the past five years, which have resulted in the recognition of goodwill. Upon completion of the interim impairment
testing for the period ended March 28, 2020, the Company determined that the carrying value of goodwill for one of the reporting units was impaired. In
estimating fair value, management utilizes an income approach and a market approach. The income approach determines fair value based on discounted cash
flow models derived from the reporting units’ long-term forecasts. The market approach determines fair value based on earnings multiples derived from prices
investors paid for the stocks of comparable, publicly traded companies. We identified this interim evaluation of the recovery of goodwill for one of the reporting
units to be a critical audit matter.

The principal considerations for our determination that the evaluation of the recovery of goodwill for one of the reporting units was a critical audit matter are the
significant judgements by management when developing the fair value measurement and the related auditor judgement that was required to evaluate certain of
management’s assumptions used in the Company’s estimate of the fair value of that reporting unit.  Specifically, the growth rate used in financial projections
extending several years, the related discount rate and the terminal value were all assumptions with a high level of estimation uncertainty in the discounted cash
flow model. The market value model includes key assumptions such as the selection of comparable public companies used to establish market
multiples.  Management’s assessment was based on qualitative and quantitative factors, such as the impact from competitors, impact of competing products,
market demand forces, discount rates and assumptions, and other considerations that were particularly uncertain due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Our audit procedures related to the interim evaluation of the recovery of goodwill for the one reporting unit included the following, among others.

• We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls relating to management’s goodwill impairment process, including
controls over the valuation of the Company’s reporting units, development of the forecast used in the discounted cash flow model, selection of the
appropriate discount rate, and selection of comparable public companies used to determine market multiples.

• We involved valuation specialist professionals to assist in evaluating the Company’s models and the methodology for the income approach and
market approach to conclude on an entity’s fair value. The specialists also assisted in the assessment of the assumptions used by management in the
models, particularly the discount rate and terminal value used in the income approach and the market multiples used in the market approach.

• We recomputed the arithmetic accuracy of the prospective financial information and evaluated the reasonableness of specific key assumptions such
as revenue growth, gross margin changes, and other expenditure changes year over year. We compared these key assumptions to historical
information, budgeted information, industry data and subsequent unaudited information to determine the reasonableness of the prospective financial
information.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP  

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2016. 

Tampa, Florida

48
 



March 2, 2021
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helios Technologies, Inc.

Opinion on internal control over financial reporting
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Helios Technologies, Inc. (a Florida corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January
2, 2021, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
January 2, 2021, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended January 2, 2021, and our report dated March 2, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

Basis for opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and limitations of internal control over financial reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Tampa, Florida
March 2, 2021
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Helios Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 25,216   $ 22,123  
Restricted cash   41    39  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of
   $1,493 and $1,131   97,623    66,677  
Inventories, net   110,372    85,195  
Income taxes receivable   1,103    3,196  
Other current assets   19,664    15,359  
Total current assets   254,019    192,589  

Property, plant and equipment, net   163,177    145,854  
Deferred income taxes   6,645    5,803  
Goodwill   443,533    377,569  
Other intangible assets, net   419,375    294,651  
Other assets   10,230    5,285  

Total assets  $ 1,296,979   $ 1,021,751  
Liabilities and shareholders' equity         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable  $ 59,477   $ 29,730  
Accrued compensation and benefits   22,985    16,898  
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities   24,941    14,377  
Current portion of long-term non-revolving debt, net   16,229    7,623  
Dividends payable   2,891    2,884  
Income taxes payable   1,489    4,941  
Total current liabilities   128,012    76,453  

Revolving line of credit   255,909    208,708  
Long-term non-revolving debt, net   189,932    84,062  
Deferred income taxes   78,864    49,290  
Other noncurrent liabilities   36,472    25,602  

Total liabilities   689,189    444,115  
Commitments and contingencies   —    —  
Shareholders' equity:         

Preferred stock, par value $0.001, 2,000 shares authorized,
   no shares issued or outstanding   —    —  
Common stock, par value $0.001, 100,000 shares authorized,
   32,121 and 32,047 shares issued and outstanding   32    32  
Capital in excess of par value   371,778    365,310  
Retained earnings   270,320    267,658  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (34,340 )   (55,364 )
Total shareholders' equity   607,790    577,636  
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  $ 1,296,979   $ 1,021,751

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Helios Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)
 
  For the year ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  
Net sales  $ 523,040   $ 554,665   $ 508,045  
Cost of sales   326,812    342,383    315,362  

Gross profit   196,228    212,282    192,683  
Selling, engineering and administrative expenses   106,831    99,665    93,867  
Restructuring charges   —    1,724    —  
Amortization of intangible assets   22,114    18,065    23,262  
Goodwill impairment   31,871    —    —  
Loss on disposal of intangible asset   —    2,713    —  

Operating income   35,412    90,115    75,554  
Interest expense, net   13,286    15,387    13,876  
Foreign currency transaction (gain) loss, net   (1,555 )   (846 )   3,558  
Other non-operating (income) expense, net   (366 )   267    1,725  

Income before income taxes   24,047    75,307    56,395  
Income tax provision   9,829    15,039    9,665  

Net income  $ 14,218   $ 60,268   $ 46,730  
Basic and diluted net income per common share  $ 0.44   $ 1.88   $ 1.49  
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding   32,088    32,015    31,309  
Dividends declared per share  $ 0.36   $ 0.36   $ 0.36
 
The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Helios Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands)
 

  For the year ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  

Net income  $ 14,218   $ 60,268   $ 46,730  
Other comprehensive income (loss)             

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax   21,574    (6,048 )   (37,466 )
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap, net of tax   (550 )   (3,063 )   (2,309 )

Total other comprehensive income (loss)   21,024    (9,111 )   (39,775 )
Comprehensive income  $ 35,242   $ 51,157   $ 6,955

 
The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements .
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Helios Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
(in thousands)
 

                          Accumulated      
                  Capital in       other      
  Preferred   Preferred   Common   Common   excess of   Retained   comprehensive      
  shares   stock   shares   stock   par value   earnings   income (loss)   Total  

Balance at December 30, 2017   —   $ —    27,077   $ 27   $ 95,354   $ 183,770   $ (6,478 )  $ 272,673  
Shares issued, restricted stock           102                    —  
Shares issued, other compensation           24                    —  
Shares issued, ESPP           36        1,546            1,546  
Shares issued, public offering           4,400    5    239,788            239,793  
Shares issued, acquisition           333        17,339            17,339  
Stock-based compensation                   4,271            4,271  
Cancellation of shares for payment of employee tax
withholding           (7 )       (365 )           (365 )
Dividends declared                       (11,444 )       (11,444 )
Net income                       46,730        46,730  
Other comprehensive loss                           (39,775 )   (39,775 )
Balance at December 29, 2018   —   $ —    31,965   $ 32   $ 357,933   $ 219,056   $ (46,253 )  $ 530,768  
Shares issued, restricted stock           (7 )                   —  
Shares issued, other compensation           26                    —  
Shares issued, ESPP           52        1,650            1,650  
Shares issued, ESOP           24        1,152            1,152  
Stock-based compensation                   5,207            5,207  
Cancellation of shares for payment of employee tax
withholding           (13 )       (632 )           (632 )
Dividends declared                       (11,532 )       (11,532 )
Net income                       60,268        60,268  
Other comprehensive loss                           (9,111 )   (9,111 )
Impact of adoption of ASU 2016-02, related to leases                       (134 )       (134 )
Balance at December 28, 2019   —   $ —    32,047   $ 32   $ 365,310   $ 267,658   $ (55,364 )  $ 577,636  
Shares issued, restricted stock           13                    —  
Shares issued, other compensation           25                    —  
Shares issued, ESPP           45        1,344            1,344  
Shares issued, discretionary contribution           1        45            45  
Stock-based compensation                   5,781            5,781  
Cancellation of shares for payment of employee tax
withholding           (11 )       (702 )           (702 )
Dividends declared                       (11,556 )       (11,556 )
Net income                       14,218        14,218  
Other comprehensive income                           21,024    21,024  
Balance at January 2, 2021   —   $ —    32,120   $ 32   $ 371,778   $ 270,320   $ (34,340 )  $ 607,790
 
The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Helios Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

  For the year ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  

Cash flows from operating activities:             
Net income  $ 14,218   $ 60,268   $ 46,730  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:             
Depreciation and amortization   39,695    35,215    39,714  
Goodwill impairment   31,871    —    —  
Stock-based compensation expense   5,781    5,207    4,271  
Amortization of debt issuance costs   1,107    717    729  
Benefit for deferred income taxes   (3,631 )   (551 )   (1,455 )
Amortization of acquisition-related inventory step-up   1,874    —    4,441  
Forward contract losses (gains), net   5,458    (2,863 )   3,496  
Other, net   1,006    4,614    1,452  
(Increase) decrease in, net of acquisition:             

Accounts receivable   727    5,657    (5,976 )
Inventories   570    (1,450 )   (11,703 )
Income taxes receivable   1,731    (2,459 )   (4,054 )
Other current assets   (1,856 )   (4,043 )   565  
Other assets   4,030    1,772    (1,299 )

Increase (decrease) in, net of acquisition:             
Accounts payable   10,569    (10,750 )   5,894  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   3,806    5,700    (1,400 )
Income taxes payable   (5,127 )   6,234    (5,031 )
Other noncurrent liabilities   (3,273 )   (2,057 )   1,076  

Contingent consideration payments in excess of acquisition date fair value   —    (10,731 )   —  
Net cash provided by operating activities   108,556    90,480    77,450  

Cash flows from investing activities:             
Acquisitions of a business, net of cash acquired   (217,029 )   —    (534,662 )
Capital expenditures   (14,580 )   (25,025 )   (28,380 )
Proceeds from dispositions of equipment   100    196    62  
Cash settlement of forward contracts   (3,524 )   2,478    (2,535 )
Software development costs   (865 )   —    —  

Net cash used in investing activities   (235,898 )   (22,351 )   (565,515 )
Cash flows from financing activities:             
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities   117,565    129,951    282,500  
Repayment of borrowings on revolving credit facilities   (79,609 )   (176,750 )   (142,750 )
Borrowings on long-term non-revolving debt   119,727    —    101,447  
Repayment of borrowings on long-term non-revolving debt   (5,958 )   (5,465 )   (3,825 )
Proceeds from stock issued   1,344    1,650    241,338  
Dividends to shareholders   (11,550 )   (11,525 )   (11,003 )
Debt issuance costs   (1,714 )   —    (1,763 )
Payment of contingent consideration liability   (830 )   (8,016 )   (17,342 )
Other financing activities   (1,234 )   (1,588 )   (1,262 )

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   137,741    (71,743 )   447,340  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   (7,304 )   2,261    318  

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   3,095    (1,353 )   (40,407 )
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period   22,162    23,515    63,922  

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period  $ 25,257   $ 22,162   $ 23,515  
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:             
Cash paid:             

Income taxes  $ 11,341   $ 11,421   $ 20,227  
Interest  $ 11,567   $ 14,252   $ 12,783  
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Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions:             
Common stock issued to ESOP through accrued expenses and other liabilities  $ —   $ 1,152   $ —  
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap  $ 1,887   $ 3,482   $ 2,309  
Contingent consideration incurred in connection with acquisition  $ 1,919   $ —   $ 938  
Indemnified tax liability incurred in connection with acquisition  $ 3,559   $ —   $ —  
Stock issued for acquisition  $ —   $ —   $ 17,339  
Foreign currency remeasurement impact on euro denominated debt  $ 7,246   $ —   $ —
 
The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HELIOS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Currencies in thousands, except per share data)

1.  COMPANY BACKGROUND

Helios Technologies, Inc. (“Helios,” or the “Company”) together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is a global leader in highly engineered motion control and
electronic controls technology for diverse end markets, including construction, material handling, agriculture, energy, recreational vehicles, marine, health and
wellness. Helios sells its products to customers in over 85 countries around the world. The Company’s strategy for growth is to be the leading provider in niche
markets, with premier products and solutions through innovative product development and acquisition.

The Company operates in two business segments: Hydraulics and Electronics. There are three key technologies within the Hydraulics segment: cartridge valve
technology (CVT), quick-release hydraulic coupling solutions (QRC) and hydraulic system design (Systems). CVT products provide functions important to a
hydraulic system: to control rates and direction of fluid flow and to regulate and control pressures. QRC products allow users to connect and disconnect quickly
from any hydraulic circuit without leakage and ensure high-performance under high temperature and pressure using one or multiple couplers. Systems provide
engineered solutions for machine users, manufacturers or designers to fulfill complete system design requirements including electro-hydraulic, remote control,
electronic control and programmable logic controller systems, as well as automation of existing equipment. The Electronics segment provides complete, fully-
tailored display and control solutions for engines, engine-driven equipment, specialty vehicles and therapy baths and spas. This broad range of products is
complemented by extensive application expertise and unparalleled depth of software, embedded programming, hardware and sustaining engineering teams. This
technology is referred to as Electronic Controls (EC).

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The Company reports on a fiscal year that ends on the Saturday closest to December 31 st. Each quarter generally consists of thirteen weeks, with a fourteen-week
quarter occurring periodically. The 2020 fiscal year contained 53 weeks and ended January 2, 2021. The 2019 and 2018 fiscal years contained 52 weeks and
ended December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018, respectively.

The Company faces various risks related to health epidemics, pandemics and similar outbreaks, including the global outbreak of COVID-19. The current
COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact on markets the Company serves, its operations and, as a result, the financial results for the year and the Company’s near-
term outlook. The Company cannot at this time predict the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its business or economic conditions as a whole, but it could
have a material adverse effect on the business, financial position, results of operations and/or cash flows.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts and operations of Helios Technologies and its direct subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.  

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
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Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using period-end exchange rates for assets and liabilities and average exchange
rates for operating results. Unrealized translation gains and losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI”) in shareholders’
equity. When a transaction is denominated in a currency other than the subsidiary’s functional currency, the Company recognizes a transaction gain or loss in
foreign currency transaction (gain) loss, net.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting, which requires recognition separately from goodwill, the assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values. While best estimates and assumptions are used to accurately value assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date as well as contingent consideration, when applicable, the estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a result,
during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, adjustments that are based on new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date are recorded to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon
the conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent
adjustments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies fair value accounting guidelines for all financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). Under these guidelines, fair value is defined as the price that would be
received for the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The guidance establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little, infrequent, or no market activity and reflect the Company’s own assumptions about inputs used
in pricing the asset or liability.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

The fair value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
approximate their carrying value, due to their short-term nature.  Contingent consideration and newly acquired intangible assets are measured at fair value using
level 3 inputs. The Company utilizes risk-adjusted probability analysis to estimate the fair value of contingent consideration arrangements. Forward foreign
exchange contracts are measured at fair value based on quoted foreign exchange forward rates at the reporting dates. The fair value of interest rate swap
contracts is based on the expected cash flows over the life of the trade. Expected cash flows are determined by evaluating transactions with a pricing model using
a specific market environment. The values are estimated using the closing and mid-market market rate/price environment as of the end of the period. See Note 4
for detail on the level of inputs used in determining the fair value of assets and liabilities.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has never experienced any losses
related to these balances.

Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts owed by customers, net of an allowance for estimated credit losses. The allowance for estimated credit losses is based
on management’s assessment of amounts which may become uncollectible in the future and is estimated from a review of historical experience and specific
identification of those accounts that are significantly in arrears. Account balances are charged against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be
recovered. See the Consolidated Balance Sheets for the allowance amounts.

Inventories, net

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, on a first-in, first-out basis.  On an ongoing basis, component parts found to be obsolete
through design or process changes are disposed of and charged to material cost. The Company reviews on-hand balances of products and component parts against
specific criteria. Products and component parts without usage or that have excess quantities on hand are evaluated. An inventory reserve is then established for
the appropriate inventory value of those products and component parts deemed to be obsolete or slow moving. See Note 5 for inventory reserve amounts.

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Expenditures for repairs and improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity or extend the useful
life of an asset are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:
 

  Years
Machinery and equipment  2 - 14
Office furniture and equipment  2 - 14
Buildings  25 - 40
Building and land improvements  7 - 40
Leasehold improvements  3-6

Gains or losses on the retirement, sale, or disposal of property, plant, and equipment are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the period in
which the assets are taken out of service.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires an entity to recognize both assets and liabilities arising from financing and
operating leases, along with additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures. The Company adopted the standard for the fiscal year beginning December 30,
2018, using the effective date method which required a cumulative-effect adjustment to be recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings. Under the
effective date method, financial results reported in periods prior to fiscal year 2019 are unchanged. The Company also elected the package of practical
expedients, which among other things, does not require reassessment of lease classification. As of the adoption date, the Company recorded right-of-use
(“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities of approximately $13,900 to the balance sheet and a cumulative-effect adjustment of $ 134 was recognized in retained
earnings.
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The Company determines whether an arrangement is a lease at its inception. Operating lease ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying
asset for the lease term and are presented in Property, plant and equipment in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Operating lease liabilities represent the
Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the leases and are presented in Other accrued expenses and current liabilities and Other noncurrent
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the estimated present
value of lease payments over the lease term.

The Company utilizes an estimated incremental borrowing rate, which is derived from information available at the lease commencement date, in determining the
present value of lease payments. The Company considers its existing credit facilities when calculating the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease terms include options to extend the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. Leases with a term of 12 months or less
are not recorded on the balance sheet. See Note 7 for additional disclosures related to leases.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired, is carried at cost. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually, in the third and fourth quarters, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate a reduction in the fair value below the carrying
value. As part of the impairment test, the Company has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances
leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If after this optional qualitative
assessment, the Company determines that impairment is more likely than not, then the Company performs the quantitative impairment test. The carrying value
of assets is calculated at the reporting unit level. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value,
with the impairment loss limited to the amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit.

During the first quarter of 2020, the Company determined that based on current economic conditions and potential future impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic,
it was more likely than not that the fair value of its Faster reporting unit was less than its carrying value. Upon completion of the interim impairment testing, the
Company determined that the carrying value of goodwill was impaired. In the third and fourth quarters of 2020, the Company completed its annual goodwill
impairment testing and determined that the remaining carrying amount of goodwill was not impaired. See Note 8 for discussion of interim impairment testing
and goodwill amounts.

Other intangible assets with definite lives consist primarily of technology, customer relationships, trade names and brands, a favorable supply agreement and
sales order backlog, and are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives, ranging from less than one to twenty-six years.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of the asset is measured by comparison of its carrying
amount to future net cash flows the asset is expected to generate. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. For the year ended January 2, 2021, there were no impairments recorded based on our
analysis.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition is evaluated through the following five steps: 1) identification of the contracts with customers; 2) identification of the performance
obligations in the contracts; 3) determination of the transaction price; 4) allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and 5)
recognition of revenue as or when performance obligations are satisfied.
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The Company disaggregates revenue by reporting segment as well as by geographic destination of the sale. See disaggregated revenue balances in Note 1 6,
Segment Reporting. These categories depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.

Revenue from Product Sales

The significant majority of the Company’s contracts with its customers are for standard product sales under standard ship and bill arrangements. The contracts
are generally accounted for as having a single performance obligation for the manufacture of product, which is considered the only distinct promise in the
contract, and are short term in nature, typically completed within one quarter and not exceeding one year in duration. The transaction price is agreed upon in the
contract. Revenue is recognized upon satisfaction of the performance obligation, which is typically at a point in time when control is transferred to the customer.
Typically, control is transferred upon shipment to the customer but can also occur upon delivery to the customer, depending on contract terms. Revenue
recognition can also occur over time for these contracts when the following criteria are met: the Company has no alternative use for the product; and the
Company has an enforceable right to payment (including a reasonable margin) for performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for the goods. Consideration for product
sales is primarily fixed in nature with insignificant amounts recognized for sales discounts, rebates and product returns. The Company’s estimates for sales
discounts, rebates and product returns reduce revenue recognized at the time of the sale.

Revenue from Services

The Company generates revenue from various services provided to customers including system design, maintenance, repairs, installation and commissioning and
various other services. This is not a significant revenue stream for the Company, as it represents less than 5% of total revenue. Service contracts are typically
completed within one quarter and do not exceed one year in duration. These contracts are generally accounted for as having a single distinct performance
obligation for the performance of the service. The transaction price is agreed upon in the contract and can be based on a fixed amount or on a time and material
arrangement. Revenue is recognized over time for service contracts as the customer receives and consumes the benefits as the Company performs. The method of
over time recognition considers total costs incurred to date and the applicable margin on the total expected efforts to complete the performance obligation.

Contract Assets & Liabilities

Contract assets are recognized when the Company has a conditional right to consideration for performance completed on contracts. Contract asset balances
totaled $2,776 and $2,796 at January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, respectively and are presented in Other current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Accounts receivable balances represent unconditional rights to consideration from customers and are presented separate from contract assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Contract liabilities are recognized when payment is received from customers prior to satisfying the underlying performance obligation. Contract liabilities totaled
$4,208 and $353 at January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, respectively, and are presented in Other accrued expenses and current liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.  

Other Revenue Recognition Considerations

Contracts do not have significant financing components and payment terms do not exceed one year from the date of the sale. The Company does not incur
significant credit losses from contracts with customers.  

The Company applies the practical expedient as permitted by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, which allows the omission of certain disclosures related
to remaining performance obligations, as contract duration does not exceed one year.
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The Company’s warranties provide assurance that products will function as intended. Estimated costs of product warranties are recognized at the time of the sale.
The estimates are based upon current and historical warranty trends and other related information known to the Company.

The Company treats shipping and handling activities that occur after control of the product transfers as fulfillment activities, and therefore, does not account for
shipping and handling costs as a separate performance obligation. Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are recorded in revenue. Shipping costs
incurred by the Company are recorded in cost of goods sold.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

All derivative instruments are recorded gross on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their respective fair values. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative, whether the Company has elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and
apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting.  Derivatives designated and
qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. For
derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is initially
reported as a component of AOCI and is subsequently reclassified into the line item within the Consolidated Statements of Operations in which the hedged items
are recorded in the same period in which the hedged item affects earnings.

The Company enters into foreign exchange currency contracts that are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes. Changes in the fair value
of foreign exchange currency contracts not designated as hedging instruments are recognized in earnings. Derivative financial instruments are utilized as risk
management tools and are not used for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company utilizes foreign currency denominated debt to hedge currency exposure in foreign operations. The Company designates certain foreign currency
denominated debt as hedges of net investments in foreign operations, which reduces the Company’s exposure to changes in currency exchange rates on
investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries. Gains and losses on net investments in non-U.S. operations are economically offset by losses and gains on foreign currency
borrowings. The change in the U.S. dollar value of foreign currency denominated debt is recorded in Foreign currency translation adjustments, a component of
AOCI.

Research and Development

The Company conducts research and development R&D to create new products and to make improvements to products currently in use. R&D costs are charged
to expense as incurred and totaled $15,557, $15,163 and $14,122 for the 2020, 2019 and 2018 fiscal years, respectively.

Restructuring Charges

During 2019, the Company incurred $1,724 of early retirement and severance costs associated with an organizational restructure. The restructuring plan was
initiated to improve the global cost structure of the business while aligning employee talent with the strategic operational goals of the Company. All actions from
this restructuring plan have been completed.
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Stock-Based Compensation

All share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense in earnings over the
requisite service period. For performance-based share awards, the Company recognizes expense when it is determined the performance criteria are probable of
being met. The probability of vesting is reassessed at each reporting date and compensation cost is adjusted using a cumulative catch up adjustment. Forfeitures
are recognized in compensation cost when they occur. Benefits or deficiencies of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation costs are reported within
operating cash flows.

Income Taxes

The Company’s income tax policy provides for a balance sheet approach under which deferred income taxes are provided for based upon enacted tax laws and
rates applicable to the periods in which the taxes become payable. These differences result from items reported differently for financial reporting and income tax
purposes, primarily depreciation, accrued expenses and reserves. If necessary, the measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced by the amount of any tax
benefits that are not expected to be realized based on available evidence.

The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company
recognizes potential interest and penalties related to its unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

The Company accounts for Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (“GILTI”) as a current-period expense when incurred.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

The Company sells certain products that contain embedded software that is integral to the functionality of the products. Internal and external costs incurred for
developing this software are charged to expense until technological feasibility has been established, at which point the development costs are capitalized.
Capitalized software development costs primarily include payroll, benefits and other headcount related expenses. Once the products are available for general
release to customers, no additional costs are capitalized.

Earnings Per Share

The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share (in thousands except per share data):
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  
Net income  $ 14,218   $ 60,268   $ 46,730  
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding   32,088    32,015    31,309  
Basic and diluted net income per common share  $ 0.44   $ 1.88   $ 1.49
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Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the current year presentation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other: Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment.  ASU 2017-04 eliminates the
second step in the goodwill impairment test, which requires an entity to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Instead, an entity
should recognize an impairment loss if the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, with the
impairment loss not to exceed the amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. The Company adopted the standard for the fiscal year beginning December
29, 2019, and conducted its impairment testing accordingly.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses. The standard replaces the incurred loss model with the current expected
credit loss (“CECL”) model to estimate credit losses for financial assets measured at amortized cost and certain off-balance sheet credit exposures.
The CECL model requires a Company to estimate credit losses expected over the life of the financial assets based on historical experience, current conditions
and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The Company adopted the standard for the fiscal year beginning December 29, 2019. Adoption of the standard did not
have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. This update simplifies accounting
for income taxes by eliminating some exceptions to the general approach in ASC 740, Income Taxes, related to intraperiod tax allocation, the methodology for
calculating income tax in an interim period and the recognition of deferred tax liabilities for outside basis differences. This update is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The amendments in this update should be applied on
either retrospective basis, modified retrospective basis or prospectively, depending on the provision within the amendment. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.  BUSINESS ACQUISITION

Acquisition of Balboa Water Group

On November 6, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of Balboa Water Group, LLC (“Balboa”), an innovative market leader of electronic controls for
the health and wellness industry with proprietary and patented technology that enables end-to-end electronic control systems for therapy bath and spas. Pursuant
to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Purchase Agreement”), the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interests of BWG Holdings I Corp., the
owner of 100% of the share capital of Balboa. The acquisition was completed for cash consideration totaling $ 223,158 and was financed with cash on hand and
borrowings on the Company’s credit facility.

The acquisition enables Helios to enter new and adjacent, high growth markets with a robust complementary product portfolio and diversifies Helios’s end
markets, customers and product offerings while enhancing scale, addressable market and innovation in electronic control systems. The results of Balboa’s
operations are reported in the Company’s Electronics segment and have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date.
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The Purchase Agreement allows for future payments to the sellers for certain tax benefits realized, related to the pre-acquisition period, through tax periods
ending on or before December 31, 2023. The estimated fair value of the contingent liability was determined to be $1,919, as of the acquisition date.

The fair value of total purchase consideration consisted of the following:

Cash  $ 223,158  
Post closing adjustment receivable, net   (431 )
Acquisition date fair value of contingent consideration   1,919  

Total purchase consideration   224,646  
Less: cash acquired   (6,129 )
Total purchase consideration, net of cash acquired  $ 218,517

The purchase price was allocated to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. The fair value of
identifiable intangible assets acquired was based on estimates and assumptions made by management at the time of the acquisition. As additional information
becomes available, as of the acquisition date, management will finalize its analysis of the estimated fair value of the identified intangible assets and tax related
items. As management completes its evaluation, the preliminary purchase price allocation may be revised during the remainder of the measurement period
(which will not exceed 12 months from the acquisition date). Any such revisions or changes to the fair values of the tangible and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed may be material.

The preliminary allocation of the total purchase price, net of cash acquired, is as follows:

Accounts receivable  $ 28,328  
Inventories   24,807  
Property, plant and equipment   12,562  
Goodwill   76,031  
Intangible assets   128,000  
Other assets   12,233  

Total assets acquired   281,961  
Accounts payable   17,840  
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities   11,219  
Deferred income taxes   23,823  
Other noncurrent liabilities   10,562  

Total liabilities assumed   63,444  
Fair value of net assets acquired  $ 218,517

Goodwill is primarily attributable to Balboa’s assembled workforce and anticipated synergies and economies of scale expected from the operations of the
combined company. The synergies included certain cost savings, operating efficiencies, access to key end markets, and strategic benefits to be achieved as a
result of the acquisition. Goodwill of $6,436 is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Transaction costs of $6,644 incurred in connection with the acquisition are included in selling, engineering and administrative expenses in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the year ended January 2, 2021.

Net sales and loss before income taxes of Balboa included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the period from acquisition date through January 2,
2021 totaled $26,057 and $1,547, respectively. Included in Balboa’s loss for the period are $1,874 of charges related to the purchase accounting effects of
inventory step up to fair value and $4,041 of amortization of acquisition related intangible assets.
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The preliminary fair value of identified intangible assets and their respective useful lives are as follows:
 

 Fair Value   

Weighted-
Average

Amortization
Periods (Yrs)  

Trade name  $ 22,000    18  
Technology   13,000    8  
Customer relationships   85,000    25  
Sales order backlog   8,000    0.5  

Identified intangible assets  $ 128,000    21  
        

Unaudited Pro Forma Information

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents combined results of operations for each of the periods presented, as if Balboa had been
acquired as of the beginning of 2019.

The pro forma information includes adjustments to amortization and depreciation for intangible assets and property, plant, and equipment and interest expense to
reflect the borrowings of the combined entity. Non-recurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the Balboa acquisition included in the pro forma
information presented below include the purchase accounting effect of inventory step up to fair value of $1,874, transaction costs for both entities totaling
$7,239, other acquisition related costs of Balboa in 2019 of $ 1,683, other non-recurring costs of Balboa incurred in 2019 of $ 1,471 and amortization of sales
order backlog intangible asset totaling $8,000.

The pro forma information does not reflect any operating efficiencies or potential cost savings that may result from the acquisitions. Accordingly, the pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not intended to present or be indicative of the actual results of operations of the combined company that may
have been achieved had the acquisition actually occurred at the beginning of 2019, nor is it intended to represent or be indicative of future results of operations of
the combined business. Consequently, actual results will differ from the unaudited pro forma information presented below:
  Fiscal Year  
  2020   2019  
Net sales  $ 638,288   $ 667,524  
Net income   30,332    54,487  
Basic and diluted net income per common share   0.95    1.70
 

4.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables provide information regarding the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at January 2, 2021 and
December 28, 2019.
  January 2, 2021  
          Significant Other   Significant  
      Quoted  Market   Observable   Unobservable  
  Total   Prices (Level 1)   Inputs (Level 2)   Inputs (Level 3)  
Assets                 

Forward foreign exchange contracts  $ 211   $ —   $ 211   $ —  
Total  $ 211   $ —   $ 211   $ —  

Liabilities                 
Interest rate swap contract  $ 7,679   $ —   $ 7,679   $ —  
Forward foreign exchange contracts   1,551    —    1,551    —  
Contingent consideration   1,919    —    —    1,919  

Total  $ 11,149   $ —   $ 9,230   $ 1,919
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  December 28, 2019  
          Significant Other   Significant  
      Quoted  Market   Observable   Unobservable  
  Total   Prices (Level 1)   Inputs (Level 2)   Inputs (Level 3)  
Assets                 

Forward foreign exchange contracts  $ 815   $ —   $ 815   $ —  
Total  $ 815   $ —   $ 815   $ —  

Liabilities                 
Interest rate swap contract  $ 5,792   $ —   $ 5,792   $ —  
Forward foreign exchange contracts   219    —    219    —  
Contingent consideration   828    —    —    828  

Total  $ 6,839   $ —   $ 6,011   $ 828
 
A summary of changes in the estimated fair value of contingent consideration at January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019 is as follows:
 
Balance at December 29, 2018  $ 18,960  

Change in estimated fair value   652  
Payment on liability   (18,747 )
Currency remeasurement   (37 )

Balance at December 28, 2019  $ 828  
Change in estimated fair value   (47 )
Contingent consideration incurred in connection with Balboa acquisition   1,919  
Payment on liability   (830 )
Currency remeasurement   49  

Balance at January 2, 2021  $ 1,919
 
During the years ended December 28, 2019, and January 2, 2021, the third and final payment to the sellers of Enovation Controls was made as well as the final
payment to the sellers of Faster, respectively.

5.  INVENTORIES

At January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, inventory consisted of the following:
 

  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Raw materials  $ 49,361   $ 34,340  
Work in process   30,675    28,667  
Finished goods   39,332    29,711  
Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventory   (8,996 )   (7,523 )
Total  $ 110,372   $ 85,195
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6.  PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

At January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:
 

  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Machinery and equipment  $ 168,012   $ 144,820  
Office furniture and equipment   23,888    19,808  
Buildings   57,854    54,979  
Building and land improvements   15,440    15,377  
Leasehold improvements   3,122    1,133  
Land   13,930    13,585  
  $ 282,246   $ 249,702  
Less:  Accumulated depreciation   (153,211 )   (133,582 )
Construction in progress   17,526    17,424  
  $ 146,561   $ 133,544  
Operating lease ROU assets   16,616    12,310  
Total  $ 163,177   $ 145,854

Depreciation expense for the years ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019, and December 29, 2018 totaled  $17,570, $17,150, and $16,452, respectively.

7.  OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases machinery, equipment, vehicles, buildings and office space throughout its locations, that are classified as operating leases. Remaining terms
on these leases range from less than one year to ten years. For the years ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, operating lease costs totaled $ 4,119 and
$3,689, respectively.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to operating leases is as follows:
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  

Right-of-use assets  $ 16,616   $ 12,310  
Lease liabilities:         

Current lease liabilities  $ 4,736   $ 3,155  
Non-current lease liabilities   12,728    9,312  

Total lease liabilities  $ 17,464   $ 12,467  
         
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years):   5.1      
Weighted average discount rate:   5.0 %   

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:
  For the Year Ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:         

Operating cash flows from operating leases  $ 4,077   $ 3,714  
Non-cash impact of new leases and lease modifications  $ 1,270   $ 1,834
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Maturities of lease liabilities are as follows:

2021  $ 5,487  
2022   3,561  
2023   3,228  
2024   2,599  
2025   2,003  
Thereafter   2,920  

Total lease payments   19,798  
Less: Imputed interest   (2,334 )

Total lease obligations   17,464  
Less: Current lease liabilities   (4,736 )

Non-current lease liabilities  $ 12,728
 

8.  GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

A summary of changes in goodwill by segment for the years ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019 is as follows:
  Hydraulics   Electronics   Total  
Balance at December 29, 2018  $ 276,758   $ 106,373   $ 383,131  

Faster acquisition measurement period adjustment   (343 )   —    (343 )
Custom Fluidpower acquisition measurement period adjustment   1,205    —    1,205  
Currency translation   (6,424 )   —    (6,424 )

Balance at December 28, 2019  $ 271,196   $ 106,373   $ 377,569  
Acquisition of Balboa   —    76,031    76,031  
Impairment charge   (31,871 )   —    (31,871 )
Currency translation   21,804    —    21,804  

Balance at January 2, 2021  $ 261,129   $ 182,404   $ 443,533

During the first quarter of 2020, the global economy was significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Given the economic impact, primarily in Europe,
government-mandated facility closures and an unfavorable outlook for certain end markets, the Company concluded that this change in circumstances triggered
the need to conduct an interim impairment review of its Faster reporting unit. The interim review was performed as of March 28, 2020. A recoverability test for
the long-lived assets within the Faster reporting unit was performed first and resulted in the conclusion that the carrying value of the long-lived assets was fully
recoverable. An interim quantitative impairment test for goodwill was then performed.
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The fair value of the Faster reporting unit was determined based on a combination of income and market approach methodologies. The income approach utilized
a discounted cash flow analysis, which estimates the present value of the projected free cash flows to be generated by the reporting unit. Principal assumptions
used in the analysis include the Company’s estimates of future revenue and terminal growth rates, margin assumptions and discount rates. While assumptions
utilized are subject to a high degree of judgment and complexity, the Company made every effort to estimate future cash flows as accurately as possible, given
the high degree of economic uncertainty that existed. The market approaches estimate fair value by comparing to guideline public companies and guideline
transactions. Various valuation multiples of companies that are economically and operationally similar were used as data points for selecting multiples. The
Company concluded that the estimated fair value of the Faster reporting unit was less than its carrying value, and as a result, recorded a non-cash, non-tax-
deductible goodwill impairment charge of $31,871. If the economic impact from the COVID-19 pandemic is more severe than anticipated, or if the economic
recovery takes longer to materialize or does not materialize as strongly as anticipated, it could result in further goodwill impairment charges.

Intangibles Assets

At January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, intangible assets consisted of the following:
 

    January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  

  
Useful life

(years)  
Gross carrying

amount   
Accumulated
amortization   

Net carrying
amount   

Gross carrying
amount   

Accumulated
amortization   

Net carrying
amount  

Definite-lived intangibles:                           
Trade names and brands  10-20  $ 80,402   $ (11,188 )  $ 69,214   $ 56,032   $ (7,658 )  $ 48,374  
Non-compete agreements  5   950    (776 )   174    950    (586 )   364  
Technology  7 - 13   45,955    (12,368 )   33,587    31,704    (8,661 )   23,043  
Supply agreement  10   21,000    (8,575 )   12,425    21,000    (6,475 )   14,525  
Customer relationships  15 - 26  330,406    (31,431 )   298,975    227,844    (19,499 )   208,345  
Sales order backlog  0.5   8,000    (3,000 )   5,000    —    —    —  
    $ 486,713   $ (67,338 )  $ 419,375   $ 337,530   $ (42,879 )  $ 294,651
 
During 2019, the Company terminated its technology licensing agreement with Sturman Industries, Inc. A phase out of all digital logic valve (“DLV”) related
products was completed and no further sales of any related products or technologies will occur. The termination of the agreement resulted in the recognition of a
loss on disposal of the related intangibles asset totaling $2,713.

Amortization expense for the 2020, 2019 and 2018 fiscal years was approximately $ 22,114, $18,065 and $23,262, respectively. Future estimated amortization
expense is presented below.
 

Year:     
2021  $ 29,955  
2022   24,692  
2023   24,633  
2024   23,978  
2025   23,909  
Thereafter   292,208  
Total  $ 419,375
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9.  DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS & HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company addresses certain financial exposures through a controlled program of risk management that includes the use of derivative financial
instruments. The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates. In addition, the
Company enters into interest rate derivatives to manage the effects of interest rate movements on the Company’s credit facilities.

For each derivative contract entered into where the Company looks to obtain hedge accounting treatment, the Company formally and contemporaneously
documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instruments’ effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed prospectively and
retrospectively. This process includes linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted
transactions. The Company also formally assesses, both at the inception of the hedges and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. If it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective, or
that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company will discontinue hedge accounting with respect to that derivative prospectively.

The fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instruments included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets is presented as follows:
 Asset Derivatives   Liability Derivatives  
 Balance Sheet  Fair Value (1)   Fair Value (1)   Balance Sheet  Fair Value (1)   Fair Value (1)  
 Location  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   Location  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:                

Interest rate swap contract Other assets  $ —   $ —   
Other non-current

liabilities  $ 7,679   $ 5,792  
                    

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:                

Forward foreign exchange contracts Other current assets   169    509   
Other current

liabilities   1,413   213  

Forward foreign exchange contracts Other assets   42    306   
Other non-current

liabilities   138    6  
Total derivatives   $ 211   $ 815     $ 9,230   $ 6,011  
(1) See Note 4 for information regarding the inputs used in determining the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities.  

The amount of gains and losses related to the Company’s derivative financial instruments for the 2020 and 2019 years are presented as follows:

  
Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Other Comprehensive

Income on Derivative (Effective Portion)   

Location of Gain or (Loss)
Reclassified from Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income  

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income into Earnings (Effective

Portion)  

  January 2, 2021  December 28, 2019   
into Earnings (Effective

Portion)  January 2, 2021  December 28, 2019  
Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships:           

Interest rate swap contract  $ (1,887 ) $ (3,482 )  Interest expense, net  $ (3,712 ) $ (1,110 )

Interest expense presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, in which the effects of cash flow hedges are recorded, totaled $ 13,286 and $15,387 for
the years ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, respectively.
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Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized

in Earnings on Derivatives   Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized
  January 2, 2021  December 28, 2019   in Earnings on Derivatives
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:    

Forward foreign exchange contracts  $ (5,458 ) $ 2,863   
Foreign currency transaction gain loss,

net
 

Interest Rate Swap Contract

Helios primarily utilizes variable-rate debt, which exposes the Company to variability in interest payments. The Company enters into various types of derivative
instruments to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from interest rate risk attributable to changes in the benchmark interest rates.

The Company assesses interest rate cash flow risk by continually identifying and monitoring changes in interest rate exposures that may adversely impact
expected future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opportunities.

The Company maintains risk management control systems to monitor interest rate cash flow risk attributable to both the Company’s outstanding and forecasted
debt obligations as well as the Company’s offsetting hedge positions. The risk management control systems involve the use of analytical techniques to estimate
the expected impact of changes in interest rates on the Company’s future cash flows.

The Company has entered into interest rate swap transactions to hedge the variable interest rate payments on its credit facilities. In connection with the
transactions, the Company pays interest based upon a fixed rate as agreed upon with the respective counterparties and receives variable rate interest payments
based on the one-month LIBOR. The interest rate swaps have an aggregate notional amount of $195,000, with periodic decreases, have been designated as
hedging instruments and are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The interest rate swaps are scheduled to expire in April 2023, and October 2025. The contracts
are settled with the respective counterparties on a net basis at each settlement date. Assuming LIBOR rates consistent with year-end, the estimated losses
included in AOCI at January 2, 2021, that are expected to be reclassified into earnings during the 2021 fiscal year total $3,978.

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Company has entered into forward contracts to economically hedge translational and transactional exposure associated with various business units whose
local currency differs from the Company’s reporting currency. The Company’s forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting
purposes.  

At January 2, 2021, the Company had twelve forward foreign exchange contracts with an aggregate notional value of €51,798, maturing at various dates through
July 2022.

Net Investment Hedge

The Company utilizes foreign currency denominated debt to hedge currency exposure in foreign operations. The Company has designated € 90,000 of borrowings
on the revolving credit facility as a net investment hedge of a portion of the Company’s European operations. The carrying value of the euro denominated debt
totaled $109,909 as of January 2, 2021 and is included in the Revolving line of credit line item in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The loss on the net
investment hedge recorded in AOCI as part of the currency translation adjustment was $7,246, net of tax, for the year ended January 2, 2021. A loss of $ 164,
associated with the net investment hedge, was reclassified from AOCI into income for the year ended January 2, 2021.
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10.  CREDIT FACILITIES

Total long-term non-revolving debt consists of the following:
 Maturity Date  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Long-term non-revolving debt:          

Term loan credit facility with PNC Bank 10/28/2025  $ 200,000   $ 91,250  
Term loan credit facility with Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. 12/23/2021   6,106    —  
Term loan credit facility with Citibank 11/22/2023   400    —  
Other long-term debt Various   264    1,238  

Total long-term non-revolving debt    206,770    92,488  
Less: current portion of long-term non-revolving debt   16,229    7,623  
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs    609    803  

Total long-term non-revolving debt, net   $ 189,932   $ 84,062

Information on the Company's revolving credit facilities is as follows:
   Balance   Available credit  
 Maturity Date  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  

Revolving line of credit with PNC Bank 10/28/2025  $ 255,909   $ 208,708   $ 144,045   $ 191,292  
Revolving line of credit with Citibank 11/18/2021  $ 315   $ —   $ 1,982   $ —

Future maturities of total debt are as follows:

Year:    
2021 $ 16,670  
2022  15,274  
2023  15,141  
2024  20,000  
2025  395,909  
Total $ 462,994

Term Loan and Line of Credit with PNC Bank

On October 28, 2020, the Company amended and restated its credit agreement with PNC Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and the lenders
party thereto. The amendment increased the term loan credit facility to an aggregate principle amount of $200,000 and revised the accordion feature to permit the
increase of the amended and restated facility by up to an additional $300,000. The aggregate maximum borrowing amount on the revolving line of credit
remained unchanged at $400,000. Borrowings under the line of credit bear interest at defined rates plus an applicable margin based on the Company’s leverage
ratio.

The credit agreement requires the Company to comply with a number of restrictive covenants, including limitations on the Company’s ability to incur
indebtedness; create or maintain liens on its property or assets; make investments, loans and advances; repurchase shares of its common stock; engage in
acquisitions, mergers, joint ventures, consolidation and asset sales; and pay dividends and distributions. The Company (together with its subsidiaries) is also
required to comply with certain financial tests, including a minimum interest coverage ratio (as defined therein) of 3.0 to 1.0 and a maximum leverage ratio of
3.75 to 1.0. As of January 2, 2021, the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to the credit agreement.

The credit facility is guaranteed by the Company’s U.S. domestic subsidiaries and requires any future U.S. domestic subsidiaries to join as guarantors. In
addition, the credit facility is required to be secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and its current and future U.S. domestic subsidiaries of the
Company.
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To hedge currency exposure in foreign operations, € 90,000 of the borrowings on the line of credit are denominated in euros. The borrowings have been
designated as a net investment hedge, see additional information in Note 9.

The effective interest rate on the credit agreement at January 2, 2021, was 2.96%. Interest expense recognized on the credit agreement during the years ended
January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018 was $9,500, $14,149 and $12,799, respectively.

Term Loan with Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

On June 23, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. that provided an unsecured term loan of € 5,000. The facility bears
interest at 1.25%. Repayment of the facility begins in January 2021 and is due in 12 monthly installments. The loan bears a guarantee from SACE S.p.A. – the
Italian export public credit agency operating in the insurance and financial services sectors – pursuant to the Law Decree No. 23 of April 8, 2020, converted (with
amendments) into Law No. 40 of June 5, 2020.

Term Loan and Line of Credit with Citibank

On May 18, 2020, the Company entered into an uncommitted fixed asset facility agreement (the “Fixed Asset Facility”) and short-term revolving facility
agreement (the “Working Capital Facility”) with Citibank (China) Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch, as lender.

Under the Fixed Asset Facility, the Company may, from time-to-time for a period of 180 days, borrow amounts on a secured basis up to a total of RMB 50,000.
The proceeds of such loans may be used for purchases of certain equipment. Outstanding borrowings under the Fixed Asset Facility accrue interest at a rate equal
to the National Interbank Funding Center 1-year loan prime rate plus 1.50%, to be repaid on a specified schedule with the final payment due in November 2023.

Under the Working Capital Facility, the Company may from time to time borrow amounts on an unsecured revolving facility of up to a total of RMB 15,000.
Proceeds may only be used for expenditures related to production at the Company’s facility located in Kunshan City, China. Outstanding borrowings under the
Working Capital Facility accrue interest at a rate equal to the National Interbank Funding Center 1-year loan prime rate plus 0.50%. All outstanding balances
will be due in November 2021.

As of the date of this filing, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants related to the Fixed Asset Facility and Working Capital Facility.

Other Credit Facilities

The Company had a credit agreement with Shinhan Bank that provided a term loan of KRW 1,000,000. The loan matured in March 2020, at which time the
balance was paid in full.  

The Company’s other long-term debt consists of auto loans payable to National Australia Bank. Interest is charged at various rates ranging from 4.5% to 5.1%.
Principal and interest payments are due monthly. The loans mature at various dates through July 2023.

11.  DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company declared dividends of $11,556, $11,532, and $11,444 to shareholders in 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.
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The Company declared the following regular quarterly dividends to shareholders during 2020, 2019 and 2018. The dividends were declared to shareholders of
record on the 5th day following the respective quarter end and paid on the 20 th day of each month following the date of declaration. 

   2020    2019    2018  
First quarter  $ 0.09   $ 0.09   $ 0.09  
Second quarter   0.09    0.09    0.09  
Third quarter   0.09    0.09    0.09  
Fourth quarter   0.09    0.09    0.09

 

12.  INCOME TAXES

For financial reporting purposes, income before income taxes includes the following components:
 

  For the year ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  
United States  $ 30,619   $ 51,007   $ 44,693  
Foreign   (6,572 )   24,300    11,702  
Total  $ 24,047   $ 75,307   $ 56,395

 
The Company derives its pretax income based on the consolidated results of its legal entities. Products manufactured in the U.S. are sold worldwide and are the
primary reason that pretax income in the U.S. is higher than foreign pretax income. The U.S. legal entities had third-party export sales of $106,147, $105,976,
and $98,876 for the 2020, 2019 and 2018 years, respectively. Foreign pretax income is impacted by the level of foreign manufacturing, sales at varying market
levels, as well as direct sales to large OEM customers.

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows:
 

  For the year ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  
Current tax expense (benefit):             

United States  $ 3,251   $ 7,380   $ 4,229  
State and local   1,166    (388 )   2,522  
Foreign   7,430    9,107    3,707  
Total current   11,847    16,099    10,458  

Deferred tax expense (benefit):             
United States   3,190    665    380  
State and local   (326 )   58    110  
Foreign   (4,882 )   (1,783 )   (1,283 )
Total deferred   (2,018 )   (1,060 )   (793 )

Total income tax provision  $ 9,829   $ 15,039   $ 9,665
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On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the “Act”) was signed into law making significant changes to the Internal Revenue Code.  Changes
include, but are not limited to, a corporate tax rate decrease from 35% to 21% effective for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, the transition of U.S
international taxation from a worldwide tax system to a territorial system, and a one-time transition tax on the mandatory deemed repatriation of cumulative
foreign earnings as of December 31, 2017. As a result of the Act, the Company recorded in the 2017 year-end income tax provision $459 of additional income
tax expense, including a benefit of $1,541 related to remeasurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities and $ 2,000 of expense related to one-time transition tax
on mandatory deemed repatriation of foreign earnings. Refinements to these items were made during 2018 for the purpose of 2017 tax return reporting, and
provision-to-return adjustments have been recorded in the 2018 year-end provision to adjust the transition tax to $630. The Company elected to pay the transition
tax in full during the 2018 fiscal year.

As of January 2, 2021, the Company had approximately $ 19,300 of undistributed earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries for which it has not provided for non-U.S.
withholding taxes and state taxes because such earnings are intended to be reinvested in international operations.

In January 2018, the FASB released guidance on the accounting for tax on the global intangible low-taxed income (“GILTI”) provisions of the Act. The GILTI
provisions impose a tax on foreign income in excess of a deemed return on tangible assets of foreign corporations. The guidance indicates that either accounting
for deferred taxes related to GILTI inclusions or treating any taxes on GILTI inclusions as a period cost are acceptable methods subject to an accounting policy
election. The Company has elected to treat any taxes on GILTI inclusions as period costs.

The reconciliation between the effective income tax rate and the U.S. federal statutory rate is as follows:
 

  For the year ended  
  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  

U.S. federal taxes at statutory rate  $ 5,057   $ 15,815   $ 11,843  
Increase (decrease)             

986(c) FX gain/(loss)   —    (281 )   —  
Foreign withholding tax   326    —    —  
Capitalized transaction costs   387    —    —  
Foreign income taxed at different rate   1,363    1,446    1,292  
FDII deduction   (1,265 )   (1,790 )   (2,195 )
Changes in estimates related to prior years including foreign   (2,530 )   —    (2,049 )
Goodwill impairment   6,693    —    —  
State and local taxes, net   595    (73 )   1,462  
Current year tax credits   (674 )   (663 )   (633 )
Foreign deferred other true up   —    —    (810 )
Change in reserve   (453 )   957    578  
Foreign patent box benefit   —    (1,213 )   (937 )
Increase in valuation allowance   —    116    526  
Other   330    725    588  

Income tax provision  $ 9,829   $ 15,039   $ 9,665
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are provided to reflect the future tax consequences of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts in the financial statements. The temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of January
2, 2021, and December 28, 2019, are presented below:
 

  January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019  
Deferred tax assets:         

Foreign tax benefit of U.S. reserves  $ 5,086   $ 3,691  
Net operating losses   6,159    510  
Inventory   2,495    1,824  
Intangible assets and goodwill   675    2,518  
Accrued expenses and other   5,485    2,883  
Other comprehensive income   —    3,887  

Total deferred tax assets   19,900    15,313  
Less: Valuation allowance   (428 )   (428 )
Net deferred tax assets   19,472    14,885  
Deferred tax liabilities:         

Depreciation   (7,493 )   (6,495 )
Intangible assets and goodwill   (82,126 )   (51,834 )
Other deferred tax liabilities   (1,564 )   (43 )
Other comprehensive income   (508 )   —  

Total deferred tax liabilities   (91,691 )   (58,372 )
Net deferred tax liabilities  $ (72,219 )  $ (43,487 )

 
As of January 2, 2021, the Company has federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of approximately $ 14,400, Oklahoma NOLs carryforwards of $14,300
and California NOL carryforwards of $33,400. The Oklahoma NOLs are expected to be fully utilized by 2024. The federal and California NOLs were generated
by Balboa during pre-acquisition tax years 2011-2019 and are subject to a 20-year carryforward period. As a result of the acquisition, both the federal and the
California NOLs are subject to various limitations under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 382. IRC Section 382 limits the use of NOLs to the extent there
has been an ownership change of more than 50 percent. Additionally, California enacted legislation in June 2020 to suspend the usage of NOLs for tax years
2020, 2021, and 2022. Despite these limitations, the Company expects to fully utilize the federal NOLs by 2027 and the California NOLs by 2025 and thus has
recorded a deferred tax asset of $6,159 for all NOLs. Approximately $2,685 of the expected NOL benefit is payable to the previous owners of Balboa. The
payout is considered contingent consideration and has an estimated fair value of $1,919 as of the acquisition date.

A valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported is required if, based on the weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. For the fiscal years ended 2020 and 2019 management has determined that no material valuation allowances
were required. 

The Company prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for an uncertain tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
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The following is a roll-forward of the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits:
 

Unrecognized tax benefits - December 30, 2017  $ 4,542  
Increases from positions taken during prior periods   372  
Increases from positions taken during current period   2,036  
Settled positions   —  
Lapse of statute of limitations   (837 )

Unrecognized tax benefits - December 29, 2018  $ 6,113  
Increases from positions taken during prior periods   1,121  
Increases from positions taken during current period   817  
Settled positions   —  
Lapse of statute of limitations   —  

Unrecognized tax benefits - December 28, 2019  $ 8,051  
Increases from positions taken during prior periods   656  
Increases from positions taken during current period   459  
Current year acquisitions   3,170  
Settled positions   (947 )
Lapse of statute of limitations   —  

Unrecognized tax benefits - January 2, 2021  $ 11,389
 
At January 2, 2021, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $ 11,389 including accrued interest. If recognized, $ 1,842 of unrecognized tax benefits would
reduce the effective tax rate in future periods. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. Interest
related to the unrecognized tax benefit has been recognized and included in income tax expense. Interest accrued as of January 2, 2021, is not considered
material to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company remains subject to income tax examinations in the U.S. and various state and foreign jurisdictions for tax years 2009-2019. Although the Company
is not currently under examination in most jurisdictions, limited transfer pricing disputes exist for years dating back to 2008. The Company believes it has
adequately reserved for income taxes that could result from any audit adjustments. Although the timing of the resolution and/or closure of audits is highly
uncertain, it is reasonably possible that the balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits could significantly change in the next 12 months.

13.  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company’s 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (“2019 Plan”) and its predecessor equity plan provide for the grant of shares of restricted stock, restricted share
units, stock options, stock appreciation rights, dividend or dividend equivalent rights, stock awards and other awards valued in whole or in part by reference to or
otherwise based on the Company’s common stock, to officers, employees and directors of the Company. As of January 2, 2021, 968,666 shares remained
available to be issued through the 2019 Plan.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The Company grants restricted shares of common stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) in connection with a long-term incentive plan. Awards with time-
based vesting requirements primarily vest ratably over a three-year period. Awards with performance-based vesting requirements cliff vest after a three-year
performance cycle and only after the achievement of certain performance criteria over that cycle. The number of shares ultimately issued for the performance-
based units may vary from 0% to 200% of their target amount based on the achievement of defined performance targets.
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Compensation expense recognized for restricted stock and RSUs totaled $ 4,182, $3,465 and $2,728 for the years ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019 and
December 29, 2018, respectively.

The following table summarizes restricted stock and RSU activity for the 2020 fiscal year:  

  

Number of
shares / units
(in thousands)   

Weighted average
grant-date

fair value per share  
Nonvested balance at December 28, 2019   203   $ 42.73  

Granted   186    36.83  
Vested   (79 )   43.60  
Forfeited   (71 )   41.78  

Nonvested balance at January 2, 2021 (1)   239   $ 38.95
(1) Includes 61,386 unvested performance-based RSUs.

The grant date fair value of restricted stock and RSUs granted during the 2020, 2019 and 2018 fiscal years totaled $ 6,843, $5,079 and $5,947, respectively.

The Company had $5,444 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the restricted stock and RSU awards as of January 2, 2021. That cost is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.7 years.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes stock options the Company has granted to its officers (in thousands, except per share data):
          January 2, 2021  
  Options   Option Exercise   Options   Options   Options  

Date of Grant  Granted   (Strike) Price   Forfeited   Outstanding   Exercisable  
February 28, 2020   18   $ 39.75    10    9    —  
July 1, 2020   5    35.04    —    5    —  

Total   23        10    14    —

The exercise prices per share are equal to the market price of Helios stock on the respective grant dates. The options vest ratable over a three-year period and
have a 10-year expiration. The grant date fair value of the options was estimated using a Black Scholes valuation model. At January 2, 2021, the Company had
$133 of unrecognized compensation cost related to the options which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.3 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) in which U.S. employees are eligible to participate. Employees who choose to participate
are granted an opportunity to purchase common stock at 85 percent of market value on the first or last day of the quarterly purchase period, whichever is lower.
Employees in the United Kingdom (“UK”), under a separate plan, are granted an opportunity to purchase the Company’s common stock at market value, on the
first or last day of the quarterly purchase period, whichever is lower, with the Company issuing one additional free share of common stock for each six shares
purchased by the employee under the plan. The ESPP authorizes the issuance, and the purchase by employees, of up to 1,096,875 shares of common stock
through payroll deductions. No U.S. employee is allowed to buy more than $25 of common stock in any year, based on the market value of the common stock at
the beginning of the purchase period, and no UK employee is allowed to buy more than the lesser of £1.5 or 10% of his or her annual salary in any year.  
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Employees purchased 43,574 shares at a weighted average price of $ 30.86, and 49,195 shares at a weighted average price of $ 33.55, under the ESPP and UK
Plan during the years ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, respectively. The Company recognized $431, $551 and $324 of compensation expense
during the years ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018, respectively. At January 2, 2021, 411,629 shares remained available to be
issued through the ESPP and the U.K. plan.

Nonemployee Director Fees Plan

In March 2012, the Board of Directors adopted the Sun Hydraulics Corporation 2012 Nonemployee Director Fees Plan (the “2012 Directors Plan”), which was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at its 2012 annual meeting. Under the 2012 Directors Plan, Nonemployee Directors are compensated for their
Board service solely in shares of common stock.  In February 2015, the Board adopted amendments to the 2012 Directors Plan, which revised the compensation
for Nonemployee Directors.  Each Nonemployee Director receives an annual retainer of 2,000 shares of Common Stock. The Chairman's retainer is twice that of
a regular director, and the retainer for the chairs of each Board Committee is 150% that of a regular director. In addition, each Nonemployee Director receives
250 shares of Common Stock for attendance at each Board meeting and each meeting of each committee of the Board on which he or she serves when the
committee meeting is not held within one day of a meeting of the Board. In June 2015, the Company's shareholders approved the amendments to the 2012
Directors Plan.

The Board has the authority to change from time to time, in any manner it deems desirable or appropriate, the share compensation to be awarded to all or any one
or more Nonemployee Directors, provided that, with limited exceptions, such changes are subject to prior shareholder approval. The aggregate number of shares
which may be issued during any single calendar year is limited to 35,000 shares. The 2012 Directors Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 270,000 shares of
common stock. At January 2, 2021, 71,549 shares remained available for issuance under the 2012 Directors Plan. Directors were granted 26,675 and 25,200
shares for the years ended January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, respectively. The Company recognized director stock compensation expense of $1,178,
$1,162 and $1,213 for the years ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018, respectively.

14.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan, under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, covering substantially all of its
eligible U.S. employees. Employer contribution costs recognized under the retirement plan amounted to approximately $2,373, $3,511, and $3,807 during 2020,
2019, and 2018, respectively.

The Company provides supplemental pension benefits to its employees of foreign operations in addition to mandatory benefits included in local country payroll
statutes. These benefits amounted to approximately $3,591, $1,905, and $1,865 during 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.
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15.  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The following table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss by component:
 

  

Unrealized
Gains and

(Losses) on Derivative
Instruments   

Foreign
Currency

Items   Total  
Balance at December 30, 2017  $ —   $ (6,478 )  $ (6,478 )

Other comprehensive loss before
   reclassifications   (2,741 )   (37,466 )   (40,207 )
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
   other comprehensive loss   432    —    432  

Net current period other comprehensive loss   (2,309 )   (37,466 )   (39,775 )
Balance at December 29, 2018  $ (2,309 )  $ (43,944 )  $ (46,253 )

Other comprehensive loss before
   reclassifications   (2,616 )   (9,515 )   (12,131 )
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
   other comprehensive loss, net of tax   (866 )   —    (866 )
Tax effect   419    3,467    3,886  

Net current period other comprehensive loss   (3,063 )   (6,048 )   (9,111 )
Balance at December 28, 2019  $ (5,372 )  $ (49,992 )  $ (55,364 )

Other comprehensive income before
   reclassifications   975    27,306    28,281  
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
   other comprehensive loss, net of tax   (2,862 )   —    (2,862 )
Tax effect   1,337    (5,732 )   (4,395 )

Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income   (550 )   21,574    21,024  
Balance at January 2, 2021  $ (5,922 )  $ (28,418 )  $ (34,340 )
 

The following table presents reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss:
 

Details about Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Consolidated For the year Ended  
Comprehensive Income Components Statements of Operations January 2, 2021   December 28, 2019   December 29, 2018  
Derivative financial instruments             

Interest rate swap Interest expense, net $ (3,712 )  $ (1,110 )  $ (547 )
 Tax benefit  850    244    115  
 Net of tax $ (2,862 )  $ (866 )  $ (432 )
             
Total reclassifications for the period  $ (2,862 )  $ (866 )  $ (432 )
 

16.  SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has two reportable segments: Hydraulics and Electronics. These segments are organized primarily based on the similar nature of products offered
for sale, the types of customers served and the methods of distribution and are consistent with how the segments are managed, how resources are allocated and
how information is used by the chief operating decision makers.
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The Hydraulics segment provides the global capital goods industries with hydraulic components and systems used to transmit power and control force, speed and
motion. There are three key technologies within the Hydraulics segment: cartridge valve technology (CVT), quick-release hydraulic coupling solutions (QRC)
and hydraulic system design (Systems). CVT products provide functions important to a hydraulic system: to control rates and direction of fluid flow and to
regulate and control pressures. QRC products allow users to connect and disconnect quickly from any hydraulic circuit without leakage and ensure high-
performance under high temperature and pressure using one or multiple couplers. Systems provide engineered solutions for machine users, manufacturers or
designers to fulfill complete system design requirements including electro-hydraulic, remote control, electronic control and programmable logic controller
systems, as well as automation of existing equipment.

The Electronics segment provides complete, fully-tailored display and control solutions for engines, engine-driven equipment, specialty vehicles and therapy
baths and spas. This broad range of products is complemented by extensive application expertise and unparalleled depth of software, embedded programming,
hardware and sustaining engineering teams. This technology is referred to as Electronic Controls (EC). Product categories include traditional mechanical and
electronic gauge instrumentation, plug and go CAN-based instruments, robust environmentally sealed controllers, pumps and jets, hydraulic controllers,
engineered panels and application specialists, process monitoring instrumentation, proprietary hardware and software development, printed circuit board
assembly and wiring harness design and manufacturing and after-market support through global distribution.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based primarily on segment operating income. Certain costs were not allocated to the business
segments as they are not used in evaluating the results of, or in allocating resources to the Company’s segments. These costs are presented in the Corporate and
other line item.  For the year ended January 2, 2021, these unallocated costs totaled $65,947 and include certain corporate costs not deemed to be allocable to
either business segment of $2,567, goodwill impairment recognized on the Faster business unit of $ 31,871, acquisition related costs including Balboa transaction
costs of $6,644, charges related to the inventory step up to fair value of $ 1,874, amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets of $ 22,114 and other
acquisition and integration related activities of $877. The accounting policies of the Company’s operating segments are the same as those used to prepare the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table presents financial information by reportable segment for the last three fiscal years:
 

  2020   2019   2018  
Net sales:             

Hydraulics  $ 407,192   $ 442,812   $ 381,845  
Electronics   115,848    111,853    126,200  

Total  $ 523,040   $ 554,665   $ 508,045  
Operating income:             

Hydraulics  $ 81,996   $ 86,027   $ 83,858  
Electronics   19,363    21,994    25,046  
Corporate and other   (65,947 )   (17,906 )   (33,350 )

Total  $ 35,412   $ 90,115   $ 75,554  
Capital expenditures:             

Hydraulics  $ 11,725   $ 22,221   $ 25,782  
Electronics   2,855    2,804    2,598  

Total  $ 14,580   $ 25,025   $ 28,380  
Total assets:             

Hydraulics  $ 765,155   $ 768,324   $ 771,409  
Electronics   523,502    251,252    263,412  
Corporate   8,322    2,175    7,344  

Total  $ 1,296,979   $ 1,021,751   $ 1,042,165
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Geographic Region Information:

Net sales are measured based on the geographic destination of sales. Tangible long-lived assets are shown based on the physical location of the assets and
primarily include net property, plant and equipment and exclude ROU assets. The following table presents financial information by region for the last three fiscal
years:
 

  2020   2019   2018  
Net sales             
Americas  $ 224,470   $ 258,542   $ 257,684  
EMEA   142,062    150,091    139,776  
APAC   156,508    146,032    110,585  

Total  $ 523,040   $ 554,665   $ 508,045  
             

Tangible long-lived assets             
Americas  $ 96,752   $ 87,104   $ 83,664  
EMEA   31,091    28,436    26,724  
APAC   18,718    18,004    16,480  

Total  $ 146,561   $ 133,544   $ 126,868
 

17.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company purchases from and sells inventory to entities partially owned or managed by directors of Helios. For the years ended January 2, 2021,
December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018, inventory sales to the entities totaled $3,493, $1,441 and $2,584, respectively, and inventory purchases from the
entities totaled $4,310, $4,732 and $6,178, respectively.

The Company also utilizes the legal services of a law firm where a director of Helios is a partner. Expenses incurred from the entity totaled $ 246 for the year
ended January 2, 2021.

 At January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019, total amounts due from the entities totaled $ 528 and $73, respectively, and total amounts due to the entity totaled
$421 and $361, respectively.

18.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Building Purchase Commitment

The company has entered into a lease to buy agreement for the purchase of a building for € 26,683. The agreement includes an option to purchase during the lease
period with a commitment to purchase at the end of the 6-year lease period. The purchase price will be reduced by 60% of the lease payments made prior to
purchase.  

Legal Proceedings

The Company is not a party to any legal proceedings other than routine litigation incidental to its business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate
liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the results of operations, financial position or cash flows of the Company.

Insurance

The Company accrues for certain health care benefit costs under a self-funded plan and records a liability for all unresolved claims at the anticipated cost to the
Company at the end of the period based on management’s assessment.  The Company believes it has adequate reserves for all self-insured claims.
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Letters of Credit

In the ordinary course of business, we are at times required to post letters of credit. The letters of credit are issued by financial institutions to guarantee our
obligations to various parties. We were contingently liable for $1,840 of standby letters of credit with financial institutions as of January 2, 2021.

19.  UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

  For the quarter ended  
  Jan 2,   Sept 26,   Jun 27,   Mar 28,  
  2021   2020   2020   2020  

Net sales  $ 151,618   $ 122,645   $ 119,294   $ 129,483  
Gross profit   52,716    46,943    44,719    51,850  
Operating income (loss)   10,400    18,343    16,702    (10,033 )
Income (loss) before income taxes   7,156    16,362    13,544    (13,015 )
Net income (loss)   5,551    12,982    12,908    (17,223 )
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share  $ 0.17   $ 0.40   $ 0.40   $ (0.54 )

 
  For the quarter ended  
  Dec 28,   Sept 28,   Jun 29,   Mar 30,  
  2019   2019   2019   2019  

Net sales  $ 125,927   $ 138,045   $ 143,842   $ 146,851  
Gross profit   47,427    52,119    56,227    56,509  
Operating income   18,772    19,138    26,373    25,832  
Income before income taxes   16,861    15,462    21,925    21,059  
Net income   13,809    12,791    17,265    16,404  
Basic and diluted net income per common share  $ 0.43   $ 0.40   $ 0.54   $ 0.51
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness
of the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
“Exchange Act”) as of the end of the period covered by this report, have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective and are designed to
ensure that the information we are required to disclose is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the necessary time periods. Our disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we
file or submit pursuant to the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
 • pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

Company;
 • provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded, as necessary, to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.

GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the Company; and

 • provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Management, with the participation of the
President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation under the Internal Control - Integrated Framework, management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 2, 2021. On November 6, 2020 we acquired
Balboa Water Group. Management excluded Balboa from its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of January 2, 2021, as
we are currently integrating policies, processes, people and technology for the combined companies. Management will continue to evaluate internal control over
financial reporting as we execute our integration activities.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the year ended January 2, 2021, that materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Attestation Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Grant Thornton LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on our internal control over financial reporting.  This
report appears on page 49.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

85
 



PART III.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

Executive Officers

The information required by this item with respect to our executive officers is set forth in our 2021 Proxy Statement under the caption "Governance of the
Company" and is incorporated herein by reference.

Directors

The information required by this item with respect to our board of directors and committees thereof is set forth in our 2021 Proxy Statement under the caption
"Governance of the Company" and is incorporated herein by reference.

Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports

The information required by this item with respect to Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance is set forth in our 2021 Proxy Statement under the
caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" and is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The information required by this item with respect to our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is set forth in our 2021 Proxy Statement under the caption
"Governance of the Company" and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation" in our 2021 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item with respect to equity compensation plans is set forth under the caption "Equity Compensation Plan Information" in our
2021 Proxy Statement and with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners, directors and executive officers is set forth under the caption "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters" in our 2021 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is set forth under the captions "Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation," "Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions" and “Independence and Committees of the Board of Directors" in our 2021 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" in our
2021 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
 
  Page
1. The following financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8:   
   

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  47
   

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 2, 2021 and December 28, 2019  50
   

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019, and December 29, 2018  51
   

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019, and December 29, 2018  52
   

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019, and December 29, 2018  53
   

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended January 2, 2021, December 28, 2019, and December 29, 2018  54
   

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  56

All other schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
notes thereto in Item 8 above.
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2.  Exhibits:
 
Exhibit
Number

 
Exhibit Description

   
   
2.1  Share Purchase Agreement dated February 18, 2018 among the Company, Capvis IV Co-Investors Faster L.P. and certain Co-Investors

(previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on February 20, 2018, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
2.2  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 9, 2020, by and among Helios Technologies, Inc., Vitality Merger Sub, Inc., BWG

Holdings I Corp., ICM Holdco I Corp., and SBF II Representative Corp. (previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on
October 13, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).*

   
2.3  First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 3, 2020, by and among Helios Technologies, Inc., Vitality Merger

Sub, Inc., BWG Holdings I Corp., ICM Holdco I Corp., and SBF II Representative Corp. (previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).*

   
3.1  Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 in the Pre-Effective Amendment No. 4 to the

Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on December 19, 1996 (File No. 333-14183), and incorporated herein by reference).
   
3.2  Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation effective June 8, 2011 (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on

June 9, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
3.3  Articles of Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State of Florida on June 4, 2014

(previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
3.4  Articles of Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State of Florida on June 13, 2019

(previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2019, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
3.5  Second Amended and Restated Bylaws dated June 14, 2019 (previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on June 18,

2019, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
3.6  Third Amended and Restated Bylaws dated August 7, 2020 (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 10,

2020 and incorporated herein by reference).
   
4.1  Description of Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (previously filed as Exhibit 4.1

to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.1+  Form of Indemnification Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2020, and incorporated

herein by reference).
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Exhibit
Number

 
Exhibit Description

10.2+  Sun Hydraulics Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.14+ to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K filed on March 9, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).

   
10.3+  Amendment No. 1 to Sun Hydraulics Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan dated July 1, 2017 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.7+ to the

Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2018, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.4+  Amendment No. 2 to Helios Technologies, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan dated September 20, 2019 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.4+ to

the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.5+  2011 Equity Incentive Plan (previously filed as Appendix A to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2012

Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on April 20, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.6+  Form of agreement for grants of restricted shares under the Sun Hydraulics 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.24+ to

the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 13, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.7+  Helios Technologies 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (previously filed as Appendix A to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule

14A for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on April 26, 2019, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.8+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.4+ to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2019, and

incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.9+  Sun Hydraulics Corporation Executive Compensation Policy (previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on February

25, 2018, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.10+  Sun Hydraulics Corporation 2012 Nonemployee Director Fee Plan (previously filed as Appendix B to the Company’s Definitive Proxy

Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on April 20, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference)
   
10.11+  Sun Hydraulics Corporation Amendment No. 1 to 2012 Nonemployee Director Fees Plan (previously filed as Appendix “A” to the Company’s

Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on April 20, 2015, and incorporated herein
by reference)

   
10.12+  Sun Hydraulics Limited Share Incentive Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on

March 27, 2009 (File Number 333158245), and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.13+  Form of Executive Officer Continuity Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.3+ to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2019, and

incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.14+  Form of Executive Officer Severance Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2+ to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2019, and

incorporated herein by reference).
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Exhibit
Number

 
Exhibit Description

10.15+  Executive Officer Severance Agreement between Josef Matosevic and Helios Technologies, Inc., dated June 1, 2020 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1+
to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on May 15, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).

   
10.16+  Separation Agreement between Wolfgang H. Dangel and Helios Technologies, Inc., dated April 5, 2020 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1+

to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).*
   
10.17  Revolving Credit Facility Credit Agreement, dated July 29, 2016, between Sun Hydraulics Corporation and PNC Capital Markets LLC,

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Report on Form
8-K filed on August 3, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

   
10.18  Pledge Agreement dated July 29, 2016 (previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2016,

and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.19  Revolving Credit Note dated July 29, 2016 (previously filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3,

2016, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.20  Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated October 28, 2020, by and among Helios Technologies, Inc. as Borrower, the

Guarantor parties thereto, the financial institutions party thereto from time to time as lenders, and PNC Bank, National Association, as
Administrative Agent. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on October 30, 2020, and
incorporated herein by reference).

   
10.21+  Separation Agreement between Rajasekhar Menon and Helios Technologies, Inc., dated September 9, 2020 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1+ to

the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.22+  Employment Agreement between Matteo Arduini and Helios Technologies, Inc., dated December 20, 2018, as amended on February 28, 2020

and December 16, 2020 (filed herewith).
   
10.23+  Helios Technologies 2020 Executive Compensation Policy (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1+ to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on March 3,

2020, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.24+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit and Stock Option Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2+ to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on March 3,

2020, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
10.25+  Form of Special Retention Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1+ to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on April 28,

2020, and incorporated herein by reference).
   
14  Helios Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (filed herewith).
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Exhibit
Number

 
Exhibit Description

21  Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
   
23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
   
31.1  CEO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 .
   
31.2  CFO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 .
   
32.1  CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 .
   
32.2  CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 .
   
101.INS  Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded

within the Inline XBRL document.
   
101.SCH  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
   
101.CAL  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
   
101.DEF  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
   
101.LAB  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
   
101.PRE  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
   
104  The cover page from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2021, has been formatted in Inline XBRL.
 
+ Executive management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
* Certain portions of the exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Rule 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The omitted information is (i) not material and (ii)

would likely cause competitive harm to Helios if publicly disclosed.
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ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on March 2, 2021.
 
  HELIOS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
     
  By:  /s/ Josef Matosevic
  

  
Josef Matosevic, President and
Chief Executive Officer

 
Pursuant to requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in

the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

Signature  Title Date
    
/s/ Josef Matosevic  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 2, 2021
Josef Matosevic    
    

/s/ Tricia L. Fulton  Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
 

March 2, 2021
Tricia L. Fulton    
    
/s/ Philippe Lemaitre  Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors March 2, 2021
Philippe Lemaitre    
    
/s/ Marc Bertoneche  Director March 2, 2021
Marc Bertoneche    
    
/s/ Douglas M. Britt  Director March 2, 2021
Douglas M. Britt    
    
/s/ Laura Dempsey Brown  Director March 2, 2021
Laura Dempsey Brown    
    
/s/ Cariappa M. Chenanda  Director March 2, 2021
Cariappa M. Chenanda    
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Exhibit 10.22

 
Rivolta d’Adda, 20/12/2018

a mano
 
Egregio signor
dott. Matteo Arduini
c/o sede
 
 
 
Egregio dott. Arduini,
 
come anticipatoLe oralmente, a seguito della acquisizione, da parte di
Sun Hydraulics Corporation d/b/a Helios Technologies (“Helios”) del
100% del capitale sociale di Faster S.p.A. (la “Società”), Lei –   alla
luce della professionalità e delle competenze, anche a livello
manageriale, dimostrate nell’esercizio delle Sue attività quale Chief
Financial Officer – è stato individuato quale manager chiave
nell’ambito della organizzazione della Società e del Gruppo (per
“Gruppo” si intende Helios Technologies Corporation e le società da
quest’ultima direttamente o indirettamente controllate, ivi inclusa la
Società).
Pertanto, con la presente siamo a confermarLe le seguenti modifiche
al Suo contratto di lavoro con la Società del 16 aprile 2018 (di seguito,
il “Contratto”) e che saranno efficaci con decorrenza dal 1° gennaio
2019.  
 

 Rivolta d’Adda, 20/12/2018
by hand
 
Dear Mr.
Matteo Arduini
Company’s office
 
 

 
Dear Mr. Arduini,

 
As  discussed, following the acquisition by Sun Hydraulics Corporation
d/b/a Helios Technologies (“Helios”) of 100% of the corporate capital
of  Faster S.p.A. (“Company”), you – considering the degree of
professionalism and skills, also managerial, manifested  in carrying out
your duties as Chief Financial Officer of the Company – have been
identified as a key manager within the organization of the Company and of
the Group (with “Group” referring to Helios Technologies Corporation and
the companies it directly or indirectly controls, including the Company).
Therefore, we hereby confirm the following changes to the terms and
conditions of your employment contract dated 16 April 2018 (the
“Contract”) which shall be effective as from 1 January 2019.

 
 
 

1.      Premesse
1.1    Le premesse formano parte integrante e sostanziale del presente

accordo (di seguito, l’“Accordo”).
 

 1.       Premises
1.1     The premises constitute a substantial and integrative part of this

agreement (hereinafter, the “Agreement”).
 

2.      Decorrenza del nuovo ruolo quale dirigente e funzioni
2.1     A far data dal 1° gennaio 2019, Le sarà assegnato il ruolo di

Direttore Generale e, in tale ruolo, Lei dovrà svolgere tutte le
attività tipiche di un direttore generale di organizzazioni quali la
nostra Società, occupandosi della direzione, gestione e
coordinamento delle diverse funzioni aziendali.

2.2     Inoltre, fino a quando la Società non avrà individuato le nuove
figure di vertice dell’area amministrazione e finanza e, in ogni
caso, fino a nuova disposizione, Lei continuerà a svolgere ad
interim le funzioni in precedenza assegnateLe quale Chief
Financial Officer.

 

 2.      Starting date of the new role as employee and responsibilities
2.1     The role of General Manager shall be assigned to you as of 1 January

2019 and, as General Manager, you shall perform all the typical
activities associated with the role of a general manager of entities
similar to our Company, taking on the direction, management and
coordination of the various company functions.

2.1     Moreover, for the period necessary for the Company to hire the new
management of the administration and financial department and, in
any case, until otherwise directed, you shall continue to perform ad
interim the functions previously assigned to you as Chief Financial
Officer.
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2.3    Quale Direttore Generale della Società, Lei riporterà al Consiglio

di Amministrazione della Società.  
 

 2.3    As General Manager of the Company, you shall report to the Board of
Directors of the Company.

 
3.      Cariche nell’ambito del Gruppo
3.1    Lei sarà nominato componente del Consiglio di Amministrazione

della Società e il Consiglio di Amministrazione La nominerà
Amministratore Delegato delegandoLe poteri generali di
rappresentanza. Resta inteso che, alla cessazione della Sua carica
per qualsivoglia ragione, la Società non sarà tenuta a
rinominarLa, e Lei non avrà alcun diritto a essere rinominato
amministratore e Amministratore Delegato.

 

 3.      Offices within the Group
3.1    You shall be appointed as member of the Board of Directors of the

Company and the Board of Directors shall appoint you as Managing
Director with general powers of representation. It is understood that,
upon the termination of your office for any reason whatsoever, the
Company will not be obliged to reappoint you and you will not be
entitled to be reappointed as member of the Board of Directors and
Managing Director.  

 
3.2    Come previsto dalle policy di Gruppo per tutte le figure di vertice

delle controllate della capogruppo Helios, società quotata in
borsa negli Stati Uniti, Lei, nel 2019, sarà, altresì, nominato dalla
medesima capogruppo quale proprio Section 16 officer.

 

 3.2    As provided for by Group policies for the top managers of the
subsidiaries of Helios, listed on the stock exchange in the USA, in
2019 you shall also be appointed by the parent company as a Section
16 officer of the parent company.

 
3.3    Resta espressamente inteso che il Suo trattamento retributivo

complessivo, così come modificato dal presente Accordo,
comprende l’intero compenso a Lei dovuto per tutte le attività da
Lei svolte a favore della Società e del Gruppo, ivi incluse le
attività conseguenti alla Sua nomina quale amministratore e
Amministratore Delegato della Società e/o di qualsivoglia altra
società del Gruppo, e alla delega di qualsiasi incarico e/o potere,
ivi incluso il Suo ruolo quale Section 16 officer della
capogruppo.

 

 3.3    It is expressly understood that your overall economic treatment, as
modified by this Agreement, shall include any and all consideration
due to you for the activities performed in favor of the Company and
the Group, including the activities carried out as director and
Managing Director of the Company and/or of any other company of
the Group, and in execution of any appointment or power assigned to
you, including your appointment as a Section 16 officer of the parent
company.  

 

3.4    Laddove, per ipotesi, Le fosse comunque riconosciuto un
emolumento o qualsivoglia altro compenso o indennità a fronte
delle cariche e/o altri incarichi a Lei conferiti, tale emolumento,
compenso o indennità non sarà, in nessun caso, considerato quale
parte della Sua retribuzione quale dipendente e, pertanto, non
rientrerà nella base di calcolo del TFR o di qualsivoglia indennità
che la Società dovesse essere tenuta a corrisponderLe alla
cessazione del Suo rapporto di lavoro a norma di legge e del
Contratto Collettivo Nazionale per i dirigenti di aziende
produttrici di beni e servizi (“CCNL”).

 

 3.4    Should you receive any director fee or any other consideration or
indemnity for the offices or other appointments assigned to you, such
director fee, consideration or indemnity shall not, in any event, be
considered part of your salary as employee and therefore, will not be
included in any calculation of your severance payment (TFR) or any
indemnity which the Company should be obliged to pay you at the
termination of your employment relationship under to the law and the
National Collective Labor Agreement for manager of industrial
companies (“CCNL”).
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4.      Trattamento economico
4.1    A partire dalla data del 1° gennaio 2019, in aggiunta a quanto

previsto al successivo articolo 5, Lei avrà diritto al seguente
trattamento economico.  

 

 4.      Economic treatment
4.1    Beginning 1 January 2019, in addition to what provided for by article

5 below, you will be entitled to the following economic treatment.
 

4.2    La retribuzione annua lorda a Lei spettante sarà pari a Euro
220.000, suddivisa in tredici mensilità, comprensiva della somma
di Euro 50.000 lordi a titolo di corrispettivo per il patto di non
concorrenza allegato al Contratto (di seguito, il “PNC”), come
modificato ai sensi del successivo articolo 7. Il superminimo,
che costituisce parte della Sua retribuzione, continuerà ad
assorbire, nei limiti dello stesso e nella misura massima
consentita, ogni e qualsiasi aumento salariale previsto dal CCNL
in vigore e successive modifiche. Restano valide, anche per
incrementi del superminimo a fronte di aumenti ad personam
della Sua retribuzione, le previsioni precedenti circa
l’assorbimento del superminimo.

 

 4.2    Your annual gross base salary will be equal to Euro 220,000, payable
in 13 monthly instalments of equal amount, which includes the gross
sum on Euro 50,000 as consideration for the non-competition
agreement attached to the Contract (hereinafter, the “NCA”), as
modified by article 7 below. The difference in your salary between
the minimum legal wage and that which you shall receive (a.k.a.
superminimum) shall continue to absorb, to the maximum extent
allowed, any future increase provided for by the CCNL and
amendments hereto. The provisions above regarding the absorption
of the superminimum shall also apply to increases of the
superminimum arising from ad personam increases of your salary.  

 

4.3    In aggiunta alla retribuzione annua lorda, Lei potrà ottenere una
retribuzione variabile ai sensi del piano di incentivazione
aziendale, c.d. Short Term Incentive Plan  (di seguito definito
“STIP”), il cui target bonus sarà pari al 30% della Sua
retribuzione annua lorda di cui al precedente articolo 4.2 (di
seguito, il “Target Bonus”). Sulla base della performance della
Società e del raggiungimento di determinati obiettivi,
l’ammontare della retribuzione variabile a Lei eventualmente
spettante potrà essere compreso tra 0 e 150% del Target Bonus
(pertanto, l’ammontare totale della retribuzione variabile potrà
raggiungere la misura massima del 45% della Sua retribuzione
annua lorda). Il pagamento della retribuzione variabile, se
spettante e nella misura effettivamente dovuta, sarà effettuato
entro il 15 marzo dell’anno successivo a quello di riferimento (o
in qualsiasi altro momento antecedente, così come eventualmente
stabilito dal compensation committee del consiglio di
amministrazione di Helios)a condizione che Lei sia in forza alla
Società al momento del pagamento e che non sia in corso alcun
periodo di preavviso per dimissioni.

 

 4.3    In addition to the gross base salary, you will be eligible to earn
variable compensation under the Company’s short term incentive
plan (“STIP”) with a target bonus of thirty (30%) of your annual
gross base salary as per article 4.2 above.   Depending on the
Company’s performance and achievement of certain targets, your
bonus payout can range between 0-150% of target under the plan (for
clarity, the total maximum payout could be 45% of your annual gross
base salary). The variable salary, if due and payable, shall be paid
within March 15th of the year following the one of reference (or such
earlier time as may be determined by the compensation committee of
the Helios board) on condition that you will be employed by the
Company on the payment date and that, at that date, no notice period
arising from your resignation be pending.
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4.4    Quale persona chiave all’interno del Gruppo, Lei parteciperà al

c.d. Long Term Incentive Plan  (di seguito definito “LTIP”) nel
contesto del quale, come specificato nel relativo regolamento che
racchiude tutti i termini e condizioni applicabili, Le saranno
assegnate restricted stock della capogruppo quotata Helios ai
termini e condizioni specificati nel medesimo LTIP e il cui valore
complessivo sarà nella misura massima del 50% della Sua
retribuzione annua lorda di cui al precedente articolo 4.2 (“LTIP
Target”). Nell’ambito del LTIP, Lei potrà ottenere fino a 1.50
volte il suddetto LTIP Target nel caso di raggiungimento o
superamento di determinati parametri di performance, secondo i
termini e condizioni di cui al medesimo LTIP, in relazione alla
parte di restricted stock la cui maturazione è determinata sulla
base della performance. La maturazione delle restricted stock a
Lei assegnate potrà essere legata alla performance o al decorso
del tempo, secondo la quanto sarà determinato dal compensation
committee del Consiglio di Amministrazione di Helios. Resta sin
d’ora espressamente inteso che qualsivoglia valore o vantaggio
in Suo favore derivante dal LTIP non sarà, in nessun caso,
considerato quale parte della Sua retribuzione e, pertanto, non
rientrerà nella base di calcolo del TFR o di qualsivoglia indennità
che la Società dovesse essere tenuta a corrisponderLe alla
cessazione del Suo rapporto di lavoro a norma di legge e del
CCNL.

 

 4.4    As key manager within the Group, you shall participate in the so-
called Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) in the context of which,
as specified in the relevant regulation which includes all the
applicable terms and conditions, you will receive a restricted stock
award of the listed parent company, Helios, under the terms and
conditions of the LTIP, whose overall value will be equal to a
maximum of 50% of your annual gross salary as per article 4.2
(“LTIP Target”).  Under the LTIP, you will have the ability to earn
up to 1.50 times the LTIP Target  in the case of achievement or
exceedance of certain performance metrics under the terms and
conditions of the LTIP on the portion of the award that is
performance based vesting. The vesting of the restricted stock award
may be performance or time based and the allocation of the vesting
will be determined by the compensation committee of the Helios
board of directors. It is understood that all and any values or
advantages in your favor arising from the LTIP shall not, in any
event, be considered part of your salary as employee and, therefore,
will not be included in any calculation of your severance payment
(TFR) or any indemnity which the Company should be obliged to pay
you at the termination of your employment relationship under to the
law and the CCNL.
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4.5    Il trattamento economico di cui agli articoli 4.2, 4.3 e 4.4 che

precedono sostituisce integralmente quello previsto dal Contratto,
dal PNC, dal piano di retention in data 2 maggio 2018 (di
seguito, il “Piano di Retention”) e dal Restricted Stock Grants
del 13 febbraio e del 2 maggio 2018 (di seguito, “Stock
Grants”). Pertanto, a partire dal 1° gennaio 2019 non troveranno
più applicazione e cesseranno, quindi, di avere qualsivoglia
efficacia, le seguenti disposizioni: (i) art. 4 del Contratto, anche
per quanto concerne l’aumento retributivo ivi previsto a partire
da aprile 2019; (ii) art. 5 del Contratto, per quanto attiene alla
somma di Euro 60.000 lordi da corrisponderLe, eventualmente,
con il cedolino di aprile 2019; (iii) art. 6 del Contratto, relativo
alla retribuzione variabile; (iv) artt. 4 e 5 del PNC (come meglio
precisato al successivo articolo 7); (v) Piano di Retention; e (vi)
Stock Grants.

         Lei riconosce espressamente e dichiara che il trattamento
economico complessivo di cui al presente articolo 4 rappresenta
un trattamento di miglior favore e, a partire dal 1° gennaio 2019,
sostituisce integralmente il trattamento originariamente
convenuto e attualmente in essere. Lei dichiara, altresì, di essere
pienamente soddisfatto dell’accordo raggiunto e oggi sottoscritto,
rinunciando pertanto a sollevare qualsiasi eccezione o
contestazione al riguardo.

 4.5    The economic treatment provided for articles 4.2, 4.3 and 4.4 above
entirely supersedes and replaces the economic treatment under the
Contract, the NCA, the Retention plan dated 2 May 2018,
(hereinafter, the “Retention Plan”) and the restricted stock grants of
13 February and 2 May 2018 (hereinafter, the “Stock Grants”).
Therefore, effective from 1 January 2019, will no longer apply and
will therefore ceases to be effective the following provisions: (i) art. 4
of the Contact, also with respect to the salary increase set forth
therein effective from April 2019; (ii) art. 5 of the Contract, with
respect to the amount of Euro 60,000 gross possibly due to you with
the pay-slip of April 2019; (iii) art. 6 of the Contract, concerning
variable pay; (iv) articles 4 and 5 of the NCA (as better specified
under article 7 below); (v) the Retention Plan; and (vi) the Stock
Grants. You hereby expressly acknowledge and declare that the
overall economic treatment provided for in this article 4 is a more
favorable treatment than the current one and, as from 1 January 2019,
it shall entirely supersede and replace the treatment originally agreed
and currently in force. You hereby declare to be fully satisfied of the
agreement reached and hereby executed, waiving therefore any
exception and/or claim in this regard.

 

5.      Fringe Benefits
5.1    Lei potrà continuare ad usare, anche a fini personali, l’autovettura

aziendale di categoria A (secondo la classificazione prevista
dalle policy aziendali in vigore) attualmente assegnataLe dalla
Società quale fringe benefit.

 

 5.      Fringe benefits
5.1    You shall continue to use, for both business and private purposes, a

category A company car, in accordance with the classification
provided for by the company policies in force, currently assigned to
you as fringe benefit.
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5.2    Inoltre, Le confermiamo che la Società Le metterà a disposizione

un alloggio, ad uso abitativo, il cui costo annuo complessivo non
potrà essere superiore a Euro 9.000 (qualsiasi ulteriore spesa o
costo per l’appartamento sarà a Suo carico). Resta inteso che,
considerata l’importanza della Sua presenza presso gli uffici
della Società alla luce del Suo nuovo ruolo, Lei si impegna a
cercare un appartamento nelle vicinanze della sede della Società.
Il valore economico del fringe benefit in parola, determinato
secondo le disposizione dell’art. 51, DPR n. 917/96, sarà
assoggettato al trattamento fiscale e previdenziale di legge.

 

 5.2    Moreover, as set forth by the Contract, we hereby confirm that the
Company will bear the cost for an apartment up to a maximum
annual amount of Euro 9,000 (any additional expense or cost will be
borne by you). It is understood that, considering the importance of
your presence at the Company offices in light of your new role, you
will search an apartment close to Company office. The economic
value of the fringe benefit of the apartment, calculated according to
the provisions of art. 51 of the Presidential Decree no. 917/96, shall
be subjected to the fiscal and social security treatments set forth by
the laws.

 
6.      Sede di lavoro
6.1    La Sua sede di lavoro continuerà ad essere presso gli uffici della

Società, attualmente siti in Rivolta d’Adda (CR), Via Ludovico
Ariosto n. 7, fermo restando il diritto della Società di assegnarLe
una diversa sede nel rispetto dell’art. 2103 cod. civ. e delle
applicabili disposizioni del CCNL.

 

 6.      Working place
6.1    Your place of work will continue to be at the Company’s premises

currently located in Rivolta d’Adda (CR), at Via Ludovico Ariosto
no. 7, without prejudice to the Company’s right to relocate you to a
different location in compliance with art. 2103 of the Italian civil
code and the applicable provisions of the CCNL.

 
6.2    Viaggiare in Italia e all’estero, anche per lunghi periodi, farà

espressamente parte della Sua attività quale Direttore Generale
della Società. In tale prospettiva, pertanto, Lei avrà diritto
esclusivamente al rimborso delle spese ragionevoli di viaggio,
vitto e alloggio effettivamente sostenute a fronte della
presentazione dei relativi giustificativi, atteso che la Sua
retribuzione comprende anche il corrispettivo per tale attività.  

 

 6.2    Travelling in Italy and abroad, even for long periods, will be part of
your activities as General Manager of the Company. In this
perspective, you shall exclusively be entitled to be reimbursed all
travel, food and accommodation expenses, effectively incurred,
provided that you present the appropriate tax receipts, since your
salary also includes such obligation.

 

7.      Patto di non concorrenza
7.1    Tenuto conto del Suo nuovo ruolo all’interno della Società e del

Gruppo e delle responsabilità e attività connesse a tale ruolo, si
rendono necessarie le seguenti modifiche e integrazioni al PNC
in termini di corrispettivo per gli obblighi da Lei assunti.

 

 7.      Non-competition agreement
7.1    Considering your new role and responsibilities within the Company

and the Group and your responsibilities related to and arising from
this role, the following amendments and integrations to the NCA are
necessary with regard to consideration for the obligations you have
undertaken.
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7.2    Pertanto, gli artt. 4 e 5 del PNC sono sostituiti dalle seguenti

disposizioni:
          A fronte degli impegni da Lei assunti con il presente patto di non

concorrenza, Lei riceverà un importo annuo annuo lordo di Euro
50.000, che sarà corrisposto in 13 rate mensili di pari importo, in
uno con la Sua retribuzione mensile lorda. Resta espressamente
inteso che, al momento della cessazione del Suo rapporto di
lavoro con la Società, l’importo totale di quanto da Lei percepito
a titolo di corrispettivo per gli obblighi di non concorrenza non
potrà essere inferiore, per ciascun anno di durata degli obblighi
di non concorrenza,  al 50% della Sua ultima retribuzione fissa
annua lorda, determinata escludendo il corrispettivo annuo a Lei
pagato per gli obblighi di cui al patto di non concorrenza.
Laddove, dunque, l’importo complessivamente erogatoLe a titolo
di corrispettivo per il patto di non concrrenza risulti inferiore, su
base annua, al 50% della Sua ultima retribuzione fissa annua
lorda,  la Società Le corrisponderà la differenza in rate trimestrali
posticipate di pari importo nel corso dei 3 anni di durata del patto
di non concorrenza.

 7.2    Therefore, articles 4 and 5 of the NCA are replaced by the following
provisions:

         As consideration for the covenants under this NCA, you will receive
an annual gross amount of Euro 50,000 paid in 13 equal monthly
instalments of equal amount together with your monthly gross salary.
It is expressly understood that, upon the termination of your
employment relationship with the Company, the total amount already
paid to you as consideration for the non-competition obligations shall
not be lower, for each year of duration of the non-competition
obligations, than 50% of your last fixed gross annual salary,
determined excluding the annual consideration paid to you for the
non-compete covenants. Therefore, should the overall amount paid to
you as consideration for the non-competition obligations undertook
by you be lower, on an annual basis, than 50%  of your last fixed
gross annual salary, the Company will pay you the difference in
quarterly instalments of equal amount in arrears during the 3-year
period of duration of the NCA.

 
 

7.3    Lei riconosce espressamente e concorda che le restrizioni previste
nel PNC, così come modificato, limiteranno la possibilità di
essere assunto quale dipendente di una società concorrente o
comunque di sottoscrivere un contratto di lavoro; tuttavia, Lei
riconosce di aver concordato un corrispettivo equo e adeguato
per giustificare tali restrizioni che, in ogni caso (data la Sua
formazione, competenza e abilità), come dai Lei stesso
espressamente riconosciuto, non Le impediscono di esplicare
adeguatamente le Sue capacità professionali e, quindi, di
svolgere altre attività lavorative.
 

 

 7.3    You expressly acknowledge and agree that the restrictions under the
NCA will limit the possibility to be hired as employee by, or, in any
case, to work for, a company in competition with the Company;
however, you acknowledge that the consideration agreed is
congruous and justifies such restrictions, which (considering you
skills, competence and ability) in any case will not prevent you from
adequately performing your professional skills and, therefore, from
carrying out other working activities.
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8.      Disposizioni finali
8.1    Continueranno a trovare applicazione i termini e le condizioni di

cui al Contratto attualmente in essere per tutto quanto qui non
espressamente disciplinato e, dunque, con esclusione degli artt.
3, 4, 5, 6 del Contratto, artt. 4 e 5 del PNC, Piano di Retention e
Stock Grants, i quali saranno integralmente sostituiti dalle
disposizioni dell’Accordo.
 

 8.      Final Provisions
8.1    The terms and conditions of the Contract currently in force shall

continue to apply in relation to the matters which are not expressly
governed by this Agreement, therefore with the exclusion of articles
3, 4, 5, 6 of the Contract, articles 4 and 5 of the NCA, Retention Plan
and Stock Grants, which shall be entirely replaced by the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.  

 
8.2    Lei prende atto e, per quanto occorrer possa, acconsente e accetta

che la Sua nomina quale Section 16 officer di Helios, di cui al
precedente articolo 3.2, nonché l’assegnazione a Suo favore delle
restricted stock ai sensi del LTIP di cui al precedente articolo
4.4. implicano la necessità di adempiere agli obblighi di
pubblicazione alla SEC previsti dalla normativa applicabile alla
capogruppo Helios quale società quotata, tra i quali vi è l’obbligo
di rendere pubblici i termini e le condizioni economiche del Suo
rapporto di lavoro con la Società. Tutto ciò presuppone il
trasferimento dei Suoi dati personali ad altre società del Gruppo
e, in particolare, a Helios con sede negli Stati Uniti. Con la
sottoscrizione del presente Accordo, quindi, Lei acconsente
espressamente al trasferimento dei Suoi dati all’estero.

 

 8.2    You hereby expressly acknowledge, accept and agree that your
appointment as a Section 16 officer of Helios, as per article 3.2
above, as well as the restricted stock grants under the LTIP as per
article 4.4 above require the compliance with the SEC filing and
publication obligations set forth by the rules applicable to the parent
company Helios as listed company, which include the obligation to
make public the terms and the economic conditions of your
employment relationship with the Company. This presupposes the
transfer of your personal data to other companies of the Group and,
specifically, to Helios in the Unites States. Therefore, by signing this
Agreement, you expressly agree to the transfer abroad of your
personal data.  

 

8.3     Resta inteso che l’Accordo è redatto in lingua italiana e tradotto
in inglese. In caso di difformità tra il testo italiano e quello
inglese, la versione italiana prevarrà.

 

 8 . 3     This Agreement is drafted in Italian and translated into English. In
case of conflict between the Italian and the English versions, the
Italian version shall prevail.

 
Cordiali saluti.
 
______________________
 
Faster S.p.A.
 

 Sincerely yours,
 
_____________________
 
Faster S.p.A.
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Per ricevuta e integrale e incondizionata accettazione:
 
Luogo: Rivolta d’Adda
 
Data: 20/12/2018
 
Matteo Arduini: ________________
 
 

  
 
For receipt and integral and unconditioned acceptance:
 
Place:  Rivolta d’Adda
 
Date:  20/12/2018
 
Matteo Arduini: ________________
 

 
Io sottoscritto, Matteo Arduini
 
            □  acconsento
 
            □  non acconsento
 
al trasferimento dei miei dati personale all’estero, come indicato
all’articolo 8.2 del presente Accordo.
 
 
Luogo: Rivolta d’Adda
 
Data: 20/12/2018
 
Matteo Arduini: ________________
 

  
I, the undersigned Matteo Arduini
 
            □  accept
 
            □  do not accept
 
the transfer of my personal data abroad, as per article 8.2 of this
Agreement.
 
 
 
Place: Rivolta d’Adda
 
Date: 20/12/2018
 
Matteo Arduini: ________________
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By hand
 
Dear Mr.
Matteo Arduini
Company’s office

 
 
Rivolta D’Adda, 28th February 2020

 
 

Dear Mr. Arduini,
 
We are pleased to inform you that - based on your performance and commitment during year 2019 - with effect from January 2020, you will be granted
an increase of your annual gross base salary of € 17.400,00 (a.k.a superminimum).

We also inform you that - with effect from January 2020 - the annual amount for the non-competition agreement in place with the company (referred to
in point 7.2 of the employment contract of 20/12/2018):

(i) will be increased by € 4,600.00 gross and will therefore amount to € 54,600.00 gross;
(ii) will be paid in 4 equal instalments of equal amount.

The Target Bonus of the so-called "Short-Term Incentive plan" (STIP, referred to in point 4.3) will continue to be equal to 30% of the gross annual
economic treatment (article 4.2), while the amount, based on the Company's performance, can be included between 0 and 200% of the target Bonus.

You will continue to participate in the so-called "Long-term incentive plan" (LTIP, referred to in point 4.4 of the employment contract of 20/12/2018)
whose overall value will be increased incrementally by 25% to account for a new compensation element; specificaly, nonqualified stock options
(“SO”).  

For 2020 your total LTI award will also be rebalanced to: (a) time based restricted stock units ( RSUs) that vest ratably over a three year period and
which make up 25% of the LTIP award; (b) nonqualified stock options that vest ratably over a three year time period and which make up 25% of the
LTIP award; and (c) performance based restricted stock units (PRSUs) that cliff vest after the completion of a three performance period (i.e., 2020-2022)
and which make up 50% of the LTIP award.  

As part of the LTIP, you can obtain up to 2 times the aforementioned LTIP Target on the performance-based restricted stock unit portion of the LTI
award, in the event of reaching or exceeding the established performance
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parameters assigned.  The PRSUs will be calculated based upon achievement of metrics that will be communicated in a separate Award Agreement.

It is understood that any and all LTIP awards are made pursuant to the Helios Technologies 2019 Equity Incentive Plan and each award is further subject
to the terms and conditions of the accompanying Award Agreement at the time of grant of the RSU and the Stock Options.

The foregoing provisions and the aforementioned documents ("Helios Technologies 2019 Equity Incentive Plan" and "Award Agreement") replace art.
4.4. of the employment contract 12/20/2018 and any other regulation relating to LTIP award.

It is understood that all and any values or advantages in your favor arising from the LTIP shall not, in any event, be considered part of your salary as
employee and, therefore, will not be included in any calculation of your severance payment (TFR) or any indemnity which the Company should be
obliged to pay you at the termination of your employment relationship under to the law and the CCNL.

For the rest, the regulatory and economic conditions of your employment contract and related accessory agreements remain unchanged.

This communication is drafted in Italian and translated into English. In case of conflict between the Italian and the English versions, the Italian version
shall prevail.

By asking you to return the attached copy of this letter signed, we send you my best wishes for a successful job.

Best regards.

 
President of the Board of Directors

Faster S.r.l.
Signed for acceptance
 
____________________________
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By hand
 
Dear Mr.
Matteo Arduini
Company’s office

 
Rivolta D’Adda, December 16th 2020

 
 

Dear Mr. Arduini,
 
We are pleased to inform you that - based on your performance and commitment during year 2020 - with effect from January 2021, you will be granted
an increase of your annual gross base salary of € 19.000,00 (a.k.a superminimum).

We also inform you that - with effect from January 2021 - the annual amount for the non-competition agreement in place with the company(referred to in
point 7.2 of the employment contract of 20/12/2018):

(iii) will be increased by € 5,200.00 gross and will therefore amount to € 59,800.00 gross;
(iv) will be paid in 4 equal instalments of equal amount.

The Target Bonus of the so-called "Short-Term Incentive plan" (STIP, referred to in point 4.3) will be equal to 40% of the gross annual economic
treatment (article 4.2), while the amount, based on the Company's performance, can be included between 0 and 200% of the target Bonus.

You will continue to participate in the so-called "Long-term incentive plan" (LTIP, referred to in point 4.4 of the employment contract of 20/12/2018)
whose overall value will be equal to 70% of the gross annual economic treatment (article 4.2).  

For 2021 your total LTI award will also be rebalanced to: (a) time based restricted stock units ( RSUs) that vest ratably over a three year period and
which make up 25% of the LTIP award; (b) incentive stock options ( SO) that vest ratably over a three year time period and which make up 25% of the
LTIP award; and (c) performance based restricted stock units (PRSUs) that cliff vest after the completion of a three performance period (i.e., 2021-2023)
and which make up 50% of the LTIP award.  

As part of the LTIP, you can obtain up to 2 times the aforementioned LTIP Target on the performance-based restricted stock unit portion of the LTI
award, in the event of reaching or exceeding the established performance
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parameters assigned.  The PRSUs will be calculated based upon achievement of metrics that will be communicated in a separate Award Agreement.

It is understood that any and all LTIP awards are made pursuant to the Helios Technologies 2019 Equity Incentive Plan and each award is further subject
to the terms and conditions of the accompanying Award Agreement at the time of grant of the RSU and the Stock Options.

The foregoing provisions and the aforementioned documents ("Helios Technologies 2019 Equity Incentive Plan" and "Award Agreement") replace art.
4.4. of the employment contract 12/20/2018 and any other regulation relating to LTIP award.

It is understood that all and any values or advantages in your favor arising from the STIP and the LTIP shall not, in any event, be considered part of your
salary as employee and, therefore, will not be included in any calculation of your severance payment (TFR) or any indemnity which the Company should
be obliged to pay you at the termination of your employment relationship under to the law and the CCNL.

For the rest, the regulatory and economic conditions of your employment contract and related accessory agreements remain unchanged.

This communication is drafted in Italian and translated into English. In case of conflict between the Italian and the English versions, the Italian version
shall prevail.

By asking you to return the attached copy of this letter signed, we send you my best wishes for a successful job.

Best regards.

President of the Board of Directors
Faster S.r.l.

Signed for acceptance
 
____________________________
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Dear Helios Colleagues:
 

Helios is committed to conducting business with the highest degree of ethics, integrity, and compliance with laws worldwide.
Helios’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (“Code”) reflects this commitment.

Now more than ever, in such a rapidly changing world, it is important to leverage and lean on our collective guiding principles and
codes. The Code was developed to provide clear guidelines to help you make ethical decisions as we do business globally every
day. As a global corporation, we operate in many cultures and countries with different laws and customs. Our commitment to
ethical behavior may sometimes set standards that are beyond what is required by local law or custom. I encourage all colleagues
to ask questions if you are unsure whether your actions or those of a colleague are permitted under the Code.

Our continued success depends on us conducting business in an ethical manner every day, no exceptions. Therefore, I
encourage you to report any misconduct when suspected. Every time you report a concern regarding a violation of our Code, you
are making a difference for everyone at Helios Technologies and you have my full support and appreciation.

Our Company’s reputation is one of our most valuable assets. Maintaining our reputation is critical to retaining our talented
employees, loyal channel partners and supportive shareholders. We have worked over many decades to build our strong
corporate reputation and it is something that we all need to focus our energy on maintaining. I believe Warren Buffet’s famous
quote sums it well:

“It takes 20 years to build a reputation and five minutes to ruin it. If you think about that, you’ll do things differently.”

There is never any retribution or reprisals for making a report in good faith. The Helios Reporting hotline can be accessed via the
following web address: heliostechnologies.ethicspoint.com.

I would like to thank all of you for your enduring commitment and support in working toward and holding each other to the highest
levels of standards and ethics.

 
Respectfully,

Josef Matosevic
President and Chief Executive Officer
Helios Technologies, Inc.
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rapidly, but the way we manage
Helios Technologies and the values
we live by have not changed.
 
Helios Technologies (the “Company”)
demands the highest standards of ethical
conduct of its Directors, Officers, and
Employees who are expected to conduct their
business in an ethical manner consistent with
the Helios Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics (“Code”).
 
This Code is applicable to all  Directors,
Officers and Employees (collectively,
“Associates”) of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and affiliates and is in addition to,
and not in lieu of, any similar or related
program applicable to the Company or in place
at one of the Company’s subsidiaries.
 
This Code sets forth the compliance  policies
of the Company and in

 certain cases is  supplemented by

the more detailed implementation guidelines
and procedures referenced in the Code. This
Code exists in conjunction with both the
Helios Code of Conduct for Suppliers and
Third-Party Vendors and Corporate
Responsibility Policy. Associates will
acknowledge receipt and understanding of
this Code upon original publication or when
they join the Company. Periodic
acknowledgements may be required for
updates as appropriate. All Associates must
read and understand this Code and comply
with both letter and spirit.  Ignorance of this
Code will not excuse any Associates from its
requirements.
The Code can be found at: https://
ir.heliostechnologies.com/corporate-
governance and is also considered to  be part
of any applicable employee handbook that may
be distributed in your workplace.
 
This Code does not, and is not  intended to,
specify all situations that

  may call for the exercise of sound,

ethical judgment. Rather, this Code broadly outlines
the obligations for the ethical conduct inherent  in
employment with, and service to, the Company and
at the same time reinforces our core values.
Associates must conduct themselves in such a
manner as to avoid not only any violation of this
Code, but also the appearance of any ethical
impropriety.
 
If any Associate becomes aware of a situation or
incident that may violate this Code, they must
report the situation or incident as outlined  below in
“Reporting Violations.” All Associates may raise
concerns anonymously. Any Associate found to
have violated any terms of this Code will be subject
to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment.
 

 
 

  
 

Helios Technologies
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

  Preface
 
 

  The world is changing
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  Conflicts  of Interest
Conflicts of interest are to be avoided. A conflict of interest
exists when an individual’s private interest interferes, or
appears to interfere, with the interests of the Company.
Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to,
improper use, misuse or disposal of Company property,
information or position for personal gain or competition
with the Company, whether such gain or competition is
direct or indirect.

Similarly, gifts, entertainment, business opportunities,
payments, kickbacks, and any other goods or services
provided directly or indirectly to an Associate by, or on
behalf of, a customer, vendor, consultant, partner, or
anyone else directly or indirectly doing business with the
Company may result in a conflict of interest. Promotional
items of nominal value and other limited entertainment
reasonable and necessary to support business activities,
provided the foregoing are infrequent and non-lavish, may
be accepted. Situations that may suggest the existence of
a conflict of interest may not always be clear, and any
Associate who plans to take an action that may give rise
to a conflict of interest should address the potential
conflict with his or her supervisor or other responsible
Company representative. And any Associate who
becomes aware of a conflict or potential conflict must
immediately disclose the conflict to his or her supervisor
or other responsible Company representative. The
Company’s Board of Directors must determine the
existence of and resolve any apparent conflicts of interest
between any Director and the Company.

  Fair  Dealing
Associates should deal fairly with customers, vendors,
competitors, and each other. The Company competes in the
marketplace in a fair and honest manner, gaining its
competitive advantages through superior performance and
execution, rather than through unethical or illegal practices.
Improper use of proprietary information, manipulation,
concealment, or abuse of any information and
misrepresentation of material facts are all prohibited by this
Code, whether or not such actions are considered unlawful.
Associates are prohibited from making deliberate
misrepresentations regarding the Company or its business
operations or creating or assisting the creation of any false
or misleading entry in the books or records of the Company.
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confidential information and ensure that such
information is used only for its intended purposes.
Confidential information typically includes valuable
commercial information, owned by the Company or
another company, which is competition sensitive and
not generally known to the public. It may include certain
written or oral information, data or documents relating
to a business, including, without limitation, current or
prospective customer or vendor lists, pricing or rebate
information, guidelines, manuals, technical information
or drawings, standard operating procedures, personal
notes, worksheets, computer data, source code,
presentations, memoranda of the company concerning
operations or sales and marketing, techniques and
studies, financial and corporate records, and
information pertaining to pending or future acquisitions,
divestures or similar transactions.
 If any Associate is unsure about whether  certain

information is confidential and what restrictions may apply,
please contact the Chief Legal and Compliance Officer
(CLCO). Contact information can be found on page 12.

 
Intellectual Property includes trademarks, trade names,
domain names, software, patents and trade secrets owned
by the Company or another entity. Such property must be
used properly and protected from infringement by others.
Any unauthorized use of Intellectual Property may cause
significant liability to the infringing party. If any Associate has
any questions concerning the use of the Company’s or
another entity’s intellectual property, please contact the
CLCO.

 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 Confidential Information   & Intellectual Property
 
 

  Associates must maintain the integrity of

 
  

 

 
6 / CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS



the security and privacy of the Company’s computer,
telephone, and other communications resources because
they are a crucial aspect of our Company’s property, both
physical and intellectual. If an Associate has reason to
believe that our network security has been violated – if,
for instance, (s)he has reason to believe that a network
password may have been compromised – (s)he must
promptly report the incident to the CLCO.
 
The Company has a strong interest in protecting its
Associates and users and maintaining the security and
integrity of its resources and property. Consistent with
that interest, the Company reserves the right to monitor
access and disclose communications made on or
information stored in any and all of its work areas, work
product, and equipment, including technological
resources. This means that the Company cannot and
does not guarantee the confidentiality of any material
stored on Company systems or facilities, including any
material stored physically or electronically on the
Company’s email or voicemail systems or on computers
on the Company’s premises.

This also means that for legitimate business purposes
(such as the need to access business records, to
administer electronic facilities, to investigate suspected
misconduct or to prevent misconduct from occurring), we
monitor, access, and disclose information or
communications, including personal information and
communications, made or stored on the Company’s
facilities or premises. Any misuse of Company property
or resources or any other
  misconduct discovered through monitoring,

access or disclosure, regardless of the reason for the
monitoring, access, or disclosure, is a violation of this Code
and is subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment.

 

     
     
 Living the Code  

     
     
 Q: My laptop has a large amount of company  confidential

information on it. I take my laptop home every night, but
occasionally stop at the gym or go out to eat on my
way home. What should I do with my laptop?

 

     
     
 A:  You should take all reasonable steps  to protect

company information and property, keeping your
laptop in the safest place possible and not leave it
where it is likely to be stolen. You have a  duty to
safeguard company confidential information you
possess and should take steps to encrypt the data
stored on your laptop if possible.

 

     
 

 

 
 
  

   Computers, Telephones & Other
Communications Resources

 
 

  Associates must take all due care to maintain
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Company’s assets against theft, loss, or misuse. Assets
include intangible assets (e.g., customer lists,
manufacturing processes, engineering drawings,
software code, intellectual property) and tangible assets
(e.g., money, vehicles, equipment, supplies, inventory,
facilities, materials). The Company expects Associates
to be vigilant in protecting trade secrets, business data,
and proprietary know-how. Similarly, Associates are
required to maintain an accurate accounting for the use
of the Company’s assets as well as of personnel time.
Resources must not
 be diverted for unauthorized uses.  Unless

specifically authorized, Associates may not misuse or
remove company property from Company facilities (e.g.,
furnishings, equipment, supplies, software, systems).
Further, Associates are required to prevent theft or
misappropriation of company property by taking care to limit
such losses by normal precautions and handling assets in a
prudent manner.

Safety
 

The Company is committed to protecting the
environment and complying with applicable
environmental laws, rules, and regulations, including
without limitation those pertaining to the proper storage,
handling, and disposal of hazardous materials and
wastes as well as the proper management of
wastewater and storm water. All Associates must
comply with all appli- cable environmental laws and the
environmen- tal, health & safety guidelines applicable to
their work location.

     

 Living the Code  

     
     
 Q:  My supervisor asked me not to report a minor  injury I

recently had at work. Is this ok not to  report?
 

     
     
 A:  No, this is not ok.  No matter how minor the injury,

you should report all job-related injuries and
accidents.
Tracking injuries, including those that are minor,
helps us to spot trends that can help us avoid more
serious accidents.

 

     
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Corporate Assets
 
 

 All Associates have a duty to safeguard  the

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Environmental,  H ealth &
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be treated with dignity and respect. Any conduct that fails
to show appropriate respect to others, including fellow
Associates, customers, vendors, and guests, is
inconsistent with the Company’s values and is
unacceptable. The following are examples of such
unacceptable conduct: insults; threats; intimidation;
retaliation; profanity; ridicule; vulgarity; discrimination;
harassment; physical or verbal abuse; sexually explicit
humor, conversation or behavior; gossip; slurs or
stereotyping; unwelcome sexual advances; unwelcome
touching or invasion of personal space; ignoring the
rights of others; and insensitivity to the beliefs and
customs of others.
 
The Company is committed to maintaining a workplace
environment free from discrimination and harassment. In
keeping with this policy, the Company strictly prohibits
unlawful discrimination or harassment of any kind,
 including discrimination or harassment on  the

basis of race, color, veteran status, religion, national origin,
ancestry, pregnancy status, gender, sex, age, marital status,
disability, medical condition, sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression or any other characteristics protected
by law. We strictly prohibit all forms of unlawful harassment
(whether verbal, physical, visual or otherwise) on the part of
all Associates, temporary workers, independent contractors,
interns, and other service providers.

 
The Company is committed to providing workplaces that are
free of substance abuse. Accordingly, Associates are
expected to perform their duties free from the influence of
illegal or unauthorized drugs or alcohol. In addition, the use,
possession, or distribution of illegal or unauthorized drugs or
alcohol on Company time or Company premises is
prohibited.

 
 

 
 
  
 

  Fair  Employment     Practices
 
 

 The Company believes that all people  should

 
         

 Living the Code      

         
         
 Q:  A co-worker has been accessing sexually  explicit

material on his computer and has also been sending
me jokes and links to websites that make me feel
uncomfortable. What should I do?

 Q:  My co-worker came to work today smelling of  alcohol,
slurring her speech, and stumbling. I think she is drunk.
What should I do?

 

         
         
 A:  If you feel comfortable doing so, you can speak

directly to your co-worker and tell that person to
stop the behavior. Your best course of action would
be to contact Human Resources about the situation
or any member of the management team.

 A:  You should report your co-worker’s  behavior to a
member of management or Human Resources
immediately. Your co-worker’s behavior is in
violation of our drug free workplace policies and
can put the safety and health of herself and  co-
workers at risk.
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of how we conduct business. Our goal at the Company
is, and will always be, accounting transparency and
accuracy. To meet this standard, we consider it
essential to maintain detailed, accurate books, records,
and accounts to accurately reflect our transactions and
to provide full, fair, accurate, timely, and
understandable disclosure in reports and documents
that we file, or may file, with or submit to any
governmental agency, or in any other public
communications. To ensure that we provide true,
accurate, and complete information, we maintain a
system of internal accounting controls to reinforce and
verify our own compliance with these policies.
Associates must always stay in full compliance with any
system of internal controls that is communicated to
them by Company management.

 
 

  

     
 Living the Code  

     
     
 Q: My manager told me that we are under a lot of

pressure to make sure we “make our numbers” this
quarter. I know a customer who will probably place a
sizable order next quarter, can I put this order in now to
help the current quarter?

 

     
 A:  No. We have an obligation to have  accurate

financial records. If you have questions concerning
when revenue can be booked, you should address
those to your manager or accounting department.

 

     
     
 Q: My co-worker has had a lot of problems  getting to work

on time. He has clocked in late several times this
month and has been put on disciplinary action. I don’t
want him to get terminated. Is it okay for me to clock in
for him? He is usually just a few minutes late.

 

     
 A:  No. We have an obligation to accurately record

hours worked. Another employee cannot clock in
or out for a co-worker, except in limited situations
approved by management. Further, clocking in or
out for another person can subject you to
disciplinary action, up to and including  termination
of your employment.

 

     
     
 
 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 

 Maintaining  Books & Records
 
 
 Accurate financial reporting is a core  aspect
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 Bribery is the act of giving something of value – including
charitable donations, cash, travel expenses, gifts, offers
of entertainment, and any other thing of value to the
recipient – in order to obtain or retain business or any
other improper advantage. Kickbacks are the return of a
sum received, or due to be received, as part of an
agreement to establish or foster business.
Bribes, kickbacks, and offers to make such payments are
against Company policy, whether the person engaging in
the prohibited conduct is employed by the Company or by
a third party. Such third parties include distributors,
customers, agents, consultants, brokers, joint venture
partners, and business partners of all kinds that are
acting on our behalf or in connection with the Company’s
business.
 
Accordingly, Associates are not permitted under any
circumstances to pay or receive bribes or kickbacks in
connection with your conduct of the Company’s business.
This includes tips of any size, gratuities, holiday gifts,
promotional gifts, charitable contributions, political
contributions, and anything else of value. Associates are
also prohibited from engaging in any other activity that
would similarly damage the Company’s reputation or
integrity.
 
  

This may sometimes be challenging because in some parts of
the world (including some places where we operate) making
these kinds of payments is commonplace, or even expected.
Even in those situations, it is essential that Associates adhere to
Company policy and refrain from making such payments – even
if it makes doing business more difficult. It is not a defense that
“everybody does it.”

(continued on page 12)
 
 
     
 Living the Code  

     
     
 Q:  I am working on getting new business for the  Company

and plan to host a luncheon that will involve foreign
officials. Is this permissible?

 

     
 A:  A reasonable cost for a normal business lunch

with a governmental official may not be prohibited
under the FCPA or local law. However, you must
receive pre-approval from your manager before the
event. Your manager, along with the Helios CLCO,
can help determine whether this could create the
appearance of bribery.
 

 

     
     
 
 

 
 
  
 

  Anti-Bribery &  Anti-Corruption
The Company’s commitment to acting with integrity includes compliance with all anti-corruption laws in the countries where
it operates or does business. This includes compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the U.K. Bribery Act,
and other similar laws which prohibit improper payments such as bribes and kickbacks, and promises and offers to make
such payments to public officials.

 

Prohibition on Bribery and Kickbacks
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Officials
Associates should exercise particular vigilance when
dealing with government or foreign officials. The term
“foreign officials” means officials of any government other
than the United States. The term “government official”
includes any person acting in an official capacity or on
behalf of a government, or a governmental agency or
department, including businesses with governmental
ownership (such as a national oil company), a public
international agency (such as the United Nations or
World Bank), a political party, or candidate for public
office. If an Associate is uncertain whether someone is
considered a government or foreign official, consult the
CLCO.

 Recordkeeping
Our commitment to compliance with anti- corruption laws
extends to our recordkeeping. All Company expenses must
be accurately recorded and supported by accurate
documentation that clearly reflects the economic realities of
the underlying transactions.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption (continued)
Business Partners
Just as Associates are not permitted to make improper payments, Associates are not permitted to employ or use third
parties to do so. Our business partners (such as distributors, resellers, integrators, OEM’s, consultants, advisors or
other third parties who perform services for us) are held to the same high ethical standards that we set for our own
employees. If any of our business partners is found or even suspected of engaging in improper acts on our behalf or in
connection with our business, those actions or suspicions must be reported to our CLCO so that we may take
appropriate action. Contact information for our CLCO is as follows:

Melanie Nealis
Chief Legal and Compliance Officer HELIOS
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. Direct +1 941 362

1313
Melanie.Nealis@HeliosTechnologies.com

 
 
 Dealing with Government or  Foreign
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  Trade Controls
Associates must comply with controlling international
trade control and customs laws and regulations,
including but not limited to those pertaining to the
export of goods, services, technology, and technical
data.
In executing their duties, Associates must ensure the
Company does not participate in boycotts or other
trade practices prohibited or penalized under the laws
of the United States of America or other applicable
local laws, rules or regulations. Associates with any
questions concerning whether the Company is in
compliance with controlling international trade
controls and customs laws — including complying
with laws from other countries that may have laws that
conflict with U.S. laws — must address their concerns
with the CLCO.
 
     
 Living the Code  

     
 Q:  I have a customer who wants to place an

order where our products will be shipped to a
country that has been subject to a
comprehensive economic embargo by the
United States. Can I ask my distributor or my
foreign subsidiary to place this order for us
instead?

 

     
 A:  No. The economic embargoes and trade

sanctions apply to all of Helios, its
distributors, and channel partners. If we
know or should have known that our
products are going to a denied party or
country, we can be held responsible. If
you have questions on a trade issue, you
should contact the CLCO.

 

     
 

   Antiboycott Laws
The U.S. Antiboycott laws and regulations prohibit
participation in or cooperation with the Arab boycott of Israel
or any other unsanctioned boycott. Prohibited cooperation
includes compliance with requests to take boycott- related
actions, including providing information or making
certifications that are boycott related. Moreover, most
boycott-related requests trigger reporting obligations under
the law. These laws are exceedingly complicated, containing
detailed prohibitions and exceptions, and violations are
heavily penalized. To ensure that the Company does not
violate these laws, Associates must obtain prompt legal
advice from the CLCO (or approved outside counsel)
whenever boycott questions arise or if Associates are asked
verbally or in writing to take any boycott-related action.

 

 
 
  
 

    International
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  Competition Laws
Competition laws generally prohibit agree- ments that
unreasonably restrain competition. Prohibitions include
agreements with anyo- ne, including competitors,
customers, and suppliers, which unreasonably restrain
tra- de. Such agreements can be reflected in tacit
understandings, oral commitments, or written contracts.

Associates must never enter into any agree- ment with a
competitor pertaining to fixing pri- ces, terms, costs, or
profit margins, or refusing to deal with a customer or a
supplier, or dividing territories or customers, or restricting
research and development. Further, Associates must not
enter arrangements that “tie” two products together so
that one will not be sold without the other, or that restrict
resale prices. Exclusive dealing arrangements and
licensing arrange- ments that restrict the scope or terms
of resale of the licensed products may also raise issues
under the competition laws, and Associates should
consult with the CLCO prior to entering into any such
arrangement.

It is important that our Associates also maintain and
preserve the confidences of prior emplo- yers and/or
confidential information that may belong to a competitor
or another party. In the event you have questions about
how to handle information of a sensitive or competitive
nature, you should contact the CLCO.

   Compliance with Laws, Rules
& Regulations
The Company takes its responsibilities to comply with
applicable laws and regulations very seriously. All
Associates must take the time to familiarize themselves with
the laws and regulations that apply to their respective work
responsibilities. Any violation of applicable law may subject
the violating individual to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment, in addition to whatever
possible civil and/or criminal liability may be incurred by
such violation. Please contact the CLCO if you have any
questions as to applicable laws or regulations.

 
     
 Living the Code  

     
     
 Q:  At an industry conference, I had lunch with  a sales

representative of a competitor. He suggested, “we’d all
do better if we divide up territories”. Is this a good
idea?

 

     
 A:  No. The sales representative is suggesting

something that can be in violation of fair
competition laws. You should not participate in any
discussion of this nature and you should report
this conversation to your supervisor and the CLCO.

 

     
     
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Antitrust &  Fair
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Public Affairs
Information disseminated about the Company must be
both accurate and consistent. For this reason, the
Investor Relations and Marketing functions are
responsible for the Company’s internal and external
communications. These functions are responsible for all
marketing and advertising activities and communications
with the media, local communities and government
officials in both routine and non- routine situations, and
for all Company-wide communications with our
Associates.
 

 Contracts  Compliance
Policy
The Company must ensure that contracts and other
agreements (“Contracts”) that it is bound by: (a) are
reviewed, negotiated and signed by authorized
Associates in a consistent manner; (b) contain
provisions that reflect our understanding of the
particular commercial transaction while limiting any
potential risk or liability to the Company; and (c) do not
conflict with our organizational documents, Delegation
of Authority guidelines, or other business process
requirements, if any.
 
Contracts include any contracts, agreements,
documents or understandings, in any form, under which
the Company agrees to (a) buy, sell, or store products,
(b) provide or receive services, (c) acquire, own, lease,
or dispose of real or personal property, or (d) otherwise
make a payment or other financial commitment.
Contract types may include, but are not limited to:
service agreements, sales

  
 
 
 
 
 
     
 Living the Code  

     
     
 Q:  A reporter called to ask for a comment  in connection

with my work. I know the answer to her question. Can
I tell her what she wants to know?

 

     
 A:  No. You should not answer any quetions from

reporters unless you receive approval from the
Company. If you have any questions about your
response, you should contact the
Corporate Communications Department.

 

     
     
 
 
agreements, supplier buying agreements, consulting
agreements, software agreements, bids, equipment
agreements, confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements,
purchase orders, lease agreements, licenses, memoranda of
understanding, letters of intent, requests for proposal,
statements of work, formal or informal settlement
agreements, releases, and any other contracts used in the
day-to-day operations of the business. Contracts also
include any contracts, agreements, documents or
understandings with federal, state, provincial and local
government agencies, including formal and informal
settlement agreements, consent orders and such other
agreements that bind the Company in any manner. This list
is not intended to be all-inclusive; thus, any questions about
whether a particular arrangement gives rise to or requires a
Contract, or whether a document is subject to this Policy,
should be directed to the CLCO.

 

 
 
  
 
 

    Communications &
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  Reporting  Violations
If any Associate discovers a violation of this Code, the
Associate should report it promptly to their local leader,
the CLCO, or any management-level employee of the
Company.
If you still are concerned after speaking with your local
leader or feel uncomfortable speaking with them (for
whatever reason), you may report your concern to the
confidential hotline. We have retained the services of
an independent company, EthicsPoint, to take a report
from Associates over a toll-free telephone line or via
an online submission. The EthicsPoint employees who
answer the Reporting Hotline are trained to listen
carefully, ask questions and document the situation
accurately and anonymously.

The Helios Reporting Hotline can be accessed via the
following address: heliostechnologies. ethicspoint.com.
From the website, you can identify the country and
location you are reporting on and enter the report via an
online portal or through a designated phone number
specific to the country you are reporting from.

   Non-Retaliation  for

Reporting
In all cases there will be no reprisals for raising concerns in
good faith, and every effort will be made to maintain
confidentiality. We enforce a strict “no retaliation” policy.
Retaliation for raising a potential violation of this Code, or
for participating in any investigation of a possible violation of
this Code, is strictly prohibited.  If a complaint of retaliation
is substantiated, appropriate disciplinary action will be
taken, up to and including termination of employment of the
retaliating person.
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 This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics does not create a contract between the Company and any Associate, Offi-  cer or Director and no promise
of any kind is made by the Company in this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. The Company is free to change the terms of this Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics without having to consult with or obtain the agreement of any Associate. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Company and
an Associate, each of the Company and our Associates continue to have the authority to terminate the employment relationship at will, and the
Company has the authority to change the terms of an Associate’s employment, in each case with or without cause and with or without prior notice. This
at-will status can only be modified if such modification is in writing.

 
 Coordination with  Workplace Policies
This Code is intended to be read in conjunction with any local workplace policies, procedures, and processes. In the  event anything in this Code
conflicts with a local policy or procedure, this Code will govern.

 
  Acknowledgement
This is an important policy that affects us all. Please acknowledge that you understand the policy, agree and commit to  it, and then return your
acknowledgement to your local human resources representative.

 
 
 
 
 

Date:   
   
   

Signature:   
   
   

Printed Name:   
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
 
     

Name of Subsidiary   
Organized under the

laws of   

Additional Name Under
Which Subsidiary Does

Business
Balboa Water Group, LLC  Delaware   
Custom Fluidpower Pty. Ltd.  Australia   
Custom Fluidpower Vietnam Company Ltd.  Vietnam   
Enovation Controls, LLC  Oklahoma  Murphy, Zero Off
Enovation Controls Europe, Ltd.  United Kingdom   
Enovation Controls, Ltd.  United Kingdom   
Enovation Controls India Private Limited  India   
Faster S.r.l.  Italy  Faster
Faster Inc.  Ohio  Faster
Faster Hydraulics Pvt. Ltd.  India  Faster
Faster Germany GmbH  Germany  Faster
Faster Hydraulics Shanghai Co. Ltd.  The People’s Republic of China  Faster
Faster do Brasil Ltda.  Brazil  Faster
Guwing Holdings Pty. Ltd.  Australia   
Helios Center of Engineering Excellence  Delaware   
HydroAir International ApS  Denmark   
Spa & Bath Holdings, Inc  Delaware   
Sun Hydraulics LLC  Florida   
Sun Hydraulik Holdings Limited   United Kingdom   Sun Hydraulics
Sun Hydraulics Limited   United Kingdom   Sun Hydraulics
Sun Hydraulik GmbH   Germany   Sun Hydraulics
Sun Hydraulics Korea Corporation   South Korea   Sun Hydraulics
Sun Hydraulics (China) Co Ltd.  The People’s Republic of China  Sun Hydraulics
Sun Murphy International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  The People’s Republic of China   
Polyusus Lux IV S.A.R.L.  Luxembourg   
 



 
Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have issued our reports dated March 2, 2021, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting
included in the Annual Report of Helios Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2021. We consent to the
incorporation by reference of said reports in the Registration Statements of Helios Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form S-3 (File No. 333-
222760) and on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-232173, File No. 333-30801, File No. 333-83269, File No. 333-62816, File No. 333-66008, File No. 333-
119367, File No. 333-124174, File No. 333-158245, and File No. 333-184840).

 
  
/s/ Grant Thornton LLP  
  
Tampa, Florida  
March 2, 2021  

 

 



 
  Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Josef Matosevic, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2021, of Helios Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Date: March 2, 2021
 
/s/ Josef Matosevic
Josef Matosevic
President and Chief Executive Officer
 

 



 
  Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Tricia L. Fulton, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2021, of Helios Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Date: March 2, 2021
 
/s/ Tricia L. Fulton
Tricia L. Fulton
Chief Financial Officer
 

 



 
  Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350

I, Josef Matosevic, the Chief Executive Officer of Helios Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that (i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Company for the year
ended January 2, 2021 (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the information contained
in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/ Josef Matosevic
Josef Matosevic
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 2, 2021
 

 



 
  Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350

I, Tricia L. Fulton, the Chief Financial Officer of Helios Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that (i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Company for the year
ended January 2, 2021 (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the information contained
in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/ Tricia L. Fulton
Chief Financial Officer
March 2, 2021
 

 


